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Five-Year Financial Summary

BE+-A=+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—T—=F —T—NF —T—RHF T—FRF ZE—tF
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
FET FET FET FET FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
EF RESULTS
WA Revenue 95,074 116,817 93,349 94,824 89,484
E7H Gross profit 52,238 62,471 47,963 53,776 51,889
Fx TS L R & ) Profit before income tax 15,081 18,068 4,331 7,026 17,045
S ®if X Income tax expense (3,390) (4,088) (2,260) (3,190) (1,416)
F R F Profit for the year 11,691 13,980 2,071 3,836 15,629
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December

—F—=F —ZE-NF —FT—HF —FT—RF ZEB—+tHF
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
FET FET FET FETT FEx
us$:000 Us$:000 Us$:000 Us$'000 US$'000

EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEE Total assets 192,382 232,275 218,286 222,762 227,745
“aE Total liabilities (81,732)  (117,670)  (116,839)  (132,386)  (125,726)
BEFE Net assets 110,650 114,605 101,447 90,376 102,019
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Financial Highlights

—E—t5F —ZE—RF 28
2017 2016 Change
¥E(TXEm): Results (US$’000):
WA Revenue 89,484 94,824 -5.6%
EH Gross profit 51,889 53,776 -3.5%
1R A Profit from operations 9,456 11,031 -14.3%
B FT1S BBl 7 A Profit before income tax 17,045 7,026 +142.6%
RARER AL BT Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 15,629 3,836 +307.4%
BRI : Profitability:
EAES Gross profit margin 58.0% 56.7% +1.3%
Fap B Net profit margin 17.5% 4.0% +13.5%
BRERAEF Basic earnings per share
(Al (US cents) 3.8 0.9 +2.9
B#EMRR(FET): Financial Position (US$'000):
BB E Total assets 227,745 222,762 +2.2%
RARES AELER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 102,019 90,376 +12.9%
BEE Total liabilities 125,726 132,386 -5.0%
He MIRTTHH Cash and bank balances 41,522 37,197 +11.6%
RBESMRR Liquidity:
BN R () Current ratio (times) 1.0 0.9 +0.1
AR R Net debt-to-equity ratio* 56.5% 75.1% -18.6%
FREESLER=(EK - B RRTER) BHER
* Net debt-to-equity ratio = (Borrowings — cash and bank balances)/Total equity
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Revenue

[N o WA TPES6%

Revenue

(EE=) o Revenue decreased by 5.6%

2016 2017

7 EUA

Segment Revenue

| W BREFER W REER
Pharmaceuticals Medical cosmetics products Healthcare products
(B&#%T) (B8=xT) (B8%T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

2B F
Segment Profits

o EE B SEERESR W 2EES
Pharmaceuticals Medical cosmetics products Healthcare products
(B&#*%T) (B8%T) (B8%T)

(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

3.0%
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F AR AR AT =R

Profit for the year and Net profit margin

man  mARE o 2017 ALF) EF1307.4%
B 4 1) 3 4 013.5%
(US$ million)

o Net profit increased by 307.4% in 2017

. o o
17.5% Net profit margin increased by 13.5%

4.0%

2016 2017

BRERE
Dividend per share (DPS)

FHIR B AER47EL

W TAskERE W RESRKRE W BHISBRRE

Interim DPS Final DPS Special DPS N <.
e CEil) B BRI E AERR 149481

(HK cents) (HK ce/nts) (HK cents)

EEAPRES R 358

o Interim dividend of HK4.17 cents per share
Special dividend of HK14.94 cents per share
Proposed final dividend of HK3.58 cents per share

2016 2017
Total assets and Net assets
B FrmEE W rpEE m FEE e MEELF22%
B A £12.9%
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

o Total assets increased by 2.2%
Net assets increased by 12.9%

2016 2017
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report for the financial year ended on 31 December 2017 of
the Group to all shareholders of the Company.

Review of 2017

In 2017, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately US$89.5
million, with a decrease of 5.6% compared with last year. The revenue
from pharmaceuticals maintained stable growth, while the revenue
from medical cosmetics and healthcare businesses experienced a
year-on-year decrease due to product promotion cycle and capacity
adjustments. Profit for the year achieved a sharp rise compared with last
year due to the partial disposal of shares in its associate, Zhejiang Starry
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”), and compensation received from
relevant flood insurance. The annual profit reached US$15.6 million
with an increase of 307.4% compared with last year. In addition, the
Group entered into a settlement agreement with Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, and the corresponding compensation
totaling US$4.6 million was recognised as losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in 2017.

In 2017, the State Council, National Health and Family Planning
Commission and China Food and Drug Administration (“CFDA")
successively released a series of policies covering pharmaceuticals,
medical treatment, medical insurance and distribution channels, to
carry out integrated reform in medical treatment, medical insurance
and pharmaceuticals, fully promote comprehensive reform in public
hospitals, cancel long-standing medicine mark-up policies, accelerate
the establishment of a hierarchical medical service system and combined
medical units, and conduct reform in drug distribution and medical
insurance payments. The new policies, including the two-invoices
system, zero-mark up drug policy, control on the proportion of drugs
and medical expenditure of medical insurance payment, consistent
evaluation, reform in medical insurance payment and food and drug
supervision are gradually being implemented. The changes of policies
and regulations are opening up new opportunities and challenges
to the industry. Meanwhile, the implementation of the first Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Traditional Chinese Medicine will
guarantee and promote the sound development of the industry. In
active response to national policies and regulations, the Group will
further develop the rheumatology and autoimmune segment, and
proactively make adjustments with the support of a “Comprehensive
Health and Comprehensive Development” strategy.
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The traditional main business of the Group is specialty pharmaceuticals
for the rheumatology, autoimmune and dermatology market segments.
The pharmaceutical business continued to experience stable growth. In
2017, the Group maintained its leading position in the rheumatology
and autoimmune segment; the core product Pafulin sustained steady
growth; Sicorten Plus Cream is expected to maintain the growth in
the next few years. The gradual implementation of the “two-invoices
system” had certain impact on agency product sales. The Company
will actively respond and timely adjust its sales model. Meanwhile, the
Group will increase funding for medical research on Pafulin and other
products to prepare for new clinical indications, and strengthen the
development of traditional Chinese medicine, which should provide
strong support for product line enrichment and future business growth
of the Company.

2017 was the year for the Group to explore and develop the medical
cosmetics business and gradually shape its development model. The
Group realised cooperation in the exclusive distribution of bio-skin care
brand Bribrilliant with Robustnique Corporation Ltd.; explored a new
marketing model to facilitate the market expansion for Fillderm, and
gradually realised the alliance of medical cosmetics and cosmetology;
Yuze and other products maintained rapid growth with the market
influence and brand awareness further improved.

Moreover, the Group will continue to develop the healthcare business
with Natural Dailyhealth Holdings Limited (“Natural Dailyhealth”) as a
platform by making use of its production capacity and cost advantage
and exploiting the complementary development strengths of Lansen
and Natural Dailyhealth. Meanwhile, it will also actively push forward
applications for the approval of several healthcare products, and
successively launch such products in local and overseas markets in
the next few years, in order to lay a solid foundation for the sound
development of this business.

BB A4 28 %547 i B R /2 A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 7/
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On 15 March 2017, the Group totally disposed of 4,175,000 shares
in Starry (representing approximately 3.48% equity interest of Starry),
at a price of RMB43.11 per share, pursuant to which, an aggregate
disposal proceeds of RMB180.0 million (equivalent to approximately
US$26.1 million) were obtained, and the Group recorded a gain on
partial disposal of an associate of US$15.4 million (after tax). After the
disposal, Lansen still held 15,175,000 shares in Starry (accounting for
approximately 12.6% equity interest of Starry). The carrying amount
of these shares as at 31 December 2017 was US$28.2 million (as
compared with the market value of US$67.23 million calculated based
on the closing price of Starry of RMB28.95 as at 31 December 2017).
The Group may further dispose of the shares of Starry under the share
reduction plan, subject to prevailing market price of the shares of Starry
and general conditions of the stock market, as well as the restrictions
set out in the share reduction plan. The Group will comply with the
applicable requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) accordingly and make further announcements in this regard
as and when appropriate.

Outlook for 2018

On 29 January 2018, the Company issued an announcement that Mr.
Liu Bangmin would resign as the Executive Director of the Company,
member of the Executive Committee and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group on 31 January 2018 due to family reasons. On 9 February
2018, the Company issued an announcement that Mr. Chen Li would
be appointed as the Executive Managing Director of the Company,
member of the Executive Committee and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group with effect from 1 March 2018. With Mr. Chen Li's extensive
experience in the pharmaceutical sector and his professional and
specialised management skill, management is optimistic about the
prospects of the industry and is confident in the future development
of the Company.

The Group will continue to proactively promote business development
and execute established strategies, further develop its business in
prescription drugs for autoimmune rheumatic and dermatology diseases
to become the No. 1 brand in the field. It will also have an active
presence in medical cosmetics, healthcare products and other fields
and strive to become an outstanding major health provider.
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The Group will continue to focus on the medical business especially
specialty pharmaceuticals for the rheumatology and dermatology and
autoimmune market segments, optimise product structure and strive to
maintain a leading position in the field of disease treatment by increasing
the proportion of sales of self-manufactured products, gathering
resources, raise per capita output, improving team professionalism
and the effectiveness of promotion. At the same time, the Group will
fully explore the rich resources of Chinese patent medicine products,
increase the promotion of and investment in featured pharmaceutical
products, set up an OTC and retail team, and further enhance the sales
scale and profitability of the Group’s pharmaceutical business with
various channels such as customisation, e-commerce and partnerships.

The Group will strategically accelerate the development of medical
cosmetics business and thus expand its revenue source. In 2018, the
Group will actively deploy medical beauty institutions and rapidly
promote joining and cooperating with cosmetology and media beauty
institutions. By developing new products and introducing internationally
leading products, the Group will meet the needs of consumers for
individualisation, technology and specialty, enhance brand awareness
and expand new business growth. In terms of new products and the
introduction of partners, we will pursue products with high quality
characteristics matching with the development strategy of the Group
to form joint development product lines.

Looking forward to the future, the Group will actively grasp the
opportunities brought by the strategy of Healthy China and the
revitalisation of Chinese medicine, develop and promote the distinctive
products of pharmaceutical, medical cosmetics and healthcare, and
promote the continuous and steady growth of its business through
merger and acquisition, integration, international cooperation and
continuous innovation, and realise the win-win value for shareholders,
customers and employees.

Wu Zhen Tao
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

BA A B8 4% BE A R A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 9
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Business Review

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately US$89.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: US$94.8 million), representing
a decrease of 5.6% over last year. The annual profit reached US$15.6
million (2016: US$3.8 million), representing a significant increase
over last year. It was mainly due to the effect of one-off factors:
(1) the disposal of 4,175,000 shares in an associate, Zhejiang Starry
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Starry”), representing approximately 3.48%
equity interest of Starry, at a price of RMB43.11 per share, pursuant
to which, an aggregate disposal proceeds of RMB180.0 million
(equivalent to approximately US$26.1 million) were obtained, and the
Group recorded a gain on partial disposal of an associate of US$15.4
million (after tax); (2) the insurance claim and the interest of RMB17.6
million in respect of the damaged inventories of Ningbo Liwah Plant
Extraction Technology Limited (“Liwah Plant Extract”) and Ningbo
Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah") due to the
flood caused by a rainstorm in Ningbo, the PRC in September 2015
while the Group had written off relevant inventory loss of RMB26.7
million (equivalent to approximately US$4.3 million) in 2015; (3) the
entering into a settlement agreement between Ningbo Liwah and
Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Claimant”)
on 27 December 2017, of which Ningbo Liwah agreed to pay the
Claimant damages of US$4.6 million, which was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of 2017.
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Revenue of the pharmaceuticals segment increased by 5.8% over
last year, and the segment profit basically remained flat. Pafulin, the
specialty pharmaceutical product of Lansen, recorded a revenue of
approximately US$50.5 million (2016: approximately US$43.8 million),
representing an increase of 15.2% over last year. Mycophenolate
mofetil dispersible tablets and leflunomide tablets recorded a total
revenue of approximately US$6.5 million (2016: approximately US$7.4
million), representing a decrease of 11.9% over last year, mainly
due to the impact exerted by the two-invoices system on agency
products. Our other featured pharmaceutical products, including
Bazhenkeli, Dingpeng Cream, Compound Glycyrrhiza Oral Solution,
etc. recorded a total revenue of approximately US$6.6 million (2016:
approximately US$7.2 million), decreasing by 8.6% as compared with
the corresponding period last year.

Revenue of the medical cosmetic segment decreased by 26.9% over
last year, while this segment’s profit decreased by US$4.2 million. The
main reason for the decline was because the market inventories of
the new product Fillderm is still in the digestion stage. At the same
time, both Comfy Dressing Collagen (“Kefumei”) and Yuze recorded
noticeable sales growth of 26.3% and 21.0% respectively over last
year. Due to the two-invoices system, it is expected that the sales of
Kefumei in 2018 will be affected to a certain extent.

The Group has developed its healthcare business via the platform of
Natural Dailyhealth Holdings Limited (“Natural Dailyhealth”). Due to
structural and capacity adjustments, the revenue from the healthcare
products segment (including plant extracts and healthcare products)
decreased by US$4.3 million over last year, while this segment'’s profit
increased by US$1.4 million.

Pharmaceutical segment

With the deepening of medical reform, the implementation of
policies including the two-invoices system, zero-mark up drug policy,
control on proportion of drugs and medical expenditure of medical
insurance, quality consistency evaluation and centralised bargaining
procurement by combined medical units has brought new opportunities
and challenges for the industry. A number of national policies and
guidances have been promulgated to further reduce drug prices and
intermediate distribution channels, which led to the prediction that the
drug price decline would be the future trend. The industry reshuffling
will be accelerated as well as the market structure will be gradually
reconstructed. With the medical reform entering a crucial phase, it is
necessary for the pharmaceutical sector to further push forward reform
and innovation, so as to provide strong support for the construction of
“Healthy China”. In order to comply with national policies and cope
with the downturn pressure of drug prices, the Group has proposed
and gradually implemented strategic adjustments.

BB A4 B8 %547 {8 B R /2 &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 11
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Currently, the Group’s core business is specialty pharmaceuticals used
in rheumatology and autoimmune segment. Going forward, the Group
aims to expand the hospital coverage of specialty pharmaceuticals. The
Group has started restructuring its sales team and optimising its incentive
policy for sales staff to enhance its effect. In addition, the Group plans
to substantially cut down its expenses and lift efficiency, with a view
to improving the Company’s competitiveness and profitability.

In respect of non-specialty pharmaceuticals, emphasis on the
development of traditional Chinese medicine has currently been set as
a national strategy. Therefore, the traditional Chinese medicine industry
has a promising future. The Group has selected appropriate products
from various approved pharmaceuticals with traditional features by
devoting more resources to Bazhenkeli, Qixuekang and other featured
pharmaceuticals to enhance its efforts on expanding retail market while
maintaining their sales to hospitals and further enhance the sales and
profitability of the Group’s pharmaceutical segment. The retail prices of
featured pharmaceuticals are expected to suffer less from government
polices as compared with specialty pharmaceuticals.

In general, the Group maintains its leading position in the rheumatology
and autoimmune segment while the core product Pafulin sustained
steady growth. In view of the single core specialty pharmaceutical
product at present, the Group has targeted to develop a number of
core products comprising of specialty pharmaceuticals and featured
pharmaceuticals over time. Meanwhile, the Group will improve
the hospital coverage of specialty pharmaceuticals and featured
pharmaceuticals and implement strict control on expenses, to enhance
the product structure, income structure and profitability of Lansen’s
pharmaceutical segment.

The new Chief Executive Officer of Lansen who took office on 1 March
2018 will actively promote the business development of Lansen and
implement Lansen’s established strategies.
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Medical cosmetics segment

Currently, the medical cosmetics industry has become one of the hot
consumption areas with a large and rapidly developing market. The
development of medical technique, safer medical treatments and more
effective outcomes are also attracting more consumers. The Group
began to carry out cosmetics business based on its own brand Fillderm.
Fillderm is the only medical collagen filler approved by the CFDA in
China. During the past two years, the Group tried to probe market
reaction on Fillderm through different sales modes. After two years
of exploration, the Group adjusted the sales strategy for Fillderm and
laid foundation for the sales of the high-end series skin care products
independently developed by Lansen in cosmotology franchises.

The Group will also focus on developing non-medical cosmetics product
lines in 2018. Through cooperation with third parties, agents and
independent research and development, the Group plans to develop
cosmetics products including facial masks and series of skin care
products. The richness of product lines is believed to play a positive
role in the cooperation with cosmetics institutions, customer base
expansion and market coverage enlargement, and may have synergistic
effects with Fillderm.

The Group’s cosmeceutical product, Yuze, can be used to fundamentally
treat various skin problems arising from impairment of skin barrier
function. Yuze has been recording growth and has further strengthened
its brand advantage upon achieving success in expanding into paediatrics
and other new fields recently.

Bribrilliant, the new distribution brand that established partnership with
us in 2017, has provided support to the Group in the fields of medical
cosmetics and cosmetology by virtue of its biotechnology background
and capacity of research and development. It is believed that such
support will strengthen our bonding with medical cosmetics consumers.

The Group has firmly accelerated its pace of developing its medical
cosmetics platform and put great efforts into proactively enriching
its medical cosmetics product line to ensure the long-term and rapid
development and good returns from its medical cosmetics platform.
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ERE BRI

Management Discussion and Analysis

2 B A

BR - EYRBRYNERCDEREREYNR
o BERERERS - RAFIE - e -
FRRNEE ZEES - BN - PEBFEE
MPIBENETEEDRDBYFERLR - R
MR CEMREBITEMISIRE - RIEWRER
TEKBPRAER - KR ITRER - ZEREY
NAR BRI BEERERT -

/3T IESR R E 7 P B Y IR B4R i fn IS AY
RUEBEN BT —REF KEAEAE
212E - KRNAFRSTEEREDRILR
REED - ARBEBBZRHURERREES
M - IERRMER - BERAEMERNEHE
2 HETKEEREERNRINEE B
BETFENREERT TEEAR -

RE

MN-B—+E=A+HA  PEETTRAL
DR UERAREAS M TTHEREE
4,175,000/ 5] K& 0 FTIS B R AR
¥180.0B B T(HHERL26.1BEXET) - £H
EEBrHEBLE GG (FiE) 15.488%
T BORFAEREREST - BNRNEE
HYEE o

ZrRHER BAAEDNDEERAILBH
15,175,000 (491h R R 12.6%AEHE) - ==
—tF+_A=+—BZEREEAR282HEXE
THEEHRAIR -_T—tFE+_A=+—AHIk
MEARE28.95THE - ZIFRMEL67.23
BEBETL) -

SEHERALRDME - RHARERIAR
Bt RS a1 &1 P /Y & IR 1 1 A BEE — P ARIE
BB IR ER ALY - KREKETE
BHARSMARRAESZ LR EMR
AN ZERRE - XL ERSITTIEAS -

1 4 Annual Report 2017 F 3k

Healthcare segment

Currently, the application of plant extracts has expanded from traditional
medicine and food to health food, food additives, cosmetics and feed
supplements. At the same time, the regulatory authorities in the PRC
are also speeding up the perfection of the plant extract standard
system in order to regulate and improve the plant extract industry. In
the future, the plant extract industry will become more standardised
and centralised, and multiple factors will contribute to the increase in
the overall size of the all-round healthcare industry.

In order to enhance the core competitiveness of the Group in the
PRC plant extract and healthcare products area, in 2016, the Group
announced further capital contribution to Natural Dailyhealth to jointly
develop plant extract and healthcare product business using Natural
Dailyhealth as a platform. In the future, the Group’s main sales direction
will continue to be major products. The Group will make use of
the complementary strengths of Lansen and Natural Dailyhealth, to
expedite technology transformation, actively conduct the design and
production of quality standard products and lay a solid foundation for
the long-term development of our healthcare platform.

Investment

On 15 March 2017, Lansen reduced its shareholding of shares of Starry
and disposed of an aggregate of 4,175,000 shares of Starry at a price
of RMB43.11 per share of Starry, pursuant to which, an aggregate
disposal proceeds of RMB180.0 million (equivalent to approximately
US$26.1 million) were obtained. The Group recorded a gain on partial
disposal of an associate of US$15.4 million (after tax). Share reduction
in the interests in Starry brought cash flow to the Group, which was
beneficial to the operation of the Group.

After the disposal, Lansen still holds 15,175,000 shares of Starry,
representing approximately 12.6% interest of Starry. The carrying
amount of these shares as at 31 December 2017 was US$28.2 million,
as compared with the market value of US$67.23 million calculated
based on the closing price of Starry of RMB28.95 as at 31 December
2017.

The Group may further dispose of the shares of Starry under the share
reduction plan, subject to prevailing market price of the shares of Starry
and general conditions of the stock market, as well as the restrictions
set out in the share reduction plan. The Group will comply with the
applicable requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) accordingly and make further announcement(s) in this regard
as and when appropriate.
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Financial Review

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$89.5 million (2016: US$94.8
million) for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing a decrease
of 5.6% over the corresponding period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from pharmaceuticals
amounted to US$68.2 million (2016: US$64.5 million), representing
an increase of 5.8% over the corresponding period last year. Revenue
from medical cosmetics products amounted to US$13.2 million (2016:
US$18.0 million), representing a decrease of 26.9% over last year.
Revenue from healthcare products amounted to US$8.1 million
(2016: US$12.3 million), representing a decrease of 34.6% over the
corresponding period last year.

Pafulin, the core specialty pharmaceutical product, recorded a revenue
of US$50.5 million (2016: US$43.8 million). Mycophenolate mofetil
dispersible tablets and leflunomide tablets recorded a revenue of
US$6.5 million (2016: approximately US$7.4 million), representing a
decrease of 11.9% over last year.

Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a gross
profit of US$51.9 million (2016: US$53.8 million), representing a
decrease of 3.5% over the corresponding period last year. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the overall gross profit margin was
58.0% (2016: 56.7%), representing an increase of 1.3% over the
corresponding period last year.

The increase in overall gross profit margin as compared to last year
was mainly attributable to the changes in product sales mix. The sales
proportion of healthcare products, which have lower gross profit
margins, to the total revenue decreased from 13.0% in 2016 t0 9.0%
in 2017.

Other Income

Other income amounted to US$1.3 million (2016: US$2.1 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing a decrease of
40.1% over last year, which was mainly because the government
grants received in 2017 decreased by US$0.9 million over last year.
Government grants received by the Group primarily came from the
local government and were partly used as recognition of the Group’s
efforts in developing high-technology pharmaceutical products.

BB A4 B8 %547 {8 B R /2 &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 5
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Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the selling and distribution
expenses of the Group increased by 5.4% to US$30.9 million from
US$29.3 million in the corresponding period last year. The proportion
of the selling and distribution expenses of the Group to the total
revenue of the Group increased by 3.6% to 34.5% for the year ended
31 December 2017 from 30.9% in the corresponding period last year.
The increase was mainly due to Fillderm collagen injectable filler which
is still in a market development investment phase.

Management believed that the marketing model and academic
promotional advantages of pharmaceuticals and medical cosmetics
products are the key factors in maintaining its leading market
position. The Group endeavoured to enhance market recognition of
pharmaceutical and medical cosmetics products and actively launched
patient education activities. By organising academic conferences across
China, doctors and users were able to have a better understanding of
the pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of these products.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, administrative expenses
amounted to US$12.8 million (2016: US$15.6 million), representing
a decrease of 17.7% over last year. The proportion of the administrative
expenses of the Group to the total revenue of the Group decreased by
2.1% to 14.3% for the year ended 31 December 2017 from 16.4% in
the corresponding period last year. Calculated in RMB, administrative
expenses in general decreased by approximately RMB17.1 million,
which was due to exchange gains of RMB3.1 million (2016: exchange
losses of RMBO.7 million) together with the decrease of other expenses
(including performance bonus, travel expenses, conference expenses,
advisory fees, recruitment costs and etc.) by approximately RMB10.8
million.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2017, finance costs of the Group
increased by US$0.6 million. This was mainly due to the increase of
average bank borrowings and the effective interest rate per annum
increasing from 3.56% in 2016 to 3.86% in 2017.

Share of post-tax profit of associates
Share of post-tax profit of associates for the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to US$1.3 million (2016: US$1.5 million).
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Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah has obtained the certification as a high-technology
enterprise and enjoys a preferential income tax rate of 15%. According
to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC and the implementation
rules of the income tax law, except for Ningbo Liwah, the enterprise
income tax rate for other PRC subsidiaries was 25%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017 amounted to US$15.6 million, representing an
increase by US$11.8 million from US$3.8 million in the corresponding
period last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and
resorts to external financing including bank borrowings from time
to time when the operating cash flow is insufficient to meet capital
requirements.

As at 31 December 2017, net current assets and current ratio of the
Group were approximately US$4.3 million (31 December 2016: net
current liabilities of US$13.5 million) and 1.0 (31 December 2016:
0.9) respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to US$8.9 million (31 December 2016: US$10.1 million).
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledged bank deposits of
US$32.6 million (31 December 2016: US$27.1 million) to secure bank
borrowings.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2017 amounted to US$99.1
million (31 December 2016: US$105.1 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's net debt-to-equity ratio was
56.5% (31 December 2016: 75.1%), calculated by net debt (borrowings
minus cash and bank balances) at the end of the year over total equity.

17

BB A4 B8 %547 {8 B R /2 &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited




ERE BRI

Management Discussion and Analysis

AEBERXZEEAININERBRERAAM -
ARASEMBARKENABOEREE R
BEANZEHBARNABYEERE -
AEE BRI EIMELIRBR - AT - BEIRE
SRYESTINERR - UNEFREEEEH T
SNE R

BEEERR

R_ZE—tF+_A=+—8  &5FTRAER
MEREE  mEAF361AEET(ZT—X
F+-A=+—H: 3N 1AE=T)RFIAT L
MREMEMIFEEL(ZE—X"F+ZA=
+—H: 100188XET) ERAEERSGIR
TREMBRITEERRRZWE A RRBGRITE
FAEHIEIAE o

B AR EIE
R-Z—+F+-_A=+—H  A£EEABDF]
HEMARGETBRERPEENELRAAY A
188BEL(ZE—R"F+=H=+—H:07
BEXTT) °

RREE

B BT HER
AEBERAEERZMBAREWEEEY
TEEMER AR EWEE DIELHERR
MITEEER - REERT  AEEEARES
WEERBRITIRIAZE AR 130,000,000
TL(HHZE19,895,000F L )MER - R - =
—+tF+-_A=+—H AEEBRENE
REBEBELRATMEEMEINEGEARE
122,460,000 7T (FB%E 7 18,741,000% L) (=&
—~NF+ZA=+—8 : AR%100,000,0007T
(}85114,415,0003E70) ) © AR ZIERHNATF
EXFERBEARREZRBRIEZERM M
AARIRHEEN M ER - FHtZ S’
RW KRS B TERERER ©

Rtz R-E—tF+-_A=+—H &K
SEYEEMNEANAAE -

1 8 Annual Report 2017 4 5§

The exposure of the Group’s transactional currency to foreign currency
risk was minimal as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
by the subsidiaries of the Group are denominated in the respective
functional currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently does not
have any foreign currency hedging policy. However, management
would closely monitor foreign exchange exposure and consider hedging
foreign currency exposure when necessary.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2017, certain bank deposits and bills receivables
in an aggregate carrying amount of US$36.1 million (31 December
2016: US$31.1 million) and Starry’s listed shares with market value
amounting to US$44.3 million (31 December 2016: US$100.1 million)
were pledged to secure banking facilities and banking borrowings of
the Group and bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements amounted
to US$1.8 million (31 December 2016: US$0.7 million).

Contingent liabilities

Financial guarantee issued

The Group has issued a guarantee to a bank in respect of borrowings
made by Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology Company Limited
("Jilin Haizi"), a fellow subsidiary of the Group. Under the guarantee,
the Group is liable for a maximum of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent
to US$19,895,000) borrowings drawn by Jilin Haizi from the bank.
The maximum liability of the Group at 31 December 2017 under the
guarantee issued represents the amount drawn down by Jilin Haizi
of RMB122,460,000 (equivalent to US$18,741,000) (31 December
2016: RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to US$14,415,000)). The financial
guarantee is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements
because the fair value of the guarantee was insignificant and that the
directors of the Company did not consider it is probable that a claim
would be made against the Company under the guarantee.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability as at 31 December 2017.
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Material acquisitions and disposals

On 15 March 2017, the Group has disposed of a total of 4,175,000
shares in Starry via on-market block trade sales on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The gross proceeds from the disposal were in an aggregate
RMB180.0 million, and the Group recorded a gain on partial disposal of
an associate of US$15.4 million (after tax). The net gain (after-tax) on
the partial disposal attributable to the Group is approximately US$15.4
million. As a result of the disposal, the Group’s holding in Starry has
reduced from 16.1% to 12.6%.

Human resources

The Group had over 790 employees as at 31 December 2017 with the
employee costs of US$16.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. Staff remuneration of the Group, including salary, allowances,
medical insurance and provident fund, is determined with reference
to individual performance, professional qualifications, experience in
the industry and relevant market trends.

Salaries of employees of the Group have been maintained at a
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close reference
to the relevant labour market and economic condition. The Group
provides career advancement training in the form of internal courses
and workshops for the staff and encourages them to participate in
training programmes related to the Group’s business.
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Introduction

In order to be in compliance with the requirements as set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries as the “Group”)
herein report the environmental, social and governance report (“ESG
Report”) for the year from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017,
to report practices, performance and development of the Group in
corporate social responsibility in 2017 to our shareholders, staff, clients,
partners and other stakeholders.

Strategy and Management of Environmental, Social

and Governance Matters

With the continuous development and expansion of the scale of
enterprise, the Group is gradually integrating the sustainable
development strategy into its overall development strategy system.

B GE : HMIARER - KA ERE
RAZFREBEERNRE  REAM KARKBETEIAZHY RENEEFRENELE REMBXE
REKFMETEE @ BEREBRORE HBEX - m o RBHTENHBES  BRAEN
BHEACNHETHNEAABERTEZNR FBE - REEBHNFERERER &
Kiw & e BRR - BEFMEINEEHRR -

Our mission: Our vision: Our strategy:

Provide customers with quality products
and services to improve people’s health
and quality of life, while maximising the
investment return to shareholders and
satisfy the personal development needs of
the staff.
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To become a
enterprise in the healthcare
industry.

reputable  To develop and promote the distinctive
products of pharmaceutical, healthcare
and medical cosmetics, and promote
the continuous and steady growth of its
business through merger and acquisition,
integration, international cooperation and
continuous innovation, and realise the win-
win value of shareholders, customers and

employees.
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Stakeholders

BT ERITRE EHE

Governmental and industrial regulators

Participation of stakeholders

According to the actual situation of operation of the Company,
our stakeholders are mainly governmental and industrial regulators,
investors, customers and consumers, suppliers, employees, the
community, industry peers, media and the general public. In 2017,
we communicated with stakeholders mainly by the following methods
to better perform our social responsibilities:

FRERTEEAN
Methods of communication with stakeholders
BIR2EER - LHBUNIEEB BITERE

Government visits, supporting government projects and industry

collaboration

KEH

Investors

52  ZEEE

Board of directors, information disclosure, conference exchange, ordinary

CEMM  BERG - W - B R

visits, website, mail, telephone

BEFEBEE

Customers and consumers

S e  HERLTE  BPRG - EFEEH

Academic seminars, new product launching conferences, customer service,

telephone consultations

e
Suppliers

HEREEHE - KBHREHS - FEFE

Supplier management system, procurement tender mechanism, annual

evaluation
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Stakeholders Methods of communication with stakeholders
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Employees Trade union, employee congress, multi-type training, safety management,
cultural and sports activities, health examination, paid annual leave

Zan DA - EREED

Community Community activities, volunteer work
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Industry peers Trade organisations, forums and conferences
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Media and general public Information disclosure, public opinion monitoring, media communication

mechanism, website
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Environment

The Group pays attention to the issue of pollutant emissions in the
course of production on an ongoing basis. It strictly observes the
laws and regulations of the country and has formulated the following
measures in an effort to combat the emission of various pollutants:

1. Ningbo Liwah actively promotes energy restructuring. Since 2013,
it has substituted oil with natural gas as the fuel for its boilers
used for production two years earlier than required by the local
policy. Ningbo Liwah also added residual heat recovery units
and paid attention to the use of steam all the time. When
excessive steam flow was identified, Ningbo Liwah will contact
all departments that use steam and arrange staff to check if
the steam valves of equipment are properly closed to reduce
unnecessary steam waste, natural gas usage and carbon dioxide
emissions.

2. Compulsory categorisation of domestic, industrial and hazardous
wastes is introduced and staff is encouraged to categorise wastes
autonomously and scientifically. An external treatment company
is regularly engaged to transport and dispose of such wastes.
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3.

The Group stresses the importance of hazardous wastes
management and puts in place a series of management procedures
for production, temporary storage, transfer, warehousing,
handling and filing as well as a dedicated warehouse for
hazardous wastes. In order to prevent the leakage of hazardous
wastes from the warehouse into the river, the warehouse has
been renovated to avoid the wastes leaking into the river.

As for sewage treatment, Ningbo Liwah has installed a dedicated
sewage treatment facility. By separating rainwater and sewage,
Ningbo Liwah has ensured that water directly discharged to the
river is rainfall. Sewage disposed of by treatment plant would
entirely meet the discharge standard of municipal pipelines.

Regarding waste gas treatment, raw materials storage and
transmission segments, Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company
Limited Zhenhai Branch (“Liwah Zhenhai Branch”) reduces the
production of organic waste gas in the storage and transmission
segments through centralised storage and pipe transmission.
Furthermore, in the exhaust gas and sewage treatment segments,
various devices have been installed to mitigate the impact
of waste gas produced on the environment. In addition, by
engaging independent third parties, a work plan is developed
every year, conducting regular examinations and timely repair,
thereby effectively reducing the emission of organic waste gas
and monitoring the effectiveness of VOCs emission reduction
measures.

In connection with management, Liwah Zhenhai Branch has
complied with the requirements of local environmental bureaus
to continue to enhance enterprise VOCs emission reduction
measures. Meanwhile, ISO14001 internal and external audits are
conducted annually to improve the effectiveness of organic waste
gas recovery equipment and exhaust gas absorption devices from
different perspectives based on the annual performance targets.
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Regarding solid wastes, Liwah Zhenhai Branch has strengthened
the cooperation between recycling enterprises to alleviate the
pressure of general solid wastes disposal on the environment and
recycle more resources by adopting diversified disposal methods
such as organic fertilisers and biomass fuel granules production.

The Group specially sets up an environmental protection and
energy management office to constantly monitor the Company’s
daily energy consumption and environmental protection. The
Group monitors its emission indicators stringently according
to the requirements of emission volume and standards under
relevant laws and regulations, which primarily include:

. Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
. Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

o Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes of the PRC

° Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

° The Law on the Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution
of the PRC

o Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards (Ningbo local
standards)

. Air Pollutant Emission Standards for Boilers (Ningbo local
standards)

o Contingency Plans for Environmental Emergencies (filed to
Ningbo Environmental Protection Bureau)
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Raw materials used by the Group for production primarily include
various extracts and Chinese herbal medicines, and the production of
which may have very minor impact on the environment and natural
resources. The Group actively fulfills its social responsibilities and
always follows the philosophy of maintaining the balance between
development and environment protection by employing various
resources reasonably to protect the environment. The Group abides
by the Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the PRC stringently
and has established relevant systems to further the goals of energy
saving, consumption reduction, pollution mitigation and effectiveness
enhancement with the aim of minimising the impact of its production
and operation on the ecological system. The Group also deepens its
collaboration with recycling enterprises to increase the recycling value
of solid dreg wastes.

The Group advocates green production with the goals of energy saving,
consumption reduction and pollution mitigation in mind. The Group
reduces the use of resources by optimising its production process and
improving its technologies, together with the use of LED lighting,
installation of steam timers, recovery of purified and concentrated
water, adoption of variable frequency control for large equipment and
implementation of residual heat recovery for boiler water. In addition,
the Group also encourages its staff to participate in the design of
energy saving solutions and continues to raise their awareness of
environmental protection. Waste water, waste gas from boilers and
noise produced by the Group are all tested against relevant standards
and requirements. In 2017, the Group has carried out automation
upgrading on the air conditioning and boiler systems of its plants. The
substitution of human adjustment by auto-induction has released the
labour force as well as reduced the energy waste caused by human
adjustment. Air conditioning and boiler systems recorded a year-on-
year decrease of 20% in terms of energy consumption.

The Group also supports a green office objective by merging low-carbon
operation into its production process and aims at low carbonisation,
paperless and energy saving by reducing the use of natural resources
and energy such as fossil fuels, water, electricity and timbers.
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Major emissions during the reporting period are as follows:
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Corporate Culture

The Company aims to continue its business in prescription drugs for
autoimmune rheumatic diseases and become the number one brand
for basic medication in this field. It also strives to develop four major
platforms of pharmaceuticals, healthcare, investment and medical
cosmetics. Professionalism, internationalisation, continuous innovation,
and vitality are our corporate culture, and it is our relentless pursuit
to help people live a happy and healthy life. The Company promotes
team cooperation, and has defined clear individual responsibilities and
established values of responsibility, pragmatism, open-mindedness and
sharing. It aims to provide its customers with high-quality products,
to create high-quality life for its employees, to obtain high-quality
investments for its shareholders and to diligently perform its corporate
responsibilities for the society. It inherits and introduces innovations
on traditional medicine theory in order to develop and lead the future
healthcare business.
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Employee Guidelines

The Company follows the principle of fairness and equality in providing
employment opportunities, remuneration, training, performance
assessment and promotion, and has never discriminated on the grounds
of gender, age, ethnicity, religion, culture and educational background.
It is committed to providing all employees with an equal development
platform and protecting their lawful interests, and strives to create a
healthy and harmonious working environment.

The labour contract of the Group is based on the Labour Law promulgated
by the state and the relevant labour laws and regulations of the local
governments, and it shall have immediate legal effect once signed. The
Group's standards for staff recruitment and deployment are in strict
compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations of the PRC.
The Company is mainly subject to the following laws and regulations:

. Labour Law of the PRC
. Labour Contract Law of the PRC
° Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors

° Provisions on the Prohibition against the Use of Child Labour
(State Council Order No. 364)

° Special Provisions on Labour Protection of Female Workers in
Zhejiang Province

° Standards for Distribution of High-temperature Subsidies in
Zhejiang Province

In 2017, the Company did not violate any of the above laws and
regulations.
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Employment Policy

The Group provides competitive remuneration and benefits in
accordance with the market principles. The characteristics of different
positions in terms of decision-making responsibilities, scope of
influence and eligibility requirements are the decisive factors in pay
levels. Remuneration is not necessarily related to service time and
educational background. Instead, it is closely related to performance
and ability. Work performance is the basic factor that determines
the wage level and raises. The remuneration of the employees of the
Company is determined with reference to market survey and in view
of the development needs of the Company to match their capability,
contribution and competence. Annual discretionary bonuses will also
be provided based on individual performance as an incentive for
their contribution. The Company also makes contributions to pension,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund for its employees in
accordance with national regulations.

Every progress made by the Group is closely related to the efforts of
its employees. The Group also allows its employees to share the fruits
of success in its development in order to ensure that employees can
receive values fairly based on their contributions.

Working Hours

In order to help its employees strike a balance between work and life,
the working hours of the employees of the Group are in compliance
with the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC and the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC. Under the working system of the Company,
office staff work 40 hours per week and production staff work in shifts
and take turns to have holidays. Sales staff work irregular hours. If any
employee is required to work overtime, he/she will be compensated
correspondingly by the Group in accordance with the relevant PRC
labour laws and regulations. The employees’ days off and statuary
holidays are in compliance with the requirements of the national
labour laws.
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Staff Structure

We encourage and respect diversity. The Group has employees of
different genders, ages, skills, educational background, industry
experience and other qualities to achieve an optimum structure and
balance.

Rights and Benefits of Employees

While creating economic benefits, the Group also actively protects and
safeguards the interests of its employees and improves the welfare of
its employees. It attaches great importance to improving the sense of
belonging of its employees and increasing its cohesion.

All employees of the Group are entitled to paid leaves. In addition to
the statutory holidays, its employees also receive bonuses, allowances,
subsidies and benefits provided by the Group in accordance with
the relevant systems of the PRC and the Group. In addition to basic
medical insurance contributions, the Group also makes commercial
accident insurance and supplementary pension contributions as well
as provides unionised mutual aid hospitalisation insurance for critical
iliness for its employees and medical insurance cover for its female
staff so as to complement the basic medical and pension insurance
contributions. Furthermore, the Group reimburses those employees
who meet specified conditions for a certain proportion of their medical
expenses to reduce their burden. During the reporting period, the
Group visited its sick and retired employees and provided them with
care and assistance in the form of money and supplies.

The Group has established a labour union and a workers’ representative
assembly in accordance with the law, aiming to protect the lawful
interests of all of its employees and provide free-flowing communication
channels for its employees. In addition, the Group keeps every
employee informed of its latest development and actively listens to
their opinions and suggestions through its office automation platform
(the "OA Platform”), corporate emails, internal periodicals, bulletin
boards and questionnaires, and takes relevant remedial measures
to tackle problems that are of concerns to its employees in order to
protect their interests.
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In order to enrich the leisure activities of its employees, the Group
has established a badminton association, a football association and
a basketball association, providing its employees with sports venues
and entertainment facilities including basketball courts and badminton
halls for weekly activities, and holds amateur team competitions with
Group companies, business partners and communities from time to
time. Moreover, it publishes the “New Liwah” ( {¥13Z#) ) internal
monthly magazine, and operates a Wechat public account named
“Gather at Lansen” ( {EZBA4E) ) to enrich the cultural life of its
employees. During the reporting period, the Group had organised over
40 activities including basketball games, badminton games, hiking,
African drum activity, with approximately 1,000 participants, which
have built a platform for its employees to exhibit themselves and
conduct communication while relieving their pressure and enriching
their leisure time.

Staff Health and Safety

Employees are the most important assets and resources of the Group.
As such, the Group always puts the health and safety of its employees
in the first place. It protects the production safety of its staff, and is
committed to providing its employees with healthcare as well as a
safe, healthy and protected working environment.

The Group's production workshops are all installed with equipment
for dust, noise and poison protection. Signs of dangerous goods are
set up, and the use of those goods is regulated. For special equipment
which may cause occupational injuries, periodic maintenance and
annual check-up would be performed and those equipment can only
be used by authorised personnel. For toxic and harmful workplaces that
may cause danger, warning signs are set up and contingency plans are
formulated. Its production staff members are provided with appliances
for labour protection including protection equipment to minimise the
damages to the health of its employees. Besides, the Group holds
annual drills for fire evacuation, self-help, first aid and escape on a
regular basis to enhance the awareness of safety and self-protection
of its employees and prevent accidents at work.
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The Group has formulated the Employee Health Management
Procedures ( (X TEREE#HIE) ) and the Hygiene and Personal
Health Condition Management Procedures ( {Br4EFIA B2 RE
IE#FE) ), and organises all staff to receive regular comprehensive
health examinations each year. For its employees at positions with
occupational hazards, the Group strictly implements the requirements of
the Law of the PRC on Prevention of Occupational Diseases and relevant
labour protection regulations, and strives to lower the incidence of
occupational diseases through regular health examinations and resting.

The Group made every effort to improve its employees’ working
environment and facilities and had been dedicated to providing a
warm and comfortable working environment for all of its employees.
The Group advocates smoke-free office and strictly prohibits smoking
in the factory area. In addition, the Group has canteens at different
workplaces, providing various healthy food with rich nutrients every
day.

Staff Training and Development

The Group values talent and provides a platform for its development by
conforming to the philosophy of common development of the Group
and employees. In 2017, it continued to build a learning-oriented
organisation and promote an all-round talent training system covering
new employee induction, special production management training,
special sales and marketing training, general skills training, a leadership
development plan, team building training, etc, which had produced
positive results.

In 2017, the Group, according to the different needs, held more than
30 phases of face-to-face training covering over 60 courses, with totally
over 2,300 participants and over 20 hours of training per person.
Employees’ ability and quality were obviously enhanced. As the backup
talent pool continues to expand, the Group will be able to meet the
training needs of all kinds of talents under the new situation.
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Case One: New Sales Employee Induction System

In 2017, The Group optimised the new employee induction system.
New recruits firstly took a 2-month self-study e-learning online course
(corporate culture/group policy and system/disease and product
knowledge/financial knowledge/SFE policy). After regional teaching and
passing the examination online, they went to the Ningbo Headquarters
for a 7-day new employee intensive training. The course covered team
integration and development training, business etiquette, sales skills,
presentation skills, disease and product knowledge, sales promotion,
development and ability model, explanation of Group policies, etc.
Senior regional managers also gave one-on-one counselling and
practice examination. The examination result was generally good. In
this way, newcomers further improved their professional knowledge,
skills and awareness of teamwork and fitted into the team faster.

Case Two: Special Multi-level Marketing Training System

Based on the requirements of different positions for core competence
and employees’ experience and ability, the Group has set up learning
path of professional knowledge for sales and marketing positions
in 2017. For specialists, courses at Level One included “Regional
Management” and “Sales Skills”. More than 60 employees participated
in level one in 2017. There were 50 participants attended Level Two
courses on “Advanced Sales Skills” and “Advanced Presentation Skills".
For senior specialists and star specialists, 45 participants attended
the “Management of Key Customers” course. 50 regional managers
joined courses such as “Targeted Talents Selection”, “Field Guidance”
and “Business Plan” accordingly. In addition, we held training for
the Marketing Department on how to develop product strategy and
marketing plan in 2017. This multi-level learning path provides tailored
training for employees of different abilities and needs and further
inspires their learning enthusiasm with better training effect.
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The Company has established a dual-channel career development
system in view of the rules and needs of its development. The dual-
channel development system stipulates assessment standards for staff
promotion and is closely related to the remuneration, learning and
development of its employees. It has built a fair, healthy and broad
development platform for all employees and encourages them to
constantly improve their own job skills. Based on the nature and
features of positions, the Group designs four career paths for staff
holding positions in operation and management, marketing, specialised
technique and skilled operations respectively.

Constant Promotion of “Professionalism + Management” Dual-
channel for Mutual Development of Employees and the Group

In 2017, the Group continued to optimise the construction of specialised
skills channel for employees and further practised dual-channel sales
and marketing career development. The Group issued Sales Position
Development Channel and Promotion Certification Regulations in
accordance with the four career paths, built a promotion system based
on ability and enriched evaluation tools. It held channel promotion
certification twice during the year, with a total of 30 people joining
case study role playing and interviews, in which 20 got promotion by
certification. The Group will continue to promote the construction of
“professionalism + management” dual-channel, constantly expand its
application, build all kinds of development platforms for certified staff
and promote mutual development of staff and the Group.

Supply Chain Management

Supply chain management is an important element of the Group's
quality control system. The Group conducts its pharmaceuticals, devices
and medical cosmetic products operations according to the business
scope approved by the drug administration authorities and has obtained
all relevant and valid business licences. Qualifications of suppliers and
customers will be scrutinised rigorously during our procurement and
sales processes to ensure they all operate within their business scope.
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The Group has always been adhering to the principle of quality is the
life of a brand. Supply chain management is an important element
of the Group’s quality control system. The quality of all purchasing,
selling and storing products and all raw materials, auxiliary materials,
packaging materials and products of the Group on the supply side
meets relevant regulatory requirements of the Drug Administration
Law of the PRC, GMP, Pharmacopoeia of the PRC, Good Supply
Practice for Pharmaceutical Products, Regulation on the Supervision
and Administration of Medical Devices and Good Supply Practice for
Medical Devices. The Group conducts its pharmaceuticals, devices and
cosmetics operations according to the business scope approved by the
drug administration authorities. It follows regulatory requirements of
GSP and formulates Suppliers and Products Selection and Management
System, Newly-operated Suppliers Selection and Management System,
New Products Selection and Management System, Procurement
Management System, and Selling and Retrieval Management System.
Its operating procedures are increasingly optimised. The Group is very
selective about its suppliers, including their operation qualification,
scope of business and products to ensure the compliant operation of
its suppliers and customers.

All suppliers, customers and products must pass the strict selection of
our Quality Control Department according to product category, relevant
laws and regulations and relevant audit and assessment systems for
newly-operated suppliers, new products and new customers. All
relevant information of the suppliers, customers and products must pass
the verification on the website of the Food and Drug Administration.
Only those suppliers, customers and products which have gone through
our audit and assessment processes may be listed on the Qualified
Suppliers Directory, Qualified Customers Directory and Qualified
Products Directory, respectively.

The Group holds annual purchasing quality appraisal on all of
its products. It has signed Quality Assurance Agreement with
pharmaceutical suppliers and other related product suppliers as well
as service companies. It also assesses the quality control systems of
suppliers and customers every year. At the same time, it pays close
attention to quality information on the website of China’s Food and
Drug Administration. If the supplier does not pass the assessment
or serious quality issues are identified, the Group will suspend the
supplier’'s product provisions and its downstream customers’ product
delivery immediately and freeze their qualification in its system to
ensure the quality and safety of our products.
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In 2017, the Company procured raw materials, auxiliary materials and
packaging materials from 150 suppliers with geographical distribution
as follows: 99 in east China; 8 in south China, 11 in north China; 14 in
central China; 9 in south-west, 2 in north-west; 4 in north-east and 2
from abroad. Furthermore, there were 8 product cooperative suppliers,
among which 5, 2 and 1 were pharmaceuticals, devices and cosmetics
suppliers respectively, with geographical distribution as follows: 4 in
east China; 1 in central China; 1 in north-east; and 2 in north-west.
The 10 suppliers all successfully went through the supplier and product
qualification assessment and supplier quality management system.

Product Quality

Policies, Laws and Regulations Concerning the Industry

The main products operated by the Group including pharmaceutical
products, medical devices and medical cosmetics, etc. are all in strict
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations of the PRC
regarding product safety, which mainly include:

° Drug Administration Law of the PRC

° Rules for Implementation of Drug Administration Law of the PRC

. Law of the PRC on Product Quality

. Good Manufacture Practice of Medical Products (China Food and
Drug Administration)

o Measures for the Reporting and Monitoring of Adverse Drug
Reactions (Ministry of Health Order No. 81)

° Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products

o Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices

° Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices

° Regulations on Cosmetics Hygiene Supervision
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The Group markets and promotes its products in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in order to further protect the rights and
interests of consumers and our brand image. The Group strictly abides
by relevant laws and regulations such as the Advertisement Law of the
PRC, Measures for the Administration of Medical Advertisements, the
Drug Administration Law of the PRC, Measures on the Examination and
Approval of Medical Advertisements, so as to ensure the advertisement
and marketing activities meet the requirements of such laws and
regulations and to prevent the occurrence of illegal advertisement
which may bring adverse impact to the Group and its brand image.

Quality Management System
The Group has established its core principle for quality management
s "Quality determines the life of a brand, while responsibility is
the guarantee of quality”, and has established a complete quality
management system. The Group is properly organised with various
departments, each of which has its own responsibility for quality and
has quality control personnel with appropriate qualification who will
be responsible for the training and appraisal of relevant staff. We have
formulated a system of good supply practice and operation code for
our products in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC and will make relevant amendments according to applicable
laws and regulations and the actual practice of the Group.

The Group is equipped with storage and logistics equipment and facilities
and computer management system which meet the requirements of
GSP, and would regularly checks such cold chain equipment. In 2017, in
order to ensure the temperature control of the Group’s cool warehouse
meets regulatory requirement, the Group purchased a batch of new
central air conditioners.

The Group has implemented a GMP management model for the whole
supply chain, and has adopted a strict inspection and acceptance
system for the processes of procurement, delivery and storage of raw
materials, in which any goods failing to meet required quality standards
will be returned immediately. Quality control personnel has absolute
discretion to refuse any unqualified products identified during the
manufacturing process so as to ensure all products met relevant quality
requirements before leaving the factory. The Group has formulated
relevant product recall procedures to make sure that products which
have safety defects and may endanger or adversely impact the users’
health can be recalled in a timely manner so as to ensure the safety
and effectiveness of the products for the consumers.
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The Group has obtained the following certifications:

BHEHEE

Issuing Agency

BERREmEREEEERER

China Food and Drug Administration
Intertek

Intertek

Intertek

Intertek

LBRARBERAF

NSF Shanghai Co, Ltd.

Quality Control in Operation

The Group has personnel responsible for quality control in the whole
process of procurement, acceptance, entering the warehouse, storage,
and delivery out of the warehouse. In the event of anything abnormal
in respect of product quality, responsible staff will report the relevant
problems to the quality management department for handling. If
sold products are found to have quality problems through customers’
enquiries and complaints and such problems are material, we will
notify the downstream clients to suspend the sale of products and
recall the sold products.

Enquiry, complaint and recall management in relation to product
quality

Our quality management department is responsible for enquiries
and complaints handling regarding product quality. Consumers or
downstream customers may give feedback and make complaints
through the Company’s sales personnel or customer service department.
The quality management department will inspect and verify the causes
based on the feedback before making a reply. As for production issues,
the quality management department will forward the issues to suppliers
or manufacturing enterprises for their inspection and reply. Preventive
and follow-up measures will be formulated for repetitive issues.
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Intellectual Property Rights Protection

For the products of the Group, pharmaceuticals and medical devices
come with electronic monitoring codes and anti-tampering codes
respectively, which can be used to track the products and prevent
counterfeit products from using the Company’s brand. Meanwhile, the
Group has always attached great importance to the maintenance and
protection of intellectual property rights. The Group has been registering
its trademarks and brands and actively declaring patent protection for
years. Generally, the Group applied for new patents every year and
possesses 53 registered trademarks and 19 valid patented inventions
to date. In December 2015, the Group passed the assessment of the
Enterprise Intellectual Property Management Standard and obtained
the intellectual property management system certificate.

Consumer Privacy Protection

The Group respects consumer privacy and would answer consumers’
enquiries truthfully while committed to keeping the contact information,
addresses and personal information of consumers confidential.

Anti-corruption

The Group has established rules that no bribes, commissions, rebates,
illegal political donations or other improper payments shall be provided
or given to any person. Business entertainment shall be legal, reasonable
and in compliance with the codes for customers and the relevant
departments. In order to avoid conflicts of interest, any financial
activities or other activities not conducted in the course of performing
duties for the Group must be legal and shall not conflict with the
performance of duties for the Group’s employees. None of the Group’s
financial resources, assets or influence shall be abused, and its good
reputation shall not be tarnished. The Company will promptly report
any person suspected of a crime to the relevant departments.
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In addition to ensuring the staff’s integrity and discipline in system
development, the established internal supervision system also produces
restraint to employees’ unlawful acts. An internal audit committee
has been established under the board of directors, which is fully and
independently responsible for supervising the internal audit of the
Group. An internal audit department has also been established to
monitor the reconciliation of book accounts and actual situations,
safety of assets, economic benefits as well as other related economic
activities and provide risk alert from the perspective of risk control, so
as to effectively control and lower operational risks. During the year, for
the sake of system implementation, the internal audit department of
the Group from time to time conducts random inspections on whether
employees have exercised self-restraint in light of the Group’s anti-
corruption rules and regulations for serving as a warning to the staff.
In addition, the Group strictly prevents unlawful operations including
bribery, fraud and corruption and facilitates the operation of the Group
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations.

During the reporting period, these rules and systems played a positive
role of control and prevention in risk control and anti-corruption
management of the Group, and no major defects were identified.

Social Welfare

Becoming a corporate citizen with a sense of social responsibility is
the cultural philosophy that the Group has been following. Helping
the poor and supporting the public welfare undertakings are also one
of the significant social responsibilities. The Group corporate actively
contributes to the society during its continuous development. To
promote social welfare is not just an obligation of the Group, but also
necessary for its growth and development. The Group has achieved a
high degree of integration of its operation with its social responsibilities,
and actively participates in promoting social welfare with the aim of
“taking responsibility”.
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Since its inception, the Group has established funds under its name
and special scholarship funds, and has actively participated in “city
sunshine” (B3PS Y¢) activities, which were utilised to help with the
learning, life and medical treatment of the children of migrant workers
each year. It vigorously participates in environment protection and
green public welfare activities including environmental improvement,
sewage treatment, flood prevention, water drainage, water supply
and water saving. While repaying the society, the Group also actively
guides its employees to participate in various charity organisations and
create a spirit of taking pride in becoming volunteers.

In 2017, the Group socially initiated a public welfare activity, “Small
acts of charity at the glamour peak of the Everest”. Through activities
of “Sweeping Everest” and “NETOPS of pairing rubbish with dustbin”,
the Group appealed to people from all walks of life to protect the
ecological environment and jointly safeguard the healthy and beautiful
balance of ecological environment starting from little things, such as
throwing rubbish into dustbins.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Li, age 56, is the Executive Managing Director and Chief
Executive officer of the Group. Mr. Chen has over 25 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen has
been General Manager of Alfa Wassermann China since July 2014. Mr.
Chen worked for a number of internationally renowned pharmaceutical
companies in the past. He was previously General Manager of China
with Abbot from June 2009 to November 2012 and Assistant Vice
President of Wyeth Pharmaceuticals Shanghai from 2004 to June
2009. During the period from 1992 to 2004, Mr. Chen also worked in
GlaxoSmithKline, Hoechst China, Bayer China, BASF Knoll China and
Roussel China. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in Medicine
(Doctor of Internal Medicine) from Tongji Medical University in 1983.

Mr. HOU Song, age 42, is an executive Director and the chief financial
officer of the Company. Mr. Hou joined the Group in September
2015. Mr. Hou has over 15 years of experience in finance, accounting
and corporate management in Hong Kong and mainland China. Mr.
Hou has many years of experience in financial management in large
pharmaceutical companies. He had worked as deputy finance officer of
the Company from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Hou graduated from Sun Yat-sen
University with a bachelor of economics degree in accounting in 2000
and, in 2015, obtained a MBA degree in the MBA Program in Finance
offered by The Chinese University of Hong Kong in collaboration with
Tsinghua University. Mr. Hou is a qualified accountant in the People’s
Republic of China.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, age 64, is a non-executive Director and chairman
of our Company. He is also executive Chairman and is the Chairman
of the Executive and Remuneration Committees of Cathay International
Holdings Limited (“Cathay”), a company listed on the London Stock
Exchange and founder of the Cathay Group, which has over 20 years’
history of business and investment focused on the PRC. He was born
and educated in Beijing. He graduated from the Beijing University of
Technology in 1982. He also has a degree in Business Administration.
Mr. Wu acted as a senior executive in government scientific institutes
in the PRC from 1982 to 1985 and as managing director of two
newly established state owned financial institutions in the PRC from
1986 to 1989. Since 1988 Mr. Wu has, through companies, invested
in and developed the Landmark Hotel (now called Crowne Plaza
Hotel & Suites Landmark Shenzhen) in Shenzhen and established the
Cathay International Water Limited group of companies, which made
substantial investments in public utility and infrastructure in the PRC.
Strategic shareholders were JP Morgan, Singapore Technologies, UBS,
Banco Santander and Nomura JAFCO, and this business was once the
largest foreign investor in water and waste water treatment projects
in the PRC with net assets of over US$1 billion.

Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 78, is a non-executive Director
and former chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay
International Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a non-
executive director of Cathay International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hunt was formerly the
managing director of Aliant Capital, an investment company in Hong
Kong. Mr. Hunt, a US citizen, spent 24 years with Bank of America in
international management and lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior
vice president and area general manager for Bank of America located
in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt was president of the American Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to
the Hong Kong Government’s International Business Committee, and
from 1989 to 1991 was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s
Advisory Committee on Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee of
the American Chamber of Commerce’s Charitable Foundation. Mr.
Hunt also served as a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange from November 2004 to June 2011.
From 2012 to 2015, Mr. Hunt was a director and Chief Executive Officer
of Solar Plus (HK) Limited, a private investment company incorporated
in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Duke
University in 1961 and a master’s degree in international affairs from
Columbia University in 1963.
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Mr. LEE Jin Yi, age 60, is a non-executive Director and deputy chairman
of our Company. Mr. Lee joined the CIH Group in January 2010 and
is the chief executive officer of CIH. Mr. Lee has extensive experience
in the banking industry and held various senior management positions
with major financial institutions over the past 20 years. Mr. Lee has
been a director of Xiamen City Commercial Bank. Prior to joining the
CIH Group, Mr. Lee was the managing director and chief executive
officer of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for five and a half years
and a director of Fubon Financial Holding Company Limited. Prior to
that, Mr. Lee was the managing director and China senior country
officer of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and chairman of the Hong Kong
Management Committee of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. Mr. Lee was
appointed as an independent director of Taichung Bank on 22 June
2011. Taichung Bank is listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee
obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from Harvard
University in 1984.

Ms. LIU Xuezi, age 41, is a non-executive Director of our Company.
Ms. Liu joined Cathay International Holdings Limited in 2002 and
has been working in the corporate development department and
asset management department. She is currently vice president and
co-head of asset management of Cathay. Ms. Liu have over 14 years
of experience in mergers and acquisitions and asset management.
Before joining Cathay, Ms. Liu was head of the Asia-Pacific region of
a US network infrastructure company, responsible for the start-up and
expansion of the company’s business in Asia. Ms. Liu graduated from
the School of Economics of University of San Francisco, majoring in
business administration, in 1999.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael, age 66, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has over 33 years’ experience in external audit, IT audit,
training, accounting and finance, company secretarial and corporate
administration, MIS management, internal audit, information security,
risk management and compliance. Mr. Chan is a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants; and a fellow and specialist in
information technology of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is also associate
or member of the following professional bodies: The Hong Kong
Computer Society and the Life Management Institute. He is also a
certified information systems auditor with the Information Systems
Audit and Control Association and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Mr. Chan is the chief executive of C&C Advisory Services
Limited, senior advisor of New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and
was an adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University from 1 September 2010 to 31
August 2014. On 19 February 2016, Mr. Chan was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of K.H. Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1557). He was also being appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of
Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Ltd. (formerly Chun Sing
Engineering Holdings Limited) (stock code: 2277) on 10 June 2016.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 0164) on 18
August 2017 and Chairman of the Audit Committee on 26 September
2017. Mr. Chan has worked at CMG Life Assurance Limited (formerly
Jardine CMG Life Assurance Limited) from 1991 to 1996 and his last
position was general manager, compliance. He was the head of internal
audit of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group Limited from 1996 to 2000,
the head of compliance in Greater China, managing director of DBS
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from 2001 to 2003, the group financial
controller of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the
director of Quality Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head of
group compliance of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Limited from December 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with
a higher diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976.
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Mr. TANG Chiu Ping, Raymond, age 69, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Tang joined our Group on
9 April 2010. He has been in the executive search field since 1985
when he joined the Hong Kong office of Russell Reynolds Associates.
Mr. Tang was formerly chairman, Greater China at Russell Reynolds
Associates until late 2008 when he retired from the industry. Mr.
Tang was educated in the United States at Tufts University in Boston,
Massachusetts where he obtained a bachelor of arts degree in 1972;
and he graduated with a master’s degree in public health from the Yale
University School of Medicine in New Haven, Connecticut in 1975. Mr,
Tang has served as a member of non-governmental organisations such
as the Hong Kong Council of Academic Accreditation and Vocational
Qualifications.

Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 68, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our Group
on 10 February 2011. He has over 30 years’ experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his pharmaceutical
career with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig
Pharma Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008 and was
the chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008. He
was responsible for its operations servicing more than 125 international
research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region.
Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma in
2008. From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of
Invida Group Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of
Australian Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher was
the Asia representative on the board of directors of the International
Federation of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002 to 2008. He was
regional director of Asia for the Pharmaceutical Wholesale Division
of Alliance Boots and was also a director and chairman of the Board
of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Corporation from 2011 to 2013. Mr.
Horlacher was a non-executive member of the Advisory Board of BSN
Medical, a global medical device company based in Hamburg, Germany,
from January 2013 to August 2015. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969
from Montana Institute in Switzerland and from Union College in
South Africa in 1972.
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Senior Management

Mr. DU Du, age 40, is the business development director of the Group.
Mr. Du joined the Group in June 2015 and has 17 years of working
experience in pharmaceutical distribution. He had worked for ten years
(seven years and three years in Pfizer and Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma
Co., Ltd. respectively) in pharmaceutical commerce. He had worked in
Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma as manager of national commerce. Mr.
Du graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with a post-graduate
MBA degree in 2014.

Mr. ZHAO Yu, age 45, is the Group human resources director who
has over 19 years’ human resources management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Lansen Group, he worked
at Pfizer, Roche and Merck in senior human resources positions. Mr.
Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in business management from
Renmin University of China in 1996.

Mr. HONG Zhou, age 49, is the general manager of Ningbo Liwah.
Mr. Hong joined our Group in November 2015 and has over 25 years’
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Hong previously worked
for Jiangxi Food and Drug Administration, Novartis, Bayer and Abbott.
Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor’s degree in analytical chemistry from
Jiangxi University (now Nanchang University) in 1989.




EEQRE

Report of the Directors

EXe((E5e ) ) MARENSFCFERSE
RBZE-Z—tF+-_A=+—-HIEFEZL
BEREAMBHRE

FEEK
ARFERRERBAT « AEEWBAF
BEAT Y EES maw%AMWﬁﬁmzm
}19 -

XEBERDIK
AEBHZ-_T—tF+_A=+—HIFE
CEBHENFISHZEAEGMEMEEKE
EO

FRABMBREIRMNEKA17EM(H0.533
i) 2 A EFRE B » & 5 17,306,0008 L( 4
2,217,000 7T) ©

i%iﬁ% AR - NENA-THRBIIAR

N AR A M 2 B R A &A% 3,587 1L (490.46
E) 2 RBRE - é.\§+14 857,000 JT( 49
1,909,00037T) * MEZARFIRE R BT E1TH A
BAEH &R 7‘371%\

BE&EE
REBZYE  BEREERFRAZEEHFE
R ERE TSR R MIFE15 -

fﬁ TA

AEBZEFF BN RS P HRAM 526

% 7K
RRABBRARFRZ BB FBEHIR LGS
KW E24 -

1 75 ¥

BE-Z—tF+-A=+—BLFE 52
T&ﬁ&ﬂ%% FILEBE - REREE A
AAME EMESH -

ARBZA DGR

R-Z—+F+-A=+—R0  ERASH

SRREHE  AREZASREESER

20,090,000 7T ° AR B FEERFER 2 &
BEN A P IRERMIEE25

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 31 and
19 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 95.

An interim dividend of HK4.17 cents (approximately US0.53 cents) per
share amounting to HK$17,306,000 (approximately US$2,217,000) in
aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.58
cents (approximately US0.46 cents) per share to the shareholders on
the register of members of the Company on 20 June 2018, amounting
to HK$14,857,000 (approximately US$1,909,000) in aggregate, subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to US$20,090,000. Details of the
movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers accounted for approximately 31.9% (2016: 24.4%)
of the Group’s total sales and sales from the largest customer included
therein amounted to 10.2% (2016: 8.6%).

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 35.1% (2016: 38.0%) of the
Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 11.8% (2016: 14.6%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Managing Director:
Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 March 2018)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 31 January 2018)

Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
(appointed on 30 March 2017)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
(resigned on 30 March 2017 as Chairman but remains as a Director)

Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Tang Jun (resigned on 30 March 2017)
Ms. Liu Xuezi

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Chen Li, Mr. Hou Song and Ms. Liu Xuezi will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to The Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

BHEC#T LR NEITEE- &6y

EEnE &5 EBEREAE RAz2BDHE

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of Director Capacity shares held Company

FEBELE BEEERA 500,000 0.12%
Mr. Lee Jin Yi Beneficial owner (57 %)
(Long position)

Stephen Burnau Hunt%c4 En#EA A 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner (4F2&)

BREXFBEBEEN R-E—LtFt+ A=+
—B HMEEE  HSTBRABMEBEAR

AREHEAFREER 2 TR - 8RR
D SABHEE h A RIEE 77 M E (DI 35215k
AT RS EMREIORR - RIE LT
TAERETESFXINRETRANGAR
A MBS R P E TR SRR -

(Long position)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executive nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2017 which was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Directors’ Share Options in Cathay International
Holdings Limited
Cathay International Holdings Limited (“CIH"), the Company’s ultimate
holding company, operates share option plan for the purpose of
aligning the interests of executives and employees with those of
shareholders of CIH and to enable the development of CIH and its
subsidiaries’ business by attracting, retaining and motivating personnel

with appropriate skills. Mr. Lee Jin Yi,

Mr. Tang Jun and Ms. Liu

Xuezi, the directors of the Company, were granted share options in
the capacity as employees of CIH. The share option plan of CIH was
adopted on 3 June 2010 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Details of the share options granted to the Company’s directors to
subscribe for shares in CIH were as follows:

Number of share options

R=B-t% R=B-tE ) )
BEfE -A-H FREN  t+=R= -I- EI BRERLAH BRETEDE BRETRE
At Lapsed t Date of
1 January during 31 December grant of Exercise price of
Name of Director 2017 the year 2017 share options Exercise period of share options share options
(Wzta) (1)
(Note a) (pence)
FERLE 2,300,000 (2,300,000) — ZZT-_5@A=R “T-REMA=RZE 29.88
Mr. Lee Jin Yi “E—+t+ENAZH
3 é?”l 3 A;ril 2015 to 2 April 2017
4,142,353 (4,142,353) — mE P_T] —A - ;—tﬂ]ﬂ—aé 37.275
Z-NE=R=1-H
1 Agnl 2014 1 Ag\l 2017 to 31 March 2019
2,250,000 - 2,250,000 F=A=1-H NE=R=1—-H% 20.00
72 TE=f=1AH
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
8,692,353 (6,442,353) 2,250,000
BBEE 200,000 (200,000) — ZZT-Z5@A=H ZZ-RNEMAZRE 29.88
Mr. Tang Jun —“T—+5MAZH
3 éé)”l 2012 3 Agil 2015 to 2 April 2017
320,000 (320,000 — ERA—H “E—t+45MA—HE 37.275
“E-NF=A=1-H
1 Agnl 1 A%ril 2017 to 31 March 2019
200,000 - 200,000 nE=A=t+-H -\F=A=1-A% 20.00
—_ 7 _— 7 E H -‘_ H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
720,000 (520,000) 200,000
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Number of share options
i R=-tf ) )
Bxps -A-H FERXH  TZA=t- H BRERLAH BRETEEE BREGTEE
At Lapsed t Date of
1 January during 31 December grant of Exercise price of
Name of Director 2017 the year 2017 share optlons Exercise period of share options share options
(M) (L)
(Note a) (pence)
FEE S e 360,000 (360,000) — “¥-"%WA=A “T-RFMA=-RE 29.88
Ms. Liu Xuezi —E—+EMAZH
3 Agnl 2012 3 Agril 2015 to 2 April 2017
500,000 (500,000) - FMA—-H ZZtEMA-HE 37.275
ZE-NFZA=1-H
1 Agnl 1 Agil 2017 to 31 March 2019
330,000 - 330,000 RE=A=1- /\i—ﬂ =t—-H% 20.00
—_ 3 —% E H + El
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
1,190,000 (860,000) 330,000
Misx Note:

(@) BREZBBERHDAERLAHNE=FHRERW %
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BR Eatsh - REREMER - AAR - HiER

NG SR Cll = PN ANy = PNCL 2359
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EENEREGNP2ER
REFELEE R EFZAZTHEZET
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oo BRAREER S | —8 THECAHEBE 2R
SHETEIN  MEART - HIZRAR - AR
WMEB AR kMB AR AETO T RESNMEE
EEHENERERIEEBEREEEAEREY
BEAREG  THRED  RERIFEREME
BDAB o

EEAH

RAFER - FREAAF 2 HRAFEAL
DEBOERBRITRERRMOS O IRF
E o

(a) The vesting date of share options is at the expiry of the three year period from the
date of grant, subject to satisfaction of performance conditions.

Except for the above, at no time during the year was the Company, any
of its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, appointed as a non-executive Director and chairman
of our Company on 30 March 2017, holds approximately 62.94%
of Common and A Shares interests in CIH as at 31 December 2017.
Save as disclosed in the transactions in relation to CIH under the
section headed “Connected Transactions” of this Annual Report, no
transaction, arrangement and contract of significance, to which the
Company, its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of

the Company.

BEE®T ERARE T
RERAB Mzt B3 EEREAE RAEZBDHE
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held Company
BRERBELERHE(PE)BRAF 1 BEmEs 209,820,000 50.56%
([ElREIPR B G2 (R ED) ) Beneficial interest (578)
Cathay International Pharma Manufacture (Long position)
and Distribution (China) Limited
("CI Pharma China")
BREREEEYRMREZERAF 1 REEE#ER 209,820,000 50.56%
([EHREEREE]) Interest of a controlled (irE)
Cathay International Changchun corporation (Long position)
Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical
Limited (“CIC")
BB AR RS (PR AR AR 1 REEERER 209,820,000 50.56%
([ B R B i R S22 (R D) 1) Interest of a controlled (5F&)
Cathay International Biotechnology and corporation (Long position)
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited
("Cl Biotech & Pharma China”)
BRREREBEAR LR ([EREREL]) 1 REEEEE 209,820,000 50.56%
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited Interest of a controlled (578)
("CIP™) corporation (Long position)
EREBREMEMERAR(ERRRLEY 1 XErE#ER 209,820,000 50.56%
BT 1) Interest of a controlled (7 R)
Cathay International Biotech Company corporation (Long position)
Limited (“CIB")
Cathay International Holdings Limited 1 REEEER 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIH") Interest of a controlled (578)
corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Enterprises Limited 2 XYEEfER 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIE") Interest of a controlled (1 E)
corporation (Long position)
RiAE 3 E2REEFAIMAREGR 209,820,000 50.56%
Wu Zhen Tao 2@ A (5F8)
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Founder of discretionary
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust

(Long position)
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Notes:

(1) These shares are held by Cl Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to 18% by
CIC and 82% by ClI Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned as to 100% by
Cl Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in turn wholly owned by
CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly owned by CIH. Therefore,
CIC, ClI Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH are deemed to be interested
in these shares.

(2) CIH is held as to approximately 61.74% of Common and A Shares by CIE. Therefore,
CIE is deemed to be interested in the shares held by CI Pharma China.

(3) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen Tao
for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family Trust”).
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be interested
in the shares held by CIE.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors and
Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and the connected person(s) (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company constitute connected transactions of
the Company. The Company regulates and manages such transactions
in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 3 September 2013, Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction Technology Limited
(“Liwah Zhiti”) entered into an entrusted manufacturing framework
agreement (the “Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement”)
with Yangling Dailyhealth Bio-engineering Technology Company Limited
("Yangling Dailyhealth”) and Xian Haotian Bioengineering Technology
Company Limited (“Xian Haotian") (collectively referred as “Suppliers”).
According to the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement,
Liwah Zhiti agreed to buy and the Suppliers agreed to produce and sell
the plant extract products to Liwah Zhiti. It is contemplated that the
plant extract products will be used by the Group for the production
of key ingredients for healthcare products to be sold in the market
by the Group.

On 17 December 2014, Liwah Zhiti and the Suppliers entered into
a renewed entrusted manufacturing framework agreement (the
“Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement”) for a
further term of three years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017
(subject to any early termination or extension by mutual consent) to
renew the supply arrangements.

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("Ningbo Liwah”), Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology Company
Limited (“Jilin Haizi”) and Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
("Lansen (BVI)") entered into the cross guarantee agreement, pursuant
to which the parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide
certain guarantees to banks in relation to the bank facilities of each
other during the effective period.

On 20 September 2016, Lansen (BVI) entered into an entrusted
processing framework agreement (the “Entrusted Processing Framework
Agreement”) with Natural Dailyhealth Holdings Limited (”Natural
Dailyhealth”). According to the Entrusted Processing Framework
Agreement, Lansen (BVI) agreed to assist or procure its subsidiaries
to assist Natural Dailyhealth to process the plant extract products.

On 31 March 2017, Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty Tech Limited (“Ningbo
Lansen Beauty”) entered into a distribution agreement with Changchun
Botai Medicine & Biological Technology Company Limited (“Botai”)
pursuant to which, Botai agrees to sell and appoint Ningbo Lansen
Beauty as the distributor of the Collagen Injectable Fillers in the PRC.
The term of the distribution agreement runs from 31 March 2017 to
31 March 2018 (subject to any early termination or extension which
may be agreed by the Parties).




ERGWE
Report of the Directors

ERLEEEAGBRASENEZTLEEERW

e
RES

=5/
—E—=FhHA=H
(ZZE—NE+—A++RES)

Wi &7
(a) ARAZEMBARIEMERE

(b) CIH(ARRFHERBER)EEEEWE QA
BERERE &

(© CH(KRRAREBRER)EZE2ENBAR]
PARMER -

RHMHEE
REZALEERBIELERZNRTLEEER
W EARH(ERL TR - LEEREA
RERTERHESBEEYRNER - RFE
TEERBZLEZNRALEEERBRLE
REREBER  MyEERTESERHE
TREEMENER  HESTERERILE
EREHERER °

EBERE

BRI EERRBRAEEERGRLERD
RLEERBRAEESBENEYRENE
i RBUEEARBENE  2BZEE
mE MG ERRE o LEERSKRRER
RE=ZTHEBNRAELERBIZF - EHE
THEAMREBEE @ HEEATSEMEL
F=HHEAAERARETORELE -

Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement and Renewed
Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement

Date
3 September 2013 (Renewed on 17 December 2014)

Parties
(@) Liwah Zhiti, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

(b)  Yangling Dailyhealth, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH,
a controlling shareholder of the Company; and

(¢)  Xian Haotian, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement and
the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, Liwah
Zhiti may, during the Term (as defined below), acquire from the
Suppliers, the plant extract products on an order-by-order basis. There
is no minimum purchase amount under the Entrusted Manufacturing
Framework Agreement and the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing
Framework Agreement, and Liwah Zhiti has no obligation to acquire
the plant extract products from the Suppliers nor are the Suppliers
required to provide them to Liwah Zhiti.

Pricing basis

For the plant extract products to be purchased by Liwah Zhiti from the
Suppliers under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
and the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, the
selling price per unit of the plant extract products shall be determined
by reference to the prevailing prices of the products in the market on
an order-by-order basis. Liwah Zhiti will follow its existing standard
purchasing procedures with third party suppliers in negotiating and
determining the purchase price with the Suppliers, which will involve
obtaining fee quotations from other independent third party suppliers
in the market and comparing them with those from the Suppliers.
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The supply of the plant extract products by the Suppliers shall be:

(@) on normal commercial terms and upon terms which are not less
favourable to Liwah Zhiti than terms available to Liwah Zhiti from
independent third parties supplying similar plant extract products
specified by Liwah Zhiti; and

(b) at a competitive pricing determined on arm’s length basis by
reference to the prevailing market price of the plant extract
products.

Term

The term of the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 3 September 2013 and expired on 31 December
2014. The Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 1 January 2015 and will expire on 31 December 2017
(subject to any early termination or extension by mutual consent),
unless terminated by either party by giving the other written notice
of termination at least one month prior to the effective date of such
termination.

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the approved annual caps
and the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement are set out below:

BEZ—+F+T-_A=+—RHIEFENFELR BHE—
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2017

AR #29,000,0007TC
(#)4,700,000%7T)
RMB29,000,000
(approximately US$4.70 million)

E—+tF T A=+ HILEFENERR S8
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2017
#) AR #879,0007T
(#7130,000%7T)
approximately RMB879,000
(approximately US$130,000)
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Cross Guarantee Agreement

Date
24 June 2016

Parties
(@) Jilin Haizi, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH;

(b) Ningbo Liwah, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and

(¢)  Lansen (BVI), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Cross Guarantee Agreement, Jilin Haizi has agreed,
during the Effective Period (as defined below), to provide guarantees
for the obligations under the bank facilities obtained or to be obtained
by Ningbo Liwah (the “Jilin Haizi Guarantees”). Pursuant to the Cross
Guarantee Agreement, on a reciprocal basis, Lansen (BVI) has agreed,
during the Effective Period, to procure its subsidiary, as appropriate,
to provide guarantees for the obligation under the bank facilities to
be obtained by Jilin Haizi (the “Lansen (BVI) Guarantees”) (the Jilin
Haizi Guarantees and the Lansen (BVI) Guarantees, collectively, the
“Guarantees”).

Guarantee Commission

The annual guarantee commission rate of 0.5% is determined and
agreed with reference to the prevailing market rate of the commission
charged by guarantee service providers, which is around 2% per
annum, after taking into account of the factors such as reasons for,
and benefits of the Cross Guarantee Agreement.

Effective Period
The effective period of the Cross Guarantee Agreement will commence
on 1 July 2016 and will expire on 30 June 2019 (the “Effective Period”).
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Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the approved annual caps
and the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the Cross Guarantee Agreement are
set out below:

HIWEEER
Jilin Haizi Guarantee
AR #130,000,0007T
(#919,895,000% 7T.)
RMB130,000,000
(approximately US$19.9 million)
BBV &= ERNAE
The maximum commission fee payable by
Lansen (BVI)
AR#650,0007T
(#796,000% 1)
RMB650,000
(approximately US$96,000)
BAA (BVI) 1R
Lansen (BVI) Guarantee
AR #130,000,0007T
(#719,895,0003%7T.)
RMB130,000,000
(approximately US$19.9 million)
HEWEE R ENAS

AR#650,0007T
(#796,0003%7T)
RMB650,000
(approximately US$96,000)

HE_Z—+tF+_A=+T—HBLFENFELR
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2017

The maximum commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi

HE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—BILFENERRSEH
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2017
EWEERER
Jilin Haizi Guarantee
AR %130,000,0007T
(#719,895,000% 1)
RMB130,000,000
(approximately US$19.9 million)
BAEBV)ENES
The commission fee payable by
Lansen (BVI)

# N #329,0007T
(#750,000%7T)
approximately RMB329,000
(approximately US$50,000)

BAAE (BV) #E(R
Lansen (BVI) Guarantee
AE#122,460,0007T
(#718,741,000%7T)
RMB122,460,000
(approximately US$18.7 million)
ENGEEMNAE
The commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi
#NE#577,0007T
(#788,000%7T)
approximately RMB577,000
(approximately US$88,000)

RIEETARBIE14A381K - EFGEEFAR
ARBMAARE 2 HERERHETE T
HEZRF - ZBMERAEZTSERZFEF
ZEER/R - BUNFNTEFCENFERE
Ry RZBEHRE - UHERZEXHIIART]
K=& AT EEBRERRE - REEERR
ERERDZWMBIEHETL - MABRGKER

FABLHARR AR BRFIE -
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group. The
auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to the
Board. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor and
have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into by the
Company in the ordinary and usual course of its business on normal
commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.




ERGWE
Report of the Directors

EEMTERGE
=§:]
—E-RFNLAZTH
=

(@) BAEBV) @ ARFWNEEWBAR &

(b) Zf# - —ZKMHCl Biotechnology X BA &
(BVD D BIFFBE70% K30% AEH A A -

RIBEZFEMTERG - FRANBEIA
ZEBEBVDIREEF BRI TEYRNE

O
on °

EEEGE
MITEHGARAIMA T R TEEERE - S8H
SR (BVI) N T2 an &9 2 8RR AN SN hN_E st i
R10%E IR ([INT& 1) »

MTETEBEE T ERREE - (DA
REBERRERTSERRDNEBREZ
— ARQ)BAAE(BV) RERN R I THER B
ATRETHX ST EFELLHEER -

RAEMTERGHENBERHNR T —RFNHA
—t+RME YR _FE-NF+_A=+—H
AHEENRBAREANRIESER) - £
—TTINERRATAR L ek - MBEE DR IEEAE
—EAREEREBMLETT -

Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement

Date
20 September 2016

Parties
(@) Lansen (BVI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and

(b)  Natural Dailyhealth, a company which is 70% owned by Cl
Biotechnology and 30% owned by Lansen (BVI).

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement, Natural
Dailyhealth may, during the term entrusted Lansen (BVI) with the
processing of the plant extract products on an order-by-order basis.

Pricing basis

The process fee will be charged on a cost-plus basis, representing
all costs incurred by Lansen (BVI) in relation to the processing of the
product plus a mark-up rate of 10% of such costs (the “Processing
Fee").

The Processing Fee was arrived after taking into consideration that (1)
the cost-plus basis is one of the common pricing standards adopted in
plant extract markets; and (2) the Lansen (BVI) Group does not need
to incur marketing expenses in the transactions contemplated under
the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement.

Term

The term of the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement will
commence on 20 September 2016 and will expire on 31 December
2018 (subject to any extension which may be agreed by the Parties),
unless terminated by either Party by giving the other written notice
of termination at least one month prior to the effective date of such
termination.
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Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the approved annual caps
and the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the Entrusted Processing Framework
Agreement are set out below:

BHez—-Z

AR %30,000,0007T
(#74,500,000%7T)
RMB30,000,000
(approximately US$4.5 million)

—tF+ZA=T—HIFENFE LR
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_Z—1+F+_A=T—"HLFENERXSEHE
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2017
#NE#25,027,000
(#93,712,000% L)
approximately RMB25,027,000
(approximately US$3.7 million)
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The execution of a distribution agreement

Date
31 March 2017

Parties
(@ Ningbo Lansen Beauty, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company; and

(b)  Botai, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the exclusive distribution agreement, Ningbo Lansen Beauty
will act as the distributor of Botai in respect of the Collagen Injectable
Fillers during the Term (as defined below) and it may, during the
Term, acquire from Botai, the Collagen Injectable Fillers on an order-
by-order basis.

Pricing Basis

The unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers to be purchased
by Ningbo Lansen Beauty under the distribution agreement is agreed
at a fixed price throughout the Term and is arrived at after arm’s
length negotiation between the Parties. Such unit purchase price is
determined with reference to:

(i)  the prices of two comparable collagen injectable fillers products
in the PRC market;

(i) the product feature and competitive advantage of the Collagen
Injectable Fillers; and

(iii)  the procurement benefits given by Botai to Ningbo Lansen Beauty
in promoting and marketing the Collagen Injectable Fillers during
its product launch cycle.
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Further, to ensure that the unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable
Fillers is no less favourable than those comparable products available
from independent third parties, the marketing department of Ningbo
Lansen Beauty has followed its standard market research procedures
by conducting the relevant research on factors, such as the market
demand within the non-surgical cosmetic market and the trend of the
sales volume of comparable products. It has also taken reference of
the prices and specifications of comparable collagen injectable fillers
products from other independent third parties in the market.

The final unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers is mutually
agreed by the Parties after arm’s length negotiation, but in any event,
the unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers is no less
favourable than those of the comparable collagen injectable fillers
products in the market, and the purchase of the Collagen Injectable
Fillers by Ningbo Lansen Beauty under the Exclusive Distribution
Agreement is on terms which are no less favourable to Ningbo Lansen
Beauty than those under a typical exclusive distribution agreement of
similar products.

Term

The term of the distribution agreement commenced on 31 March 2017
and will expire on 31 March 2018 (subject to any extension which may
be agreed by the Parties), unless terminated by either Party giving the
other written notice of termination.

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the approved annual caps
and the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the distribution agreement are set out
below:

HE—ZT—+tF=-A=+—H=
ZE—+tF A=+ —HILLBENFE LR
Annual caps for the period from
31 March 2017 to 31 December 2017
AR#28,600,0007T
(#94,150,000% 1)
RMB28,600,000
(approximately US$4.2 million)

HE—_ZT—tF=A=+—HZ%
—E—HF+ - A=T-HIEBENERZ S S8
Actual transaction amounts for the period from
31 March 2017 to 31 December 2017
#NEE#8,231,0007T
(#91,221,000%7T)
approximately RMB8,231,000
(approximately US$1.2 million)
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The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board confirming
that the above continuing connected transactions:

(i)  have received the approval of the Board;

(i) have been priced in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(iii)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv) did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2017, the
related party transactions disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements either did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, or only constituted fully exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions by virtue of the de minimis
exemption under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
compiled with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
liabilities of the Directors and executive officers in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

A permitted indemnity provision (within the meaning in Section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) that provides for indemnity against liability incurred
by Directors and executive officers of the Group is currently in force
when the Report of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and was in force throughout the year ended 31 December
2017 for the benefit of the Directors.

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Wu Zhen Tao
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the board (the “Board"”) of directors (the “Directors”)
are devoted to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance as the Board believes that effective corporate
governance practices are fundamental to enhancing shareholder value
and safeguarding interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders.
Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound corporate governance
principles that emphasise a quality Board, effective internal controls,
stringent disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to
all stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has also complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code"”) set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, except with a deviation from paragraph A.5 of the
Code. Under paragraph A.5 of the Code, the Company should establish
a Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. Currently, the Company had
not established a Nomination Committee and had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has
been delegated the functions of a Nomination Committee since its
listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2010. As such, the
Board is of the view that the members of the Remuneration Committee
possess the necessary experience and knowledge to discharge the
functions of a Nomination Committee. The Board shall review the
composition and operation of the Board Committees from time to
time and shall consider establishing a Nomination Committee if such
need arises.

E1.2 of the Code stipulates that the chairman of the Board should
attend the annual general meeting. During the year, Mr. Wu Zhen Tao
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 19 June 2017 due to illness. However, the deputy chairman
as well as the non-executive director, Mr. Lee Jin Yi, was authorised by
the chairman of the Board to chair the said annual general meeting.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and
the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions adopted
by the Company.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the Group.
Management manages the businesses of the Group, including the
decision making of daily operation within the delegated power and
authority given by the Board. Management is accountable to the Board
for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and Board Committees meetings. Draft minutes and
written resolutions will be circulated to all Board members or Board
Committees members for review and comment within a reasonable
period of time. Final version of the minutes and written resolutions
will be provided for record within a reasonable period of time and the
signed copies are kept in the Company’s minutes book maintained by
the Company Secretary for Directors’ inspection.

As at 31 December 2017 and at the date of this report, the Board was
comprised of one executive managing Director, one executive Director,
four non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. A description of the Directors is set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section from pages 41
to 46 and on the Company’s website.
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was comprised of the following members:

As at 31 December 2017 and at the date of this report, the Board

BREZEE BRIE—REREM
AEEEHRENAE AEZNAH
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election

EE Directors to the Board as Director

BEEHTES: Executive Managing Director:

BN EE(TTHAEE) Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer) —E-NE=F—H —
(RZE—N\F (appointed on 1 March 2018) 1 March 2018
—A—BEZT)

HITESE . Executive Directors:

ERSLE(TTHAEHR) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) ZE-=FNRNAE ZEBE-—AEA~AZt+—H
(RZE-N\F (resigned on 31 January 2018) 9 April 2013 21 June 2016
—A=1+—HB#&%)

EREE (I HEE) Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer) “Z-R"FZA=Z+H ZE-R"ESAZ+—H

FHTES:
REBEE(EE)
(RZT—+F
—A=+THEZMHF)
Stephen Burnau Hunt’t 4
(RZZ—+F
“A=tHEEEE -
BNEERES)
TEBEE(EERE)

BEEER-_T—L5F

—A=THET)
L4t

BYFHTES:
BRECIEEAE
HeRF et

Fritz Heinrich Horlacher%t 4

30 March 2016

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
(appointed on 30 March 2017)

—F-tFZA=1A
30 March 2017

Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt —E-TFWPANAR
(resigned on 30 March 2017 9 April 2010
as Chairman but remains as a Director)

Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) ZE-TFWNANH

9 April 2010

Mr. Tang Jun —E-TFEWPANAR
(resigned on 30 March 2017) 9 April 2010

Ms. Liu Xuezi - F=A=+H

30 March 2016

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael —ET-EFNANAE
9 April 2010
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond ZZE-TFWANA
9 April 2010
Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher —Z——%ZA+A

10 February 2011
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21 June 2016

—Z—+FXATIE
19 June 2017

—Z—+FRATNHE
19 June 2017

ZT-R"ERAZT—H
21 June 2016
—E-=FRATAA
15 May 2013
—E-RERAZT—H
21 June 2016

“E-RFARAZ+—H
21 June 2016
—E-RERAZ+—H
21 June 2016
—E—tFRA+NA
19 June 2017
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The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to
time, taking into account the requirements under the Listing Rules
and the scope and nature of operations of the Company, to ensure
that the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views
and facilitate effective decision making. The Directors come from
diverse background with varied expertise in finance, human resources
and pharmaceutical business fields. The Company has maintained on
the Company’s website and on the website of the Stock Exchange
an updated list of its Directors identifying their roles and functions.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills
and business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk through their
contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board Committees’
meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one
of them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
Listing Rules. With reference to such confirmations, the Company, to
its best knowledge, considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors fulfill the guidelines on independence as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and all to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The chairman is responsible for managing the Board, steering the
Board to formulate overall strategies and business development plans,
ensuring the receipt of sufficient, complete and reliable information by
each Director and the receipt of reasonable explanations for the issues
raised at the Board meetings. The chief executive officer is responsible
for managing the business of the Company and implementing
policies, business objectives and plans formulated by the Board, and
is accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation. The
senior management team is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the Group under the leadership of the chief executive officer of
the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive managing Director Mr. Chen Li has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
1 March 2018. The executive Director Mr. Hou Song has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing 30 March 2016. Each of the non-executive Directors and
the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing
9 April 2016 except for Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
and Ms. Liu Xuezi whose commencement date were 30 March 2017, 10
February 2017 and 30 March 2016 respectively. All Directors appointed
by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board
shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the first general
meeting after appointment.

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Chen Li, Mr. Hou Song and Ms. Liu Xuezi will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in the
forthcoming AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had not
established a Nomination Committee but had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
members from time to time identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships or
senior management. In considering the nomination of new Directors
or senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates as well as the independence
requirement in the case of an independent non-executive Director.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted procedures for nomination
of a new Director or senior management, pursuant to which (1) an
interview will be conducted with the prospective candidates; and (2)
the Remuneration Committee will consider and, if thought fit, make
suitable recommendations to the Board.
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Changes of Directors and Senior Management
The Remuneration and Executive Committees have approved:

- the resignation of Mr. Liu Bang Min as an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer, effective from 31 January 2018;

- the resignation of Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt as the chairman of
the Board, effective from 30 March 2017;

- the appointment of Mr. Chen Li as an executive managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer, effective from 1 March
2018;

- the appointment of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as a non-executive Director
and Chairman, effective from 30 March 2017; and

- the resignation of Mr. Tang Taibin as the general manager of
Ningbo Lansen, effective from 28 February 2018.

Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company from time to time updates and
provides training to the Directors, and organises seminars on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations
relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided with a
comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior executives.
Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors
regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised of the latest changes
in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the
Group conducts its businesses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has organised
a training session covering the topic of listed companies’ corporate
transaction. All Directors attended the training. In addition, individual
directors also participated in other courses relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director or further enhancement of
their professional development by way of attending training courses
or via online aids or reading relevant materials.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the inclusion
of the following corporate governance duties into the terms of reference
of the Board:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report.

Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity policy
in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, and professional experience.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of the Group
provides information to Directors on a regular basis regarding the
activities and development in the businesses of the Group. The
Directors have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December
2017 with the attendance of each Director as follows:

HEEERY
ETERRE HE R

No. of meetings

attended/No. of

EE Directors meetings held Attendance rate
HITEE . Executive Directors:
RERSLE(TTHAER) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) 4/5 80%
(RZE-N\F (resigned on 31 January 2018)
—A=1+—H#&%)
EREE(IHEE) Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer) 5/5 100%
FHITES : Non-executive Directors:
REBFE(LE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) 4/4 100%
(RZ2—+F (appointed on 30 March 2017)
ZRA=+REZMA)
Stephen Burnau Hunt’t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 5/5 100%
(RZE—tF (resigned on 30 March 2017
ZRA=+HBITEE as Chairman but remains as a Director)
BNBETAES)
TEBREEERE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) 5/5 100%
BELE Mr. Tang Jun 0/2 0%
(RZE—1F (resigned on 30 March 2017)
ZA=THEE)
BEE L+ Ms. Liu Xuezi 5/5 100%
BYEHITES Independent non-executive Directors:
FRECEERE Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 5/5 100%
HAFrE Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 5/5 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst&  Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 5/5 100%
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With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to
the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much notice
as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
a Director who has a material interest in any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward to the Board
for consideration, will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution
and such Director is not counted as quorum.

The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include
the following:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to take responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving the financial
statements and appointing and liaising with the Group's external
auditors;

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report;

- to liaise with all regulatory authorities and organisations on all
matters relating to the Group, and monitor changes in their
policies relating to and affecting the Group; and

- to ensure accountability towards and sufficient communication
with the Group's shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of the executive director and senior management was held
to discuss the performance of the executive director.

The Board also discussed the policy for the corporate governance
of the Company and duties performed by the Board and the Board
Committees (see below).
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each committee
shall provide their recommendations to the Board based on their
respective terms of reference. The decisions of the Board on such
recommendations shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms
of reference of these committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director. Mr. Chan
Kee Huen, Michael, an independent non-executive Director, currently
serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
is expected to meet regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The major duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
the following:

- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor,
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and address any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditor;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards; and

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of
the external auditor to supply non-audit services;

- to review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, annual reports and half-year reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained therein; and

- to review the effectiveness of the financial reporting, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

/3
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2017 with the attendance of each member as follows:

wm

HESRRE
HITEERE HE=E

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
ERZEERERS Name of Audit Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
BB R E(LE) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 3/3 100%
TEEEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 3/3 100%
BFirE Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 33 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherfc% M. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3/3 100%

BE-T—tF A= T—HILFE - B
ZARE

REXEFEHERHERE MIMNSZE
MEMDHXERFEXEARBHAQ
T BRAREELATE - UHBRENTE
MR AR BT ERARE SRR

RERE Y SN EEA M REN
EPRT

ERSNE X BET RO R R RR - AR
SONERZBEINEENEETSIRHERZ

o
EHRNRABEZRS - BEEL—H
WETAARHNEZZNERIBER &

BRI N ARE AR EE N AR E RN
FRERMS -

YFMHEES

ARBNFHNEESH="RBIUIIFNTESR
MAIFMITESENX - BUIFFRTEZHEF
EEBRRFNEESLIE - FHNEZESEMTE

HeE 855K -

74

Annual Report 2017 4 ¥}

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee had:

- reviewed with management and external auditor on the interim
results and annual results and related announcements including
the related disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to submission
to the Board for approval;

- discussed with management on significant judgements affecting
the Group’s consolidated financial statements;

- reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and recommended the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor;

- reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports including the
status of implementing recommendations from the previous
reports; and

- reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors.
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond, an independent non-executive Director,
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee is expected to meet regularly at least
once per year.
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The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and
authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
and placing such recommendations before the Board concerning
the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to the Directors
and senior management from time to time;

- to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;

- to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

- to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing
Rules or any applicable law;

- to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

- to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors and senior
management;

- to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and senior
management; and

- to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience) of the Board at least annually; and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to implement the Company’ s corporate strategy.
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HE_T—tH+= ﬂ =+—HIEFE - #@M The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended

ZESGRITTMAEE  MEKENLEE) 31 December 2017 with the attendance of each member as follows:
NN
HESBERE
BIEBRY HE=E

Name of Remuneration

No. of meetings
attended/No. of

FHNEEERERS Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
R LE(EE) Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond (Chairman) 212 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt5t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 2/2 100%
TEBELLE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 212 100%
BRECIEEE Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 2/2 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher5c&  Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 2/2 100%
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assessed the performance of the executive Director and the senior
management;

pursuant to provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code, reviewed the
remuneration structure/package of the Directors and the senior
management, and made recommendation to the Board on their
remuneration;

determined policy for the nomination of Directors;
discussed the implementation of the Board diversity policy; and
made recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-election

of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.




HEZZT—+F+-A=1+—HIFEEEH The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’ remuneration

BEAMANT - for the year ended 31 December 2017:
Hft 5 B
Other emoluments
ge 2R BB
we  NENEA Fgke RIS @t
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefit
benefits Discretionary plans
Fees in kind bonus contributions Total
TErn TER TERn TEx

US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000

EHRTESR: Executive Managing Director:
BHRZE—N\F Chen Li

—A—BEZT) (appointed on 1 March 2018) - - - - -
HOES Executive Directors:
ZER(MZZ—/\F  LuBang Min

—A=1+—HEHT) (resigned on 31 January 2018) - 196 - 15 211
B Hou Song - 137 110 2 249
FHTES Non-executive Directors:
REB(MZZ—+F  WuZhen Tao

ZAZ+REZT) (appointed on 30 March 2017) - - - - -
Stephen Burnau Hunt  Stephen Burnau Hunt 38 - - - 38
FEE Lee Jin Yi - - - - _
HE(M_Z—+F Tang Jun

ZA=THEE) (resigned on 30 March 2017) - - - - -
AEZ Liu Xuezi - _ _ _ _
BUFHTES Independent non-executive Directors:
BaE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - - 35
GRS Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 35 - - - 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher  Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 33 - - - 33

141 333 110 17 601
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2017:

——tf
2017
AR

No of individuals

£%1,000,000/ 7T

1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 72,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001#7T%2,500,000/% 7T

Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1

BITEES
ARANMITEZEEHMENITES - WA
HITESN RFEFAK  FATESFS
BRERSWITRESER -

EFEeCANYATZESQUHEESHBER
B JREEERTHRY  BERES -
HWOTZBENIZRGELBERRRNAMBEL
HBREEE - BB FERPRIARR
B - BULFEG BRI RELMHIAR -

HWITZEEeNBRTFEAETER  METHE
AEBRMOEEBAMEERE  URER
WHEREEBETES SR LA A S RES -

78 Annual Report 2017 F 3k

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of two executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and one non-Director. Mr. Lee
Jin Yi, a non-executive Director, currently serves as the chairman of
the Executive Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and
authorities delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Executive Committee include reviewing the financials and
financial related matters, assisting in developing annual and medium-
to long-term corporate strategies, reviewing and approving new
business development plans, and reviewing and approving research
and development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and to
monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions and
strategies set by the Board.




HEZZT—+tHF+-A=+—HIFE ' #7T The Executive Committee held nine meetings during the year ended

ZEEBTTAREH  MBKEMNEFEENR 31 December 2017 with the attendance of each member as follows:
W
HESRRE
HITEERE HE=E
No. of meetings
Name of Executive attended/No. of
HTZEERERS Committee members meetings held Attendance rate
TEBTE(EE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman) 9/9 100%
AEREENZ=ZZE-N\F Mr. Liu Bang Min 9/9 100%
—A=1+—HB#&HE) (resigned on 31 January 2018)
ks Mr. Hou Song 9/9 100%
AEZERL Ms. Liu Xuezi 9/9 100%
s+t Ms. Tao Fang Fang 9/9 100%
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements for the
Group are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
87 to 94 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor's Remuneration
During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group’s auditor
until the conclusion of next AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees paid/payable to
BDO Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as follows:

B EAER

REHEE Services rendered Fee paid/payable
FEx

Us$’000

ZERS Audit services 229
IERZERT Non-audit services 55
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The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review and other
professional services in relation to the continuing connected transactions
and a major transaction.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Leung Tsz Chun, plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
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All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company Secretary has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for monitoring the internal control system of the
Group and on an ongoing basis has the responsibility for reviewing its
effectiveness including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound internal control system to safeguard the interest
of shareholders and the Group’s assets.

Several department heads of the Company met with the internal audit
department regularly to ensure a sound internal control system is in
place and maintained. To enhance the knowledge of relevant staff of
the Group, training will be provided to them in the matter of relevant
rules and applicable laws as and when appropriate.

The risk management and internal control system of the Group are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a bottom-up
approach for the identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at
all business unit levels and across all functional areas.

During the process of risk assessment, the Board together with
management is responsible for identifying the risks of the Group
and deciding on the risk levels. An external consultant was engaged
to provide advice and support to the risk assessment process. The
Board is also responsible for assessing and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that are acceptable to the Group when achieving its
strategic objectives. After discussing and taking into consideration the
risk responses, the relevant departments and business units have been
assigned to implement the risk management solutions in accordance
with their respective roles and responsibilities. The identified risks
together with the risk responses have been recorded in the risk
register and the updating and maintenance of which is subject to the
supervision of the Board.
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The key elements of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and document identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

The internal audit department has performed annual internal control
reviews on certain important areas of monitoring including the functions
of finance, operations, compliance and risk management respectively
covering the period of 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 in
compliance with the requirements under Code Provision C.2 of the CG
Code, according to the scope of review agreed and approved by the
Audit Committee.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and risk
assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and agreed
with the Board on the scope of review over the system of internal
controls. The approach of the review includes discussing with relevant
management and staff members, reviewing relevant documentation of
the internal control system, evaluating findings on any deficiencies in
the design of internal controls and developing recommendations for
improvement, where appropriate.

Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting to the
Board. The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal control and risk management processes
are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business. The Board will continue to ensure that appropriate review of
the systems and procedures is being carried out by management from
time to time to maintain a high standard of internal controls and will
make appropriate changes to the internal control system, if necessary.
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Inside information
With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company

- is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO
and the overriding principle that information which is expected
to be inside information should be announced once it is the
subject of a decision;

- has set up an inside information control team to supervise inside
information matters and report to the Board in a timely manner;

- has implemented its own policy and reporting system based
on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission; and

- has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year 2017/2018. The insurance covers them against costs, charges,
expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of corporate activities.

Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

- regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or site
visits) with analysts and investors;

- conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company'’s results;

- the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board,

33
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- the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual reports
and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s and the
Stock Exchange’s websites; and

- the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company'’s website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Shareholder’s Rights
The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and
raise questions to our Directors, management and the external auditor.

The Company will arrange for the Chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend the
AGM to exchange views with shareholders and answer their questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM,
provided that their shares have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company. The notice of AGM will be given to all
shareholders at least 20 clear business days or 21 clear days (whichever
is longer) before the meeting.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2017 annual
general meeting (“2017 AGM"), held on 19 June 2017 at Admiralty
Conference Centre (ACC), 1804A, 18/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. Except for Mr. Wu Zhen Tao
who was unable to attend due to illness, all Directors and the external
auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, attended the 2017 AGM.

At the 2017 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of final
dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor,
the authorisation to grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase
of shares were proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all
resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2017 AGM were passed. The
Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
was appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast
at that meeting. The results of the voting by poll were declared at
the meeting and published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles of
association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at the date
of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paidup capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F,
Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months
from the said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with
the Company’s Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or EGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

o At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include 10
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an EGM.

o At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or any resolution of the
Company in an AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and the
public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to the
Company via the following means:

Hong Kong
Please contact our Company Secretary at:

By phone (852) 2828 9285

By post Suite 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone (86) 574 8804 6316

By post 228 Xinfeng Road, Gaogiao Industrial Park,
Haishu District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, PRC
(Postal code: 315174)

By e-mail ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the Company’s
website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 186, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

(Refer to Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements and
the Group’s critical accounting estimates and judgements in relation
to impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives set out in Note 5)

The Group had goodwill of US$6,824,000 and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives of US$21,251,000 as at 31 December 2017.
Management have performed an impairment review under International
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”. Recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined based on value in use
calculations, which include significant assumptions and judgements
made by management concerning the estimated future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and because this
area involves a significant degree of judgement and estimation made
by management, in particular the estimation of future cash flows and
discount rate.

See Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements where
the key assumptions used in the impairment model have been disclosed.

Our response:
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives included:

—  Discussing cash flow projections with senior management;
— Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry and by considering the

historical accuracy of budgeting; and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of a
reasonably possible change in discount rate and cash flows.
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Impairment assessment of trade receivable due from a major
customer

(Refer to Note 21(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the
Group’s critical accounting estimates and judgement in relation to
impairment of receivables set out in Note 5)

As explained in Note 21(a), included in trade receivables of
US$41,702,000 was an amount due from a major customer of the
Group in the amount of US$6,217,000 (the “Outstanding Balance”).
This balance was derived from the sales of a new cosmetic product
to the major customer in October and November 2016, for which
the original credit term of sale was 90 days. The major customer is a
major distributor of cosmetic-related products in the PRC, but due to
various factors, sales of the new product to its final customers have
not gone as well as hoped.

The Group has agreed to an extension of payment of the Outstanding
Balance to 31 December 2018. The Group considered that the major
customer should have the financial ability to settle the Outstanding
Balance even if it is unable to sell the remaining products it has bought
from the Group. The fact that repayment date is 12 months from the
reporting date has required the Group’s management to assess the
range of possible outcomes of this arrangement and the timing of the
settlement. Based on this assessment, management has concluded
an impairment provision of US$682,000 was necessary against the
Outstanding Balance.

The assessment of the impairment of the Outstanding Balance is a
subjective area and requires application of considerable judgement, the
knowledge and background information of the major customer and the
use of estimates. Management have looked at the settlement pattern of
the major customer, its creditworthiness and financial condition and the
state of the market for the new product when making its assessment.

We have identified management’s impairment assessment of the
recoverability of the Outstanding Balance due by the major customer
as a key audit matter because the assessment requires considerable
amount of judgement and estimation.
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Our response:
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
of trade receivables included:

o Obtained direct confirmation from the major customer of the
Outstanding Balance;

o Reviewed the original copy of the extension of payment agreement
and ensured it was properly authorised by an appropriate
representative from the major customer;

o Carried out on-site inspection of the major customer’s cold
storage premises subsequent to year end to ensure the remaining
unsold products were all accounted for and kept in good and
saleable condition;

o Carried out several discussions with the Group’s director and the
Group's senior management team to understand and challenge
their assessment of recoverability of the Outstanding Balance as
well as their knowledge and understanding of the major customer
and its financial position;

o Obtained reasonable comfort of the financial resources and
strength of the major customer to settle the Outstanding Balance
from independent third party sources;

o Reviewed correspondence with the Group’s legal advisors on
the likely outcome of any legal proceedings against the major
customer (should this be necessary) in the event the Outstanding
Balance is not settled by 31 December 2018; and

° Performed our own sensitivity analysis on the range of reasonably
possible outcomes related to the expected future cash flows
arising from the extension of payment arrangement agreed
between the Group and the major customer and its effect on
the impairment provision required.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Tze Wai
Practising Certificate Number: P06158

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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BHE-_Z—+E+-_A=+—RI&EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E—tfF —E—RF

2017 2016

(i3 FEx FE1

Notes us$'000 Us$'000

(B#7IR)

(Re-presented)

WA Revenue 6 89,484 94,824
HERAR Cost of sales (37,595) (41,048)
ER Gross profit 51,889 53,776
HA A Other income 6 1,270 2,120
HERDHERY Selling and distribution expenses (30,873) (29,279)
TEAE Administrative expenses (12,830) (15,586)

e RR Profit from operations 9,456 11,031
HA e &N/ (AX) Other non-operating income/(expenses) 8 10,874 (3,221)

TESMTAMATEESE),/ Fair value (loss)/gain on derivative

Wz financial instrument (564) 1,129
BB Finance costs 9 (4,016) (3,367)
il N GRSyl Share of post-tax profit of associates 1,295 1,454
BRET S AR R Profit before income tax 10 17,045 7,026
FiERiRY Income tax expense 12 (1,416) (3,190)
FEERA Profit for the year 15,629 3,836
BA A B8 4% BE A [R A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 9 5
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E—tF —ERF
2017 2016
(i3 TER TEr
Note us$'000 Us$'000
Hin2mEukz Other comprehensive income
HEmgEEF 2 Em 7IEH ¢ Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
—BREFINEREEZE R AR - Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations 7,777 (9,550)
HE WA R B D ELSEFE Exchange differences reclassified to
MoBEEENELEE profit or loss upon partial disposal
of an associate 355 -
FEEMEERE Other comprehensive income for the
(FNBRFAIE) year, net of tax 8,132 (9,550)
FEZHRGAE Total comprehensive income for
the year 23,761 (5,714)
KATEE AELEF Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 15,629 3,836
EATREEAELZEKIEEE Total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the
Company 23,761 (5,714)
E AL
US cents US cents
BREMN — EXREE Earnings per share — basic and
diluted 14 3.8 0.9
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZT—tF+-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2017
—E—tfF —E—RF
2017 2016
(i3 FEx FE1
Notes us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
E S Property, plant and equipment 15 31,432 30,907
BT T ERIR Prepaid land lease payment 16 2,024 1,963
BWEE Intangible assets 17 24,056 24,342
BE Goodwill 18 6,824 6,824
TESBMTA Derivative financial instrument 35 - 2,280
NN 5 Interests in associates 19 35,417 39,424
99,753 105,740
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 13,059 14,576
B 5 R E b fEUGRIE Trade and other receivables 21 63,997 65,197
m]— P B & R AR B 3K Loan to an associate 22 7,519 =
B T ERIE Prepaid land lease payment 16 55 52
TEemTE Derivative financial instrument 35 1,840 =
SRR TER Pledged bank deposits 23 32,631 27,095
RekRE&EEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 8,891 10,102
127,992 117,022
BHEE Total assets 227,745 222,762
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEXR#E Capital and reserves
KAREEAELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
N Share capital 24 4,150 4,150
MR B Share premium 25 18,945 18,945
SN (1 Foreign exchange reserve 2,131 (6,001)
ETERE Statutory reserve 9,233 8,927
REHT Retained profits 67,560 64,355
RS Total equity 102,019 90,376

BAEBEZERER DA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=ZF—+tF+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2017

—E—+tF —T—RF
2017 2016
M sE FEr FET
Notes us$'000 Us$'000

FREBERE Non-current liabilities
RIENIAEE Deferred tax liabilities 27 2,000 1,876
2,000 1,876

REBEE Current liabilities

a0 Borrowings 26 99,135 105,098
mEREAE Current tax liabilities 1,096 1,402
85 RE AR FIA Trade and other payables 28 22,219 22,784
Hihema®E Other financial liabilities 29 1,276 1,226
123,726 130,510
#EE Total liabilities 125,726 132,386
HERREE Total equity and liabilities 227,745 222,762
REEE (BEB)FE Net current assets/(liabilities) 4,266 (13,488)
BEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 104,019 92,252

FOSEIS6HMGAMBHEREN —_F—/\5F  The consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 186 were
A tt+tBHEZEESHENEETZE - WH  approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

IFATREKESE : March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:
EF EF
Director Director
RR H (E9N
CHEN Li HOU Song
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_ZT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

RA&  BROEE  HERE  OiERE  REER Es
Foreign
Share Share  exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total equity
T TEL TEL T TET S
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
(Hi4)  (WaE2s)  (WEE25) (WD)
(Note 24) ~ (Note 25)  (Note 25)  (Note 25)
BE-S-REtZA=t-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2016
RZF-~E-A-Az&H Balance at 1 January 2016 4,150 24,302 3,549 8,344 61,102 101,447
RE(H13) Dividends (Note 13) - (5,357) - - - (5,357)
HEEAENRS Transactions with owners - (5357) - - - (5,357)
ERgH Profit for the year = = = - 3,836 3,836
EEEZRNE Other comprehensive income for the year
-BEBNFBEECERZR - Bxchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations = = (9,550) = = (9,550)
FErANGER Total comprehensive income for the year = — (9,550) — 3,836 (5,714)
SREATRE Appropriations to statutory reserve = = = 583 (583) =
RZE—AE+ZA=T-RzEH% Balance at 31 December 2016 4,150 18,945 (6,001) 8,927 64,355 90,376
BE-Z-tEt-B=+-RALEE Year ended 31 December 2017
RIF—tF-A-RzkR Balance at 1 January 2017 4,150 18,945 (6,001) 8,927 64,355 90,376
RE(M313) Dividends (Note 13) - - - — (12118 (12118)
BERNETRS Transactions with owners - - - — (12118 (12118)
ERRT Profit for the year - - - - 15,629 15,629
EFEM2ENE Other comprehensive income for the year
-BEBNEBEECERER ~ Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations - — 1,111 - - 111
-INHE-RBLAANSHRERENS - Bxchange differences reclassified to profit
BE2ER E’][ =8 or loss upon partial disposal of an
associate - - 355 — - 355
EFREYRLE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 8,132 - 15,629 23,761
HE-FHmBAR Deregistration of a subsidiary - - - (185) 185 -
BRTITRE Appropriations to statutory reserve - - - 491 (491) -
R=E—+&+-A=t—-Hz&# Balance at 31 December 2017 4,150 18,945 2,131 9,233 67,560 102,019
BA A B B4 IR B R A A Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 99
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E—tF ZE—REF
2017 2016
FEx T=Er
UsS$'000 Us$'000
REREEBEZHERE Cash flows from operating activities
BRFTSHE AR Profit before income tax 17,045 7,026
EEE Adjustments for:
BRI AR Finance costs recognised 4,016 3,367
FEMA Interest income (595) (558)
FE(REE & N B 2 R E R F Share of post-tax profit of associates (1,295) (1,454)
BVAERNERRB Provision for impairment of
intangible assets 1,821 -
B SR IR ERRE Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 1,218 233
H At e IR R BB Provision for impairment of other
receivables 277 22
mE - BERSETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 3,056 2,862
TELBMTENDTE(ERE), W Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial
instrument 564 (1,129)
B A & IR Amortisation of prepaid land lease payment 58 59
HEMEAREE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - 10
HEME - BEREEEBE Losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 37 108
B EEME Write off of intangible assets 655 1,546
BIELERE A REE Loss on deemed disposal of
an associate - 300
HE—FB S AR EMOHERAUWEE  Gain on partial disposal of an associate,
(H%HR) net of tax (15,422) -
F &M Write off of inventories 465 =
B EERE Amortisation of intangible assets 574 582
METERERRE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 610 84
BEE BB 2 LEETF Operating profit before working capital
changes 13,084 13,058
FERD Decrease in inventories 1,266 1,690
B MEMEWTIERD (1)  Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other
receivables 3,666 (14,165)
B NEMENFTIECRD), I (Decrease)/Increase in trade and other
payables (1,861) 1,579
BEELEZHE Cash generated from operations 16,155 2,162
BN Interest paid (3,908) (3.311)
BFTER Income tax paid (1,693) (2,552)
mETHEL(FTH)2H4%8  Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
activities 10,554 (3,701)

1 OO Annual Report 2017 £F 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_T—+F+_A=+—HILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

—EB—tF ZE—REF
2017 2016
B s TER T=Er
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
REREZHZAERE Cash flows from investing activities
BRI T 51380 Increase in pledged bank deposits (3,746) (4,992)
BEVE  BEKR Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (2,204) (2,396)
BEEWEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,862) (2,267)
TE M E—RB AN AES  Proceeds from partial disposal of an

B2 FTEIE associate 26,087 =
B E— B Z A RIE DS Transaction costs and withholding tax in

R R 5 K BN connection with partial disposal of an

associate (3,195) -
LS ERESE i A R AR B Dividends received from an associate 225 796
HEWE  BER Proceeds from disposals of property,

FAEFERIE plant and equipment 388 1
A — B & D R BN Loan to an associate (7,335) =
HEMBARBUFESRE  Net cash outflows from disposal of a

subsidiary - (285)
AN Acquisition of an associate - (8,352)
BFIE Interest received 595 558
RETEEL(FTHH) Net cash generated from/(used in)

B&FE investing activities 8,953 (16,937)
REMETHZHERE Cash flows from financing activities
EFRFT{S 2 508 Proceeds from borrowings 26 118,628 120,370
BERER A Repayment of borrowings 26 (127,683) (102,577)
ERARE Dividends paid (12,118) (5,357)
BEZE () EEZHE% Net cash (used in)lgenerated from

JHEE financing activities (21,173) 12,436
BeRREEEMW2FMD  Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,666) (8,202)
FRERASEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year 10,102 18,976
fEREH s w2 Effects of exchange rate changes 455 (672)
FRASRBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of

year 8,891 10,102

BB A4 B8 %537 {8 A R /A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 O]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_T—+F+_A=+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010. The Company’s registered
office is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P. O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is located at Suites 1203-4, 12/F., Li
Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are manufacturing
and trading of pharmaceutical products. The principal activities
of the Group are carried out in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") and are set out in Note 31. There were no significant
changes in the Group’s operations during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The directors
consider the immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company to be Cathay International Pharma Manufacture and
Distribution (China) Limited and CIH respectively.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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2.

—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial liabilities and
derivative financial instrument that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period. The consolidated financial
statement are presented in United States Dollars (“US$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the Company and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs

3.1 Adoption of new or revised IFRSs — effective 1 January
2017

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to IFRSs  Annual Improvements 2014-
2016 Cycle (Relating to
Amendments to IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities)

Except for as explained below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7, Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments do not prescribe a specific method to fulfil the
new disclosure requirements. However, the amendments
indicate that one way is to provide reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from
financing activities. In addition, the transitional provision
set out in the amendments to IAS 7 have been applied and
hence no comparative information is required.

BB A4 B8 %537 {8 A R /A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 03
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective
The following new or revised IFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Annual Improvements
to IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 1, First-
time adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards!

Amendments to IAS 12, Income
Tax; IAS 23, Borrowing Costs;
IFRS 3, Business Combinations;
IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements?

Financial Instruments'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Clarifications to
IFRS 15)!

Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?
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HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HAILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. RAHATRNKEEITBEETHHR 3.
HER (&)

== B P A

3.2 EEMEEARERNFITRES

Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not

Tl%%ﬁﬁ%&ﬂ(ﬂ
R-T—\F—A— ARz RHAKZF

yet effective (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

BRI

2 RZBE-NF-R—BRzERBZF 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
JE HRR A AR

2 ZEBI RN _T—R"F—HA—H 3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods

g2 BB BRRAEN - ERBEHAE
IR BE - RAERZES SR DL
& °

BRI B R ERIE 9% - BT A
BIFR  REERE RS AR
EREENHERTENHRTE 1R
BRARTBEENEDANRERE
MEBEA(EHRAAF) B E
FAYAPRET L& NIRRE LR
EREMEREINHAREERNE

beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments
continue to be permitted.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of

BEMAE RAR(EHReRERHER principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
AR B ER T A —ARIRE SR ANET (the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
2 MEBHNEBRRAFABTER measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the

WEHREAReREUARTEEHE
E AfFEEHNReRERIAIE
NEBLTADNEAFETFAELZMLE
ma= (R AFEFAEMEZEK
= )ETE - BERAURVIZHERET
A E MR EE A FEGFALM S
HE AT ETFFIEEENER

contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and

TA -FEHMEKMERT ALY equity instruments are measured at fair value through
NIEATEESHIABR(EAT profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The Group has assessed that its
BEZFHIAERE])  c AEEEFNH financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and

BRI IRBHK AR A FEZSHT
AEHFEZERMEERN KA
BB HREEIMRERRETELZ
/X*E&H-I—E °

BA & B8

FVTPL will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

2% A FR A 7] Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 05
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3.

For the year ended 31 December 2017
Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Continued)

The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise
and measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or a
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the asset and
the facts and circumstances. The Group expects that the
application of the expected credit loss model will result in
earlier recognition of credit losses.

In addition, IFRS 9 introduces new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in consolidated financial statements.
However, the Group currently does not have any hedge
relationship and therefore it will not have any impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from IAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS
9 retains the requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. There will be no
impact on the Group’s accounting for financial liabilities,
as the new requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at FVTPL, where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
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yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that
an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
IFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts
and related interpretations.

IFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

IFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under IFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting
IFRS 15 on its consolidated financial statements and expects
that the standard will not have significant impact, when
applied, on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to IFRS 15)

The amendments to IFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede IAS
17 Leases and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion
and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, IAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)
IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for offices which are currently classified as
operating leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
over the period of the lease. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease commitment of US$492,000 as set
out in Note 32. The interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset under IFRS
16 will replace the rental charge under IAS 17. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability in respect of all the leases unless they qualify for
low value or short-term leases upon the application of IFRS
16. In addition, the application of new requirement may
result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the consolidated
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses, if any.
The result of the subsidiary is accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the end of
the reporting period. All dividends whether received out of the
investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company'’s profit or loss.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit (“CGU") is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit
or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group'’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below in the section heading “Associates”.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in
associates are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates. When the Group’s share of losses
of associates exceeds the Group's interest in that associates
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes associates. On
acquisition of the interests in associates, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group's interest in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
impairment loss been recognised for the interests in associates
in prior years.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be associates, or when the
investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains interests in the former associates and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a partial interests in the associates is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associates. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associates on
the same basis as would be required if that associates had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associates would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interests in associates
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group
(such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associates that are not related to the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful lives of major
categories of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machineries 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Costs include professional fees, direct costs of construction and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is completed
and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the net sales
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or
loss on disposal.

Prepaid land lease payment

Prepaid land lease payment represent up-front payments to
acquire long term interest in the usage of land. These payments
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on straight-line
method over the lease terms between 48 to 50 years.




‘/Ew/:\ A %ﬁi&%‘%’zﬁui
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HAILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

TESHRRME(H)

BREE(BHERMN RFBERE

4,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs

BIEEE (BERI) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
BYWENEREEV P RNAER © 7 Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially
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useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences when the
intangible assets are available for use. The amortisation expense
is recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

W I ERZEERRBRFER o and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
& K Research and development costs
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An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on an
individual project is recognised provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

o demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

. sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Development expenditure which does not meet the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life are
amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
when the products are available for use. The amortisation expense
is recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses. Capitalised development costs with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually
by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts, irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that have
a finite useful life to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset (or
cash-generating unit), discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets or
cash-generating unit.
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—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwiill) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. If an asset’s carrying amount is decreased
as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised
in profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The
decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces
the amount accumulated in the equity under the heading of
revaluation reserve.

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of any depreciation or amortisation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. All reversals are recognised in the profit or loss immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case any reversal of impairment should be treated as
a revaluation and therefore credited to other comprehensive
income. However, to the extent that an impairment on the
revalued asset was previously recognised as an expense in the
profit or loss, a reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as
income in the profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was acquired. The
Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured
at fair value and all other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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4,

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at
fair value, with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
directly recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets. Fair value
is determined in the manner described in Note 35.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These (including trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at
amortised cost using effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of six months to one year, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified as either “financial liabilities
at amortised cost” or “financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss”.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial
assets (including borrowings, trade and other payables) and are
recognised when the Group becomes party to the contractual
obligations of the instrument. They are initially recorded at fair
value, net of issue costs. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial liability is either held for trading or
is designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with IAS 18, Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the future cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.




‘/Ew/:\ A 47777 i&%‘%’zﬁui

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TESHRRME(H)

eRMIA(E)
AU TER (4E)
RIFERCRMEER - EEREEEDZK

&FEJ‘&{JEFL/(&EEA;HJJ@EEEHQ ﬁEu/u
%%m%ﬁm2ﬁw 5 ok 5 1R 4R HE 2 R Y
= RIERER

CRIBENBEENFTHNETERT
RS EMEERIEER - RIEERNE
BRAEERHEREENRENREZHENE
B RIERER o

e
FETIFEAATER - YR EEARK
FIFR - KABEREEMB R (NER)E
BB THRARSEEXE R JIE MR
FREANKEEER - RARINEFE
E - ERFEEFEEREEHTH
fET B ERPTA BT T TAAAREH -
HERDHMELMAAR -

RERBATEEY
ReMReFEVERRTARTFERSE -
RITERFRLERMBNERNKE -
MZEFREL BEANEELBEAR @ 7]
BERS LA AT MBENIRE - AREEIH
RRTABEE=[A -

LN+

WARBE W BB BN R FEFE @ 35
BEEEPALEERREAERAEHE
B EPTEE RN B I FNRRAT IR HO FE UK

B o WBEMNAFTRERARNEER - BIRA
RARA(HER )RS r] 25T 8 - BIRAHE
RIAT

ERIHEWARERE SRR K DR
(ERNERMARERERP) K

=7
s °

Hz=-%

4,

—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at costs, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business and the use by
others of the Group’s assets yielding interest, net of discounts.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and revenue and costs, if applicable, can be reliably
measured, revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks

and rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and
the title is passed to customer.
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(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is accrued on time basis on the principal
outstanding at effective interest rate.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the assets or liabilities is realised or settled
and that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
US$) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating
to that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the term of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on straight-line method over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integrated part of the
total rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum
mandatory contribution as required by the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions recognised in respect to defined contribution
benefit plans are expenses as they fall due. Liabilities and assets
may be recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred
and are included in current liabilities or current assets as they
are normally of a short term nature.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of assets are included in liabilities
as deferred government grants in the consolidated statement of
financial position and are recognised in profit or loss on straight-
line method over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
“Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member to that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member);

BB A4 B8 %537 {8 A R /A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 27
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group or an entity related
to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group's business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segments
under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its consolidated
financial statements prepared under IFRS, except that:

o share of results of associates accounted for using equity
method

o income tax
o other non-operating income/(expenses)
o finance costs

o corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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5.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is made based on assessment of
the recoverability of receivables from customers/debtors. The
identification of the impairment requires management judgements
and estimates where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the carrying value of the receivables and impairment
losses/reversal of impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Details of receivables whose recovery
was considered doubtful and/or uncertain are set out in Note 21.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated internally in
pharmaceutical industry and technical know-how with perpetual
royalty-free license with no termination, have indefinite useful
lives as they believe that there is no foreseeable limit on the
period of time over which these intangibles are expected to
provide cash flows and these intellectual property rights can be
renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the products
are continuing in the market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management with
reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets and the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations, changed
customer behavior and competitor actions in response to industry
cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives, or
will recognise impairment loss when future cash flows are less
than expectation and fall below the carrying amount of the
intangible assets.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxations.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period
in which such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of goodwill is US$6,824,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 18.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use, are determined with reference
to the best information available at the end of the reporting
period. Changing the assumptions selected by the Group’s
management in assessing impairment, including the discount
rates or the operating and growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and financial performance. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of intangible assets is US$24,056,000.
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5.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Fair value of contingent consideration

The Group determines the fair value of contingent consideration
of purchase of intangible assets as disclosed in Notes 29 and 35
based on the forecast of future performance results of the related
pharmaceutical product and terms of acquisition agreement. The
fair value of contingent consideration will be revised upward or
downward where future performance results are different from
previous forecast and as a result, the change of fair value of
contingent consideration will affect the Group’s financial position
and financial performance.

Fair value of derivative financial instrument

The Group determines the fair value of put option based on the
forecast of future performance of acquired company and terms
of acquisition agreement. The fair value of put option will be
revised upward or downward where future performance are
different from previous forecast and as a result, the change of
fair value of put option affect the Group’s financial position and
financial performance.

Revenue and Other Income
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, and other income for the
years are as follows:

—E—+F ZE—RF

2017 2016

FEx FET

US$°000 Us$'000

HEEMmHBA Revenue from sales of goods 89,484 94,824
Hug A Other income

HRITH BN Bank interest income 595 558

BB & Government grants 203 1,061

Hth Others 472 501

1,270 2,120

RER B Bl 5 BT R B & AR AT
AEENXRBELFESR R ER - WA
I Bh & TR A
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The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC
as recognition of the Group’s performance and development of
high-technology pharmaceutical products. The grants received
were not subject to any conditions.
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7 &b & ¥ 7. Segment Information
HERDE R EDHBREMANTES Information reported to the executive directors, being the chief
(BEZ2EEARRAN)ZHRHERTIAMR operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
NHERER BER o allocation and assessment of segment performance based on the
types of goods delivered.
N ER (B4R 1 B B B S R MR R B8R A R The Group’s reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8
TERREEHEAOT - are as follows:
— B % EEREETER E’\ —  Pharmaceuticals: development, production and sale of
[B )% & B2 B R R B A G Rk specialty pharmaceuticals mainly used in the field of
fth 2 rheumatology and dermatology and other pharmaceuticals
— BEXAEM: HEBEERXAEM —  Medical cosmetics products: sale of medical cosmetics
products
— RBREER: BAE SERHEEER —  Healthcare products: development, production and sale of
Em healthcare products
INTAREEIRATERREE D EE S The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
RSB EFTEERNBRAREEDNT ° from operations by reportable and operating segment.
BE-Z-—tH&+=-A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE BRESER REER st
Medical
cosmetics Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
SEI SE I FEn FER
US$000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000
ATEBRHBRA Reportable segment revenue 68,229 13,196 8,059 89,484
AT 2B DEF Reportable segment profit 19,699 1,003 314 21,016

BA A B8 4% BE A [R A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 33
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7. “*“Bﬁﬂ(,ﬁ) 7.

Segment Information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016

B EEELEM REEmM Bat
Medical

cosmetics Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
TEn TEL TEL TET
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
BTERDBUIA Reportable segment revenue 64,460 18,049 12,315 94,824
BIEZHRNEEH,(FE)  Reportable segment profit/(loss) 20,312 5,236 (1,051) 24,497

EXFr2HDABRAERBIMERFMAF
BV o REE KB FE I E D #BRHE

(==
=

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in
the current year and prior year.

AEEZE DA EENBREELE S YR
%%i&%$%@£§ﬁ?fﬁ%%ﬂ)§ﬁ’]%ﬁ§ﬂﬂ

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

T the consolidated financial statements as follows:
—E—+tfF —E—RF
2017 2016
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000

(B#7R)
(Re-presented)

SR Profit or loss

AT E2EWMHERFETE Total of results of reportable segment profit 21,016 24,497
FE(RERE RN AIRIBR T 18 i A Share of post-tax profit of associates 1,295 1,454
Em RS MU (B) Other non-operating income/(expenses) 10,874 (3,221)
HARDEHA Other income not allocated 1,270 2,120
RoBLFX Expenses not allocated (13,394) (14,457)
U AN Finance costs (4,016) (3,367)
NEEBRFTIS TR = Profit before income tax of the Group 17,045 7,026
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7.

—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
Segment Information (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4. Reportable
segment profit/(loss) represents the gross profit/(loss) less selling
and distribution expenses by each segment. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

Revenue of approximately US$9,112,000 was derived from sales
of pharmaceuticals segment to an external customer, which
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the
year ended 31 December 2017. The corresponding revenue
generated by this external customer contributed less than 10%
of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group's revenues are divided into the following geographical
areas:

—E—+tF —ZT—RF

2017 2016

FEx FET

US$’000 US$'000

FE(EE) The PRC (domicile) 83,065 88,317
NSBIN Overseas 6,419 6,507
89,484 94,824

EPFMBENEUANEERNUERE
£ o KRAIRNHASEHSEMK LI
BERATR] - MAKEEE I EEAE

%o AEENTELER TIEBBRARN T
B FHit - PERERM SRS ERIES

SRMEE DT ERFEM & HARIEAR
SENEHER -

RAEFE @ NEENAEFRBEEL
FHMARPE -

MR A BB R ARG
BEASNEEER - HEBLS5EHE
¥ o

The geographical location of customers is based on the location to
which the goods were delivered. The Company is an investment
holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands where the
Group does not have any activities, the Group has the majority of
its operations and workforce in the PRC, and therefore, the PRC
is considered as the Group’s country of domicile for the purpose
of the disclosures as required by IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were located
in the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are
not regularly provided to the CODM.

BB A4 B8 %537 {8 A R /A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 3 5




A ISR R M5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_T—+F+_A=+—HILFE

8. Hbdk&EMWA (BAX)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

8. Other Non-Operating Income/(Expenses)

—E—+tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
FTERx FE=x
Us$ 000 US$'000
(BFFIR)

(Re-presented)

B EERERE(KE17)

Provision for impairment of intangible assets

(Note 17) (1,821) =
B A EMEE(HE17) Write off of intangible assets (Note 17) (655) (1,546)*
RIELE —HEE ARAEE  Loss on deemed disposal of an associate

(FH3E(@)) (Note (a)) - (300)*
HE—MBE R REO A Gain on partial disposal of an associate,

Wezs (FBRFIE) (M 5E(b)) net of tax (Note (b)) 15,422 -
KRR R EE (M 5E(0) Insurance claims for flood (Note (c)) 2,565 -
IR EEMABERE Ginkgo products related compensation

(BE@d)) (Note (d)) (4,637) (1,375)

10,874 (3,221)

HE_ZT—XR"E+-_A=+—81
FE MEBEFEERBIELE—
A& A a2 BB 541,546,000
%7t &% 300,0003€ 7T WEF ATTIE
MY - AR ERHATHRIER -
B2 ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HIt
FE - ZMEEBFAGEBRENK
Hiv 2 EU RO E A IELE IR
A (R MEBRBFEEFHZ
DAFEREEZZT -

RZT—AXF=ANA @ AEBZ —HEERQ
AT R A REER DB R A E ([ RAIL])EL
NELEBHFRGAHLEERARES -
It AEEFE Z AR RAEZRBE21.5%#
HE16.1% @ BREGABTFELEHEA
A8 ©

R-ZT—+F=A+HA ' 2EER LEFEH
RGFMBERMISEARR 5 EEE 14,175,000
REIAS AR - BRERABRARB(TARE])
431170 EAEHED SR (INRE
18) 15,422,000% 7T ° REEH D EmE - A
EERAIANHREE - FH_T—RF+ =
A=+—HAfM16 1 %R EE-T—+tF+=A
=+—HM12.6% °
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Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the write off
of intangible assets and the loss on deemed disposal on
an associate amounted to US$1,546,000 and US$300,000
respectively was included under administrative expenses. In
order to illustrate the financial performance more accurately,
both items were included under “Other non-operating
income/(expenses)” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2017, and the comparative figure have been
re-presented to conform to the current year’s presentation.

On 9 March 2016, Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Starry”), one
of the Group’s associates, successfully launched an initial public offering
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Accordingly, the equity interests held by
the Group in Starry was diluted from 21.5% to 16.1%, which constitutes
a loss on deemed disposal of an associate in prior year.

On 15 March 2017, the Group had disposed of a total of 4,175,000 shares
in Starry via on-market block trade sales on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
at the price of Renminbi (“RMB") 43.11 per share and resulting in a gain
on partial disposal, net of tax of US$15,422,000. After the partial disposal,
the Group’s equity interest in Starry has been further reduced from 16.1%
as at 31 December 2016 to 12.6% as at 31 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

8. Other Non-Operating Income/(Expenses) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

The insurance claims were in relation to the damaged inventories of the
Company'’s subsidiaries, Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction Technology Limited
(“Liwah Plant Extract”) and Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("Ningbo Liwah") due to the flooding caused by a rainstorm in Ningbo, the
PRC, in September 2015. Pursuant to the judgements of Ningbo Intermediate
People’s Court of Zhejiang Province in May 2017, the insurance company
was ordered to pay compensation of RMB15 million and RMB1.5 million
(equivalent to approximately US$2.2 million and US$0.2 million) together
with interests to Liwah Plant Extract and Ningbo Liwah respectively. On 16
June 2017, Liwah Plant Extract and Ningbo Liwah received the settlement
sums from the insurance company amounting to RMB16 million (equivalent
to approximately US$2.4 million) and RMB1.6 million (equivalent to
approximately US$0.2 million) respectively.

On 6 July 2015, the Company announced that according to an announcement
published by the holding company of Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (the “Claimant”), the Claimant, as the plaintiff, has
initiated legal proceedings (the “Litigation”) against Ningbo Liwah, the
Company'’s subsidiary. In the Litigation, the Claimant alleged that it had
suffered certain losses due to the use of ginkgo extract supplied by Ningbo
Liwah in the Claimant’s products.

On 1 September 2017, Ningbo Liwah received a judgment delivered by
Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court of the PRC which ruled in favour
of the Claimant.

On 27 December 2017, Ningbo Liwah entered into a settlement agreement
with the Claimant, of which Ningbo Liwah agreed to pay compensation
of RMB30.3 million (equivalent to approximately US$4.6 million) to the
Claimant. The compensation was required to be settled by two instalments
after offsetting against the trade receivables of RMB4.3 million (equivalent
to US$0.6 million) due from the Claimant. The first instalment of RMB15.6
million (equivalent to US$2.4 million) has been paid in January 2018 and
the second instalment of RMB10.4 million (equivalent to US$1.6 million)
will be paid on or before 24 June 2018. The compensation expenses
were recognised under “other non-operating income/(expenses)” in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year, and the compensation payables were recognised under
“other payables and accruals” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

9. Finance Costs

—E—+tF kA

2017 2016

FEx FET

UsS$'000 Us$'000

RITE TR Interest on bank borrowings 3,908 3,311
FERRRHE A TMHEE Cross guarantee commission fee payable

ERALER(ME33) to a fellow subsidiary (Note 33) 49 _

A REYTER (FiIFE29) Unwinding of discount on contingent
consideration (Note 29) 59 56
4,016 3,367
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HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

10. BRFR1S B A1 A 10. Profit before Income Tax
REBHBRABBANRR D&M, (5 The Group's profit before income tax has been arrived at after

AN TINRIBERBH

charging/(crediting):

—E—+F —E—RF
2017 2016
FER FET
us$'000 Us$'000
Z A< Auditors’ remuneration
— ZERS — Audit services 301 210
— FFZERT — Non-audit services 55 48
RAERTNEERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 26,233 39,975
W - BEREREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 3,056 2,862
E A ERERE(MEE17) Provision for impairment of intangible assets
(Note 17) 1,821 -
PREFERERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 610 84
2 5 B IB R B Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(Btsx21) (Note 21) 1,218 233
HAb UG IERE R & Provision for impairment of other receivables
(HM¥sr21) (Note 21) 277 22
PN (Was) E518F %8 Net exchange (gain)/loss (457) 111
T REFREEHERT Operating lease charges in respective of land
and building 583 552
(LD Research and development costs 441 681
HEME - BEKEZMENEIE  Losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 37 108
EASE s Write off of inventories 465 =
EREEME(MFE17) Write off of intangible assets (Note 17) 655 1,546
TR 4 b AH & SR IR Amortisation of prepaid land lease payment 58 59
B E#E (FEATTHRFISY)  Amortisation of intangible assets (included in
administrative expenses) 574 582
BTRA(BEESHM Employee costs (including directors’
(BF3E11)) remuneration (Note 11))
— ITEKF® — Wages and salaries 13,718 12,120
— TFREIGETE — Defined contribution plan 2,599 2,401
16,317 14,521
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HE-_ZT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

M. EENEERSH A LT FHHN

11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

EEHM Directors’ emoluments
EfRENTARQGESH B ARZE W The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to the
™ directors of the Company are as follows:
EfpEm
Other emoluments
Fe 24 i EHER
e HENER % SR &3t
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits ~ Discretionary  benefit plans
Fees in kind bonus  contributions Total
tin Tin Tin S tin
Us§'000 US§'000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Us§'000
HECT—tETA=T-ALLER Year ended 31 December 2017
chunES: Erecutive managing director:
BARZE-\E=F-BEZf) Chen Li (appointed on
1 March 2018) - - - - -
§78%: Evecutive directors:
YRR(R-Z-\E-R=1-BEH) Liu Bang Min (resigned on
31 January 2018) - 19 - 15 m
i Hou Song - 137 10 2 249
FuiEs: Non-executive directors:
REE(N-F-tE=A=THEZM) Wu Zhen Tao (appointed on
30 March 2017) - - - - -
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 38 - - - 38
5ER Lee Jin Yi - - - - -
#E(RZE-TE=A=TREf) Tang Jun (resigned on
30 March 2017) - - - - -
L Liu Xuez - - - - -
BUIHTES Independent non-executive directors:
R Chan Kee Huen, Michael 3 - - - 3
HRT Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 3% - - - 3%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3 - - - 3
W 333 10 17 601
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HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

M EENEBZBESHFALHNEM 11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid

(&) Individuals (Continued)
EEEFM(E) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
B g
Other emoluments
- i RiMER
i MEEH £ B a5
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Discretionary benefit plans
Fees  benefits in kind bonus contributions Total
e e T T3 T3
US$'000 US$000 US$000 US§'000 US$:000

HE 53— \Ft-A=t-HIEE Year ended 31 December 2016

anES: Evecutive directors;
YR Liu Bang Min = 187 26 13 126
FARZZ—E=A=TH Hou Song (appointed on
BEfT) 30 March 2016) = % 83 2 183
Fangs: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - - 39
X Lee Jin i - - - - -
RE(R-E-tE=A=THE) Tang Jun (resigned on
30 March 2017) = = = = —
YEER-F-7E=A=18 Liu Xuezi (appointed on
BZ) 30 March 2016) - - - - -
BA5(N=5-7E=A=TH Tao Fang Fang (resigned on
B 30 March 2016) - - - - -
EARR -2 EZA=1H Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca
BHE) (resigned on 30 March 2016) - - = = =
BUinES Independent non-executive directors:
Ril Chan Kee Huen, Michael 3% = = - 3
HRT Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 3% = = = 3%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3 - - - 3
141 285 309 15 750
BEEENRESREHREEE T —+F There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
rZE—RF+_A=1+—BItFEEM agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 December
e =B - 2017 and 2016.
HE—_Z—HELR-_ZT—NRE+-_A=+ During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
—BIEFE AEBEARREMEZESRE emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any of
AAGERHATZAEAME - RN the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
AREE S INARE B &/ R - upon joining the Group.
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11.

—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of two (2016: two)
directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of emoluments
of the remaining three (2016: three) highest paid individuals
were as follows:

—E—+F —ERF

2017 2016

FEx FET

Us$'000 Us$'000

e o RMAMEYET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 272 256
HI5RE Discretionary bonus 431 247
RIREFFHEIE K Retirement benefit plans contributions 40 44
#st Total 743 547

ST L EIFEEALOHEMANFIAT
#5 -

The emoluments paid to each of the above non-director individuals
were within the following band:

—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
A8 N
No of No of
individuals individuals
Z%1,000,0007% 7T Nil - HK$1,000,000 - -
1,000,001/ T2 1,500,000t HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 - 3
1,500,001% T 22,000,000/ HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 -
2,000,001% 22,500,000/ HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
EHEX 12. Income Tax Expense
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FEx FET
us$'000 Us$:000
EHTIE — REMEMEN Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(MBI ("EIT")
— FEIE — tax for the year 1,592 2,834
— BAFERBEEE — over provision in respect of prior years (202) (75)
1,390 2,759
EIER A (F13E27) Deferred tax (Note 27) 26 431
FriSHif Income tax expense 1,416 3,190
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BE-Z—+&+-A=+—HItFE
12. FRIBHBEX (&)

E%ﬁmﬂmﬁaﬁﬁilm“ﬁﬁmﬁ
AEERMERHRERTE

RIBFBEEEMAETOE(TEEAEHIE])

LREEWRMAE - FRMNEARNBEER
25%(_ /\E : 250/0) ©

AEE-—FEHNBAR(ZF—XRF: MHE
MBARCERBEATESHMEKD
X FHRISRHNEEEEMAEHER(ZF

12.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Tax on assessable profits has been calculated at the applicable
rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which the Group
operates.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2016: 25%).

One subsidiary (2016: Two subsidiaries) of the Group has been
certified as new high technology enterprise in the PRC and
enjoyed a preferential EIT rate of 15% (2016: 15%).

—7NEF 1 15%) °
EWPF{ ST RSB R H AL 2 I The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
R TR GR FTSTATA M B BRI T profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
bk S ZE—RF
2017 2016
FEx FExT
UsS$'000 Us$'000
BR PSR 7 Profit before income tax 17,045 7,026
REARE@EREEERN Tax on profit at the rates applicable to the
AT R E AR jurisdictions concerned 2,466 1,550
NA MR R BETE Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 1,893 1,727
BARBBANT KT E Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,879) (24)
FEAG B & A R B 180 F /9 Tax effect of share of post-tax profit of
TSR 2 associates (286) (284)
B FEBEEE Over provision in respect of prior years (202) (75)
Hit Others 424 296
FriSfifA > Income tax expense 1,416 3,190
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—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

B’ E 13. Dividends
—E—t5F T —RF
2017 2016
FEx FEx
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FABRIBRDIKHEKRE ! Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
—tFHHRE—ERKR 2017 interim dividend — HK4.17 cents
41774 (A% #90.532Al) per share (approximately US0.53 cents
per share) 2,217 —
FFRIRR B—& A% 14.94781(0 Special dividend — HK14.94 cents
(BMA1.913=10) per share (approximately US1.91 cents
per share) 7,942 =
ZE-RERARE—FR 2016 final dividend — HK3.66 cents
3.66/8(L (FA&490.473AL) per share (approximately US0.47 cents
per share) 1,959 —
T-REFHRE—ERK 2016 interim dividend — HK4.02 cents
4.OZ/E1UJ(HX,%’JO.52%MJ) per share (approximately US0.52 cents
per share) — 2,150
—hERPAKRE—ER 2015 final dividend — HK5.99 cents
5.9978(l (A& %70.773AL) per share (approximately US0.77 cents
per share) — 3,207
12,118 5,357

RBEHRE  EFERRTEEZZT
—+tF+ A=+ —BLFEHRPRK
B &R3.588 1L (=RA0.463E() - 85T
14,857,000 7T (491,909,000% L) (==
—RF HEE-—X"F+-_A=1+—H
IEFERRPRE AFRR3.6681L(F
#90.473%AL)) - HEFRRAEERE KX
eHER - FRIEE o ERAHRENHR
HRBRRERREE o

BRER
EREARBFIEZARES AELERE
Y2 A1) 52 415,000,000f% B2 1 TEINRAD (=&
— 754 1 415,000,0000%8% 170 ) 5t &

AEBENFAR E—FEABETEETR

% o

14.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK3.58 cents per share (approximately US0.46 cents per
share), totally amounting to HK$14,857,000 (approximately
US$1,909,000) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: final dividend of HK3.66 cents per share (approximately
US0.47 cents per share) in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.
The proposed final dividends have not been recognised as a
liability at the reporting date.

Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
and 415,000,000 shares outstanding during the year (2016:
415,000,000 shares).

The Group had no potential dilutive shares during the year and
prior year.

BB A4 B8 %537 {8 A R /A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 43




ire SRR I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

15. W% - BERRE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

BFRBE W RE  HRARRE HRIE @t
Furniture
Building Motor and Construction
and plant  Machineries vehicles  equipment in progress Total
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RZE—"F-A—-H At 1 January 2016
R Cost 28,061 13,426 1,043 2,751 = 45,281
2EE Accumulated depreciation (4,792) (4,749) (616) (1,518) — (11,675)
REFE Net carrying amount 23,269 8,677 427 1,233 — 33,606
BE-Z—7\ET-A=1+—H Yearended 31 December
I35 2016
FNERFE Opening net carrying amount 23,269 8,677 427 1,233 — 33,606
kS Exchange adjustment (1,465) (570) (20) (68) (1) (2,124)
hE Additions 454 1,639 - 289 14 2,396
biE Depreciation (998) (1,240) (103) (521) = (2,862)
RE Disposals = (38) (57) (14) = (109)
EXERFE Closing net carrying amount 21,260 8,468 247 919 13 30,907
RZB-—rE+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2016
KA Cost 26,703 14,026 829 2,754 13 44,325
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (5,443) (5,558) (582) (1,835) — (13,418)
REFE Net carrying amount 21,260 8,468 247 919 13 30,907
BE-Z—+F+-A=1+—H Yearended 31 December
I35 2017
ENRERE Opening net carrying amount 21,260 8,468 247 919 13 30,907
B 5 9% Exchange adjustment 1,279 525 12 48 1 1,865
NE Additions - 1,732 64 408 - 2,204
ViE] Depreciation (1,043) (1,417) (65) (531) - (3,056)
RRE Disposals (5) (368) (51) (64) - (488)
BA/(H) Transfer inf(out) - 14 - - (14) -
EREERE Closing net carrying amount 21,491 8,954 207 780 - 31,432
RZZ—+FFZA=F—H At 31 December 2017
KA Cost 28,328 15,769 686 3,047 - 47,830
Z5tihE Accumulated depreciation (6,837) (6,815) (479) (2,267) - (16,398)
REFE Net carrying amount 21,491 8,954 207 780 — 31,432
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HE-_ZT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

16. Prepaid Land Lease Payment

—E—+F —E—RF
2017 2016
TER FET
UsS$'000 Us$'000
HAY BRI HE Opening net carrying amount 2,015 2,213
F A Amortisation for the year (58) (59)
kS Exchange adjustment 122 (139)
HARBRESHE Closing net carrying amount 2,079 2,015
REBE Gross carrying amount 2,707 2,549
RETHEEE Accumulated amortisation (628) (534)
BREFE Net carrying amount 2,079 2,015
E Reconciliation:
FFARENEERREE S Current portion included in current assets 55 52
p

FFAFERBEEMIERBNII D Non-current portion included in
non-current assets 2,024 1,963
REEE Net carrying amount 2,079 2,015
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HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

17. B EE 17. Intangible Assets

AERER
EBNEM
BRAHE BUEENE RS HEAR @5t
Exclusive Indefinite-
distribution Technical ~ Development lived technical
rights know-how costs know-how Total
TET TET TEn T TEL
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
(FirzE(a) (FzE)) (FitzE() (FitzE())
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d))
RZZ-A"E-A—-H At 1 January 2016
A Cost 462 7,086 11,342 9,078 27,968
it Accumulated amortisation (62) (2,544) (13) — (2,729
RRFE Net carrying amount 400 4542 11,219 9,078 25,239
B2 ~E+t-A=1-H Year ended 31 December 2016
LLER
FOREFE Opening net carrying amount 400 4,54 11,219 9,078 25,239
ERLRE Exchange adjustment (18) (241) (777) = (1,036)
HE Additions = = 2,267 = 2,267
B Amortisation (30) (552) — — (582)
s Write off (150) (653) (743) — (1,546)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 202 3,09% 11,966 9,078 24,342
RZE-—"ETZA=1—H At 31 December 2016
A Cost 288 6,007 12,081 9,078 27 454
Zit#is Accumulated amortisation (86) (2.911) (115) - 3112
REFE Net carrying amount 202 3,096 11,966 9,078 2434
HEZZ—tE+-A=1-H Year ended 31 December 2017
i3
FRETE Opening net carrying amount 202 3,09 11,966 9,078 2,382
i3 Exchange adjustment 12 170 7120 - 902
HE Additions - - 1,862 - 1,862
g Amortisation (30) (544) - - (574)
RiE Impairment - - (1,821) - (1,821)
fii Write off - (101) (554) - (655)
EREERE Closing net carrying amount 184 2,621 12173 9,078 24,056
RZE—tF+-A=1-R At 31 December 2017
WA Cost 306 6,274 12,29 9,078 27,954
g Accumulated amortisation (122) (3,653) (123) - (3,898)
REFE Net carrying amount 184 2,621 12173 9,078 24,056

1 46 Annual Report 2017 £F 3R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17.

mEEE(HE)
HE_Z—+tF+-_A=1+—HILEFE -
AEERERIER TIEFETHEIE
B EE2ARNEMEKEATEHEFA A
H o HMi$5655000F (=T — XNF:
1,546,000 7T ) B W 7R /4 E fth FEAS =& 14 7
X (HIE8) — & o (FTABZE) + B ER
EEMERIAENRZETKLES5E -

AFEAFHERNELEEN KBS
LEREBENEERETE - %85 FERE
REEEEIERRATHNTHEEED
HERETFARUARN T13%ZE17% 85
BITIRE(ZE—NF :18%) - BB H
FHNReRERABREO%RTEA - It
EREDIRIBEETHEIERIBAME - £
BAEEEZNEMEZERRNERRES
RA B EPREREHER
FEFE - BRAGHFTIERZEBEMBERER
UREREBHMISEHRNTEN - ERER
5 EAHERKTELIRNEGIES S
TeERERAERBETIKOEEE -

BE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—RHIFE -
AEAFHERNBEEEERERER
1,821,000 (= —R"F : F) IE
HRAEMIELE R (HES) —F»
(FrAE#z=) WEFEENRAERE
ERMEIESEE ©

HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HAILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

17. Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group decided to
terminate several research and development projects which were
under development, mainly due to the surging bulk pharmaceutical
costs. Write off of US$655,000 (2016: US$1,546,000) was
recognised as part of other non-operating expenses (Note 8)
included in profit or loss to write down the carrying amount of
the intangible assets to its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives has been determined based on value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period, and pre-tax
discount rate ranged from 13% to 17% (2016: 18%). The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year
period is 0% which is based on pharmaceutical industry growth
forecast. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on
the unit’'s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, provision for
impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives of
US$1,821,000 (2016: Nil) was recognised as part of other non-
operating expenses (Note 8) included in profit or loss to impair
the carrying amount of the intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives to its recoverable amount.
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RE-F—tET-A=+—ALEE

17.

B\ EE(HE)

Bk -
(a)

(b)

(c)

REZZE—=F+-8  AEEE-ZHEFHRT
SBRWHE - ARG —RERETESH10F
R S o b SHIERHIR B R IR 1 0F F 5
(Bl —Z—mE—A— BB HEHRE)
iy o

R EENBERERREREEETERM
W BT KA °

B-Z——FtA—BE BROEHEERD
BT B3 A R#40,993,000 TR E R EE
B+ —FFHEE o

RZZB—=F ARz 2EWBRARZHEL
HHCHNWBENBRAR K EMEELED IR
BHEAR AR (RG] T S M R irsEE e
(THzD - REEHZE  BRIERBEURS
R {E2,279,000% 7t (49 A R ¥ 14,800,0007T)
M EREARRASIERZEEE - KREFIHIE
FEIBE RESA R - BEMBARM -
MBER  ZH - FAUENRBEE TEE
HE(RRAPIERFER D) - REKEZAE
BREBNREAERIEURE SN TRE -
HE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—HIEE  BK
M EDR719,170F T (X AR 4,670,000
L) e RZTE—ARFENA+ZH  BRIEE
BREAREERDEZFR - RZFLF
B TR A AR SRR E R R
SEARER MBERVEEN DI NARE
4,670,0007CH BB - R=T—+LF W
A+mB - R RARKRH AR GEE
M) 280/ 3 EE IR B BARRR A A R 54,670,000
TC o BERSHIR - BRIV EWAKRE EREE
(e

FREEAN AN B BRI E oh A BREE A MY A58
ERE([AER]) -

EERRRSABERLEREAFS - RE
ERBEENAIERBHIRHERSTEN
EARIL SR R] IR o b AR A — B
BIAIERR A ER - MER IR EBET

T AR EERE L IRRE - & 2 AR (B 18 32 2 U
MR FIBR - AERERF R MBERE
TRETHE  YREEMREEFRETF
ERERI - A REREERERFH
AR AT BER(E - KR AR T TIRE A

al ©
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17. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

In December 2013, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement with a
supplier to secure the distribution rights of 10 years for one pharmaceutical
product in the PRC. This exclusive right will be amortised on a straight-line
basis over 10 years, being the period of the distribution rights, starting from
1 January 2014.

Technical know-how mainly represents techniques and formulae acquired
for the development and production of certain pharmaceutical products.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how in relation to the oral
disintegrating tablets amounting to RMB40,993,000 had been amortised
on a straight-line basis over 11 years.

In 2013, Ningbo Liwah, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a pharmaceutical technology transfer agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Tianjin Longbai Biological Engineering and Technology Company Limited
("Longbai”), an indirect subsidiary of CIH. Pursuant to the Agreement, Ningbo
Liwah agreed to acquire from Longbai the misoprostol development project
for a cash consideration of US$2,279,000 (approximately RMB14,800,000).
The misoprostol development project comprised the know-how and related
materials and technology, intellectual properties, patent, permit(s) and
license(s), and certain supporting equipment (“Misoprostol Development
project”). The consideration is paid by Ningbo Liwah to Longbai in cash
in several milestone payments. Up to the year ended 31 December 2015,
Ningbo Liwah had paid US$719,170 (approximately RMB4,670,000). On 12
September 2016, Ningbo Liwah, as claimant, had initiated legal proceedings
against Longbai. In this litigation, Ningbo Liwah alleged that Longbai was
unable to guide Ningbo Liwah to produce qualified samples according to the
Agreement. Ningbo Liwah is therefore seeking the return of the milestone
payment of RMB4,670,000 that had been paid. On 14 April 2017, the
Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court judged that Longbai has to return
the milestone payment of RMB4,670,000 to Ningbo Liwah. As of the end
of the reporting period, the milestone payment was yet received.

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPRs")
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPRs in pharmaceutical
industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPRs can be renewable in a
period of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should be
written down or written off immediately to profit or loss. IPRs with indefinite
useful lives is not amortised and are tested for impairment annually at each
financial year end or more frequently if there are indications that IPR with
indefinite useful lives might be impaired.




SR ISR R T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17.

18.

HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HAILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
BIELEE(E) 17. Intangible Assets (Continued)
MisE : (&) Notes: (Continued)
(d) EERFEAFHAORMEENFETSRILSN (d)  Indefinite-lived technical know-how represents a perpetual royalty-free
KARBERNEBFFA o licence with no termination.
RZZT—MNE=A=+N8 ' XAEHHEE On 28 March 2014, Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited (“LMHK"), an
2EMBRAIAEEX(EH)ERAB(EA indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i) the asset
A |) (i) #Novartis AG#Novartis Pharma purchase agreement with Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively
AG (FiiB([FZE DTV EEBE R - Bt known as “Novartis”) pursuant to which Novartis agrees to transfer to LMHK
EREMPAEEXERT A E(DIFHBE the transferred assets (including know-how, books and records, specified
EmBBOEN - SEREH  FEEE - trademarks, commercial information and medical information relating to
BEEERBEEE)  RDFIMZFTAI e - the pharmaceutical product), and (i) the licence agreement to grant the
NEHHARNBEEEREEAN(RIFE(TE licences, relating to the pharmaceutical product in the territory (i.e. the PRC,
BEEA RMAREE)NT #REKE excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) for a total cash consideration
748,000,000 T HHNAR - MBEEERS A comprising an upfront payment of US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone
1 500 000FE TTRIFEIN BIZ AR SR (EARA A B3 payments of a total maximum US$1,500,000, linked to sales achieved by
SiHEERS) ([HARE]D - IARE LMHK (the “contingent consideration”). The carrying value of the contingent
E@iﬁ%ﬁﬁiz%@ﬁﬁ1 ,276,000F% T(=F— consideration at the end of the reporting period was US$1,276,000 (2016:
JNEF 1,226,000 7T) ¢ W EEF ALRA B US$1,226,000) and has been included under other financial liabilities in the
MEANEMSHEE - BRAKARENHE— consolidated statement of financial position. Further details of contingent
Frr BRI RE29 - consideration are set out in Note 29.
ZBEEMBSHENELENK S - AR The pharmaceutical product contains specific active pharmaceutical
ERECSEECEANEERFEEN —HIAE = ingredients and it is marketed and sold as a cream under trademark Sicorten
R AR T B L 7 R T T P R M O A M R Plus in the territory. It will primarily be used to treat certain corticosteroid-
BRI RCL - responsive inflammatory skin diseases secondary infection.
(GRS 18. Goodwill
—E—tF —TRF
2017 2016
F &5 FE5
UsS$'000 Us$'000
REE Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

AEEWEERT R BECRY)A
RAT(CRYIBAED -
SHANTE -

S ZX

ZERXFHANEE

AEERSEVRFEFRUBELETE
BRERR - WE TR TEE AR
B - BERAEMETRERNR -

SURERRME - HEREEENERD
REXAEDEE—ERSELEN B
BREEXBREEREREMERNINE
NE HERARERED T EE] -

The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah and Lansen Medicine
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”). These
transactions have been accounted for by the acquisition method
of accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at each
financial year end, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and development
costs related to specialty pharmaceuticals have been allocated
to one CGU, including subsidiaries with principal activities of
manufacturing and trading of specialty pharmaceuticals which
is including in the “Pharmaceuticals” under operating segment.
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H=E

18.

19.

E—+tF+-A=+—HIFE

()
LR S EE B ARESEOEERHE
FERBERBLLT

ZAESEEBUMAIRESENERER
SAERETE - Rt EAERERETIEE
HERKRAFHNPHERENRERETR
BIAR 17 % BB ATHT IR R (ZF — /X F -
18%) - B FHNASRERALER
KO%FER - I RRTDIRIBE EITRIE
RIEAIME - EREEHEENEMER
RJETARBERAREBOMEET - B
BREBEEHERENE - BRAMGFER
ZEMBERRUAREEEHMGHERN
JEH - BIEEME - AL ERRATEE
BNEEEPK T eS8efmERsE
QLR

HE_ZT—tHF+-A=1+—HBLFE -
AEBERERAE FAUEREHENRSE
ELBUYERE(ZF—XRF:FT)-

18.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Goodwill (Continued)
The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 17%
(2016: 18%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the five-year period is 0% which is based on
pharmaceutical industry growth forecast. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairments of any of its
CGU containing goodwill (2016: Nil).

REEE N T 2R 19. Interests in Associates
—E—+fF —E—RF
2017 2016
Fx T=E7T
Us$‘000 Us$'000
JEREE A Share of net assets 20,690 23,046
[EES Goodwill 14,727 16,378
35,417 39,424
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19.

HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HAILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

REE N T z2E= (&) 19. Interests in Associates (Continued)
FHAASEREZmE B HIEaEE A Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting
FEEAT ¢ date is as follows:
AT AR Lt B TE rEBERAEERRK
8 REEE B REREMNL 6 TEEK
Place of Principal Proportion of ownership
incorporation place of interest and voting power
Name and operation  business held by the Group Principal activity
it 2 3 —E—RF
2017 2016
AIARYZ R E e 12.6%* 16.1%* EERBEERME
Gkl
Starry The PRC The PRC Production and trading of
bulk pharmaceuticals and
intermediates
ERERARAR([R]) HBRZES HE 30.0% 30.0% AEREEEVERR
([REEX REEm
H5])
Natural Dailyhealth Holdings The British Virgin ~ The PRC Production and trading of
Limited (“Natural Dailyhealth”) Islands (The plant extract and
“BVI") healthcare products
S BEREBRAIALHEAERERDN20% @ &K & Although the Group’s ownership interest in Starry is less than 20%, the
NAEERS  BARAANHHD —REEA directors of the Company consider that they still have the power to exercise
AEENBATNES @ URSAEHRIKR significant influence on Starry as one of the directors of Starry is the director
SNATEEANFE - At - BREIAERERS of the Group's subsidiaries, and therefore have classified the interest in
DEABE N REE - Starry as an associate.
LB S R R T A AR A S B 2 AR The above associates were accounted for using the equity method
BB HRRALR - in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
AANER-ZZE—RE=ZANBKINEL Starry successfully launched an initial public offering on the
BEELTGHERNAREE - REE-Z Shanghai Stock Exchange on 9 March 2016. During the year
—tF+=ZA=1+— EIJJ:EFFW REHE ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed of 3.48% equity
HERIANT3.48% K - RZT—LF+ interest in Starry. The fair value of the interests in Starry held by
ZHA=1T—H AEEMFNRA L En the Group was approximately US$67,233,000 as at 31 December
B AFEL A67,233,000FE (= —~ 2017 (2016: US$133,612,000).

£ :133,612,000%E7T) ©
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HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

19. REBEE N T 2= (F) 19. Interests in Associates (Continued)
RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—0H  A5EH As at 31 December 2017, 3,000,000 shares (2016: 9,000,000
RAAXZFERTHEER13,292,000 shares) in Starry held by the Group with market values of
Eo(=ZZF —/NF 62,145,000 jr ) US$13,292,000 (2016: US$62,145,000) and 7,000,000 shares
3,000,000R% 815 ( == —754F £ 9,000,000 (2016: 5,500,000 shares) in Starry held by the Group with market
) R AEBRAIALFR NS value of US$31,014,000 (2016: US$37,978,000) have been
BEE /31,014,000 (=T — < F: pledged to banks to secure bank borrowings and banking facilities
37,978,000t ) 7,000,000k h (==& of the Group (Note 26) and bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary
— 754 : 5,500,000% f& 10 ) B B 18 F iR (Note 33(d)) respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the bank
TR AARER 2 RITERRBRITRHE borrowings with the carrying amounts of US$5,663,000 (2016:
(M5E26) K —FR A R B R 7 2 |RITERK US$8,938,000) and US$14,539,000 (2016: US$14,415,000) were
(MSFE33(d) 1B - R=ZT—tF+= drawn down by the Group and the fellow subsidiary, respectively.

A=+—H ' ERME{E4A5,663,000%7Tt(=
Z— 754 : 8,938,000%7T) K 14,539,000
EX(ZT—754F : 14,415,000% 7T ) Z iR
TEFREDNBHAEE RZRARMBAF

IREX °
) AKRBESEEEE QAN EERE i) Summarised financial information of the Group’s material
LEHT - associate is set out below:
=il YA Starry
—E—t5F —E—RF
2017 2016
SFEIoE FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
R+=—A=+-—H As at 31 December
MBNEE Current assets 120,073 101,415
EMEEE Non-current assets 188,055 171,323
i JN=NE Current liabilities (96,740) (93,504)
EmBAE Non-current liabilities (77.869) (60,222)
BEFE Net assets 133,519 119,012
BEZE+=-HA=1+—HILEE  Year ended 31 December
WA Revenue 105,445 101,181
FEm A Profit for the year 12,328 11,231
FEAEMPER Other comprehensive income for the
year —
FREIERRERE Total comprehensive income for the
year 12,328 11,231
FEEEBEATWEEALE  Dividends received from the associate
during the year 225 796
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19. REFE QAT 2= (F)
REBEEHE N AWM BEER i) Summarised financial information of the Group’s material

i)

ZHEFIT (&)

HE-_ZT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
19. Interests in Associates (Continued)

associate is set out below: (Continued)

TARM(E) Starry (Continued)
VA it 09 B 75 8 KL B AR & BA 75 Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
RFTERNEE R AN ERREE to the carrying amount of the interest in an associate
A ETER - recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
—E—+F ZE—RF
2017 2016
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
BEFE Net assets 133,519 119,012
B IR MR Less: Non-controlling interests 2,335 2,443
AR B ANELRER Equity attributable to owners of Starry 131,184 116,569
REERRIARMLAHERE Proportion of the Group’s ownership
ez bl interest in Starry 12.6% 16.1%
16,529 18,768
[k Goodwill 10,256 12,168
PR A EFAENTE  Effect of fair value adjustments at
acquisition 1,337 1,259
E iz Other adjustments 42 (48)
AREBNRRIAMHEZREE  Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Starry 28,164 32,147
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HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

19. REBEE N T 2= (F) 19. Interests in Associates (Continued)
i) EEARBMEARNVIEERBEE i)  Summarised financial information of the immaterial
Hla associate is set out below:
=3 Natural Dailyhealth
—E—tF —F—RK
2017 2016
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
R+=—HA=+-—H As at 31 December
FEVBRERNERAE Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements 7.253 7,277
H-T—RF
B =—A=-tmH=Z=
—E—tF —T—RF
+=A=+—-8B +=-RA=+—H
LEE HARE
Period from

Year ended 24 March 2016
31 December to 31 December

2017 2016
EEELERSE Amount of the Group’s share of Natural
Dailyhealth
— [EIEEE — Share of loss (481) (192)
— EEEMEEE — Share of other comprehensive income — —
— BE AW EARE — Share of total comprehensive income (481) (192)
20. 78 20. Inventories
—E—+tF AN
2017 2016
FER FEx
US$’000 Us$'000
JRH1# Raw materials 1,518 2,151
fE& Work-in-progress 2,815 4,115
LR i Finished goods 8,726 8,310
13,059 14,576
REBE—E—+E+-_A=+—RHIL&EE During the year ended 31 December 2017, provisions of
BB E MR R B S BE A e US$862,000 (2016: US$328,000) against the carrying value of
862,000 7T (=T — 74 : 328,000%7T) raw materials and finished goods were made.
BB -
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21.

HE-_ZT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
EZRHMEWFIE 21. Trade and Other Receivables
—EB—+tF —E—RHF
2017 2016
FEx FET
us$'000 Us$'000
2 5 EWKIE Trade receivables 43,425 37,174
B BB RBGRIE R ERE Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (1,723) (439)
41,702 36,735
JEAES Bills receivables 7,372 15,190
Z S WG IE R EREE Trade and bills receivables
(MF3E@)) (Note (a)) 49,074 51,925
TE A 5RI8 K E b FE IR Prepayments and other receivables
(MI3E(b)) (Note (b)) 14,923 13,272
63,997 65,197

%%?N% ﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁgﬂk?ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ%@ﬁ
HENFEBE

AEENBRRERAETFEHEFIH0A
(ZZ—"%¥F : 0R)NEEH -

(@) MWEEFRAH RESHKR  AEENBHE
W OR K e W R i (FRR MBS 1] ) Bk 2 4 20

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

other receivables approximate their fair values.

The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period of

90 days to its customers (2016: 90 days).

(a) Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and bills
receivables (net of impairment losses) of the Group as of the end of the

- reporting period is as follows:
—B—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FEx FET
US$’000 US$'000
90H AT 90 days or below 32,407 45,300
91E180H 91-180 days 5,581 4,366
181&2365H 181-365 days 3,900 1,501
jE#iA365H Over 365 days 7,186 758
49,074 51,925

HE-Z—+F+-A=T—HLFE &%
@EEUK%IE@—u%&zﬁgﬁépTLii%ﬁi
&% REHEEZEWHKIELG,217,000FT(=
T —/NfF 1 6,666,000%70) MER =T —\F
TZA=Z+—BX - BFZBEFPONREE
HA90H © ZERUGRBETIBARE T —~F
+ARHE —HKE|ARETSNFEDHEE
@ RZE—ARFT-A=1+—8 ' Z5F®
B S REWRFIERIEB AT ARE - MR=ZZT—
+tFE+-A=1+—H8  BRELCRAENTEER
i - REPMEZRKGER ARG - RIE
ZE PR AT R A R E R R M= —
+&+ A=+ —HERERZEFNEER
18682,000E (=T —NF: T)RRERE -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has entered into
a repayment extension agreement with a new major customer of the
Group to agree its trade receivable of approximately US$6,217,000 (2016:
US$6,666,000) to be settled not later than 31 December 2018. The original
credit period granted to this customer was 90 days. The receivables related
to sales of a new cosmetic-related product introduced to the PRC market
since October 2016. The trade receivable due from the major customer as
at 31 December 2016 were neither past due nor impaired whereas the trade
receivable due from the major customer as at 31 December 2017 was not
yet past due based on the agreed repayment extension agreement. Based
on the range of possible outcomes of this arrangement and the time of
the settlement, impairment provision amounting to US$682,000 (2016: Nil)
was made for the debts due from this customer as at 31 December 2017.
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21. ES R HMEWREGE)
@ @

AEE A E 5 IR R 4 0 AR
ARTHEI1E8,656,0005 7T (= Z —7<4F : 6,625,000
£ BRRE -+ %5 BUCRIRR R R
EIMEHE A R EA IR AR RERE - &
SHENS LEALRRAEENBLELE
B - RIGBEER  ARAEFRA - @k
BRESEREARD - AEBRERARETS
BURE - BT BRSO E R -
AREL AR A BB ETERR -

AEERBEHRTAHEL RRENE S E

For the year ended 31 December 2017

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amounts of US$8,656,000 (2016: US$6,625,000) which
were past due as at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. These balances relate to a number
of independent customers of whom there is no recent history of default.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The Group's ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not

WRIBRREC AT AT - impaired as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E—t%F B4
2017 2016
FEx FEx
US$'000 Us$'000
AHE1E90H Past due over 1-90 days 3,787 4,366
#HI91Z2275H Past due over 91-275 days 3,900 1,501
B ERRIR276 B Past due over 276 days 969 758
8,656 6,625

AEEE 5 EESRRBERBESMNT

Movement on the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables

is as follows:
—E2—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FEr F=
US$'000 Us$'000
R—A—A8 At 1 January 439 229
Rk Exchange adjustment 66 (23)
B S RWFIERERE Provision for impairment of trade receivables 1,218 233
R+=ZA=+—8H At 31 December 1,723 439

it 5 MR IR R (B AR 7Y Bt (R BB E K
B 5 RUGRIAR R o ERRERNEEGRAER
HEMBRENEFER - HRESBHEK
FIATRHATE © REBMY ERZ SERTE
EREMR o

Bk BRF R EKREE6,217,000E T (=F
—7"4 1 6,666,000%70) * RZT—+F+=
A=+—R8  AEBEROHTERBENE
5 REUR R IE 5526,829,0005 T ( — T — /N ¢
23,444,000%7) * ZEEFEBFAERRS
IEI B R ESN TP AR -

1 56 Annual Report 2017 £F 3R

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is made for
individually impaired trade receivables. The individually impaired receivables
mainly relate to customers that were in financial difficulties and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Not counting the debt due from the major customer of US$6,217,000 (2016:
US$6,666,000), as at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade receivables of
US$26,829,000 (2016: US$23,444,000) were neither past due nor impaired.
These related to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.
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(a)

(#)
REBEZZ—tFER-_F—R"F+-A=
EIJLEVW Ziglﬁ%ﬂ*%%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂ
BRENIDBRER  MEREERR ZIS
SEEEBRNEREENHERRE - 7818
BERERBBRIAMERIALI1%EL2%
(ZF—RNF :33%=E34%)5 8 - EERK
ERXMNAHLE - Bt - AEEEERREER
EEBERIEENKNER

+

ARAEBEREINRERZENEAID BB
kB - MR S W RS BBREHER5
BRI RS MEENRE - RZT—+tF
+=ZA=+—8 ' EYKZE#2,755,000% (=
T —754F 1 9,370,000k 70 ) BERAEBRE
MHHREEER  REHE S ZER TSR
® - AR ZNABHECEAEELERRME
(HTEE26) st AERA - E =B UREUE R = IE
FAKHENFEREBOMEERE - R —
+tF+—A=+—8 ERHEZRAENEE
ERBEREA2,755000EKT(=ZT—NF ¢
9,370,00037T) ©

BHRNEREEREAXEETSREE - A%
EEEETRIKERNGEE -

R-_Z—+t&E+-_A=+—80 EEMEA
3,497,000% (= Z — /X4 : 4,022,000%7T)
K& T RENERDIERUREAEE 2 B1THE
A (Hi3E26) - HERA & EREREE 47,000,000
E(=Z—/ 4 : 6,000,000%7T) °

HE-_ZT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group discounted
part of its bills receivables with full recourse to financial institutions. In the
event of default by the bills receivables, the Group was obliged to pay
the financial institutions the amount in default. Interest was charged at a
range from 4.1% to 4.2% (2016: a range from 3.3% to 3.4%) per annum
on the proceeds received from the financial instructions until the date the
bills receivables pay. The Group was therefore exposed to the risks of credit
losses and late payment in respect of the discounted bills.

The discounting transactions did not meet the requirements in IAS 39 for
de-recognition of financial assets as the Group retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the discounted bills receivables. At
31 December 2017, bills receivables of US$2,755,000 (2016: US$9,370,000)
continued to be recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
even though they have been legally transferred to the financial institutions.
The proceeds of the discounting transactions were included in borrowings
as asset-backed financing (Note 26) until the bills receivables are collected
or the Group settles any losses suffered by the financial institutions. At 31
December 2017, the asset-backed financing liability related to the discounted
bills amounted to US$2,755,000 (2016: US$9,370,000).

Because the bills receivables have been transferred to the financial institutions
legally, the Group did not have the authority to determine the disposition
of the bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2017, certain bills receivables with carrying amount of
US$3,497,000 (2016: US$4,022,000) were pledged to secure the Group's
bank borrowings (Note 26). The carrying amount of the associated liability
was US$7,000,000 (2016: US$6,000,000).
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21. ESZ R EMEWRKRIE(A)

(b)

Hh SR BE IR EREEREY - R
T—+tF+-A=+—H BHREBEHETE
MR BEEMERREBEIE 2D - HEH
2 EWGRIB R E M FEUGR IR R B e
286,000 JL(=ZF — 754 : 22,0005 L) ° &N
EEVERZSERFETMAERD -

AR B ERFIRRERBEEEINT

For the year ended 31 December 2017

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
(b) Other receivables are shown net of impairment provisions. As at 31 December
2017, total provision for impairment against other receivables of US$286,000
(2016: US$22,000) was recognised for certain long outstanding other
receivables as these receivables are not expected to be fully recovered. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of other receivables

is as follows:

S i

2017 2016

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

w—A—H At 1 January 22 1
bE N AR Exchange adjustment 9 (1)
ARAEAS BT U 20 T Written off as uncollectible (22) —
H b EIRFOE R AR E Provision for impairment of other receivables 277 22
R+=ZA=+—8H At 31 December 286 22

BORESREN - L EEYRAMRE - £
AR B IR £ Bl A B SR YN0 AR R RAD 8%
REUGRIEERE ©

22. —E¥EEQRNEN
RRAREEA 2L BRRERME -
EERRLABROREERLRTER

4+

E o

23.EERBTER HERES

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances related to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

22. Loan to an Associate
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The directors consider that the carrying amount of this balance
approximates its fair value.

23. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

ZEY Equivalents
—EB—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FEx TET
us$'000 Us$'000
B MIRTTHES Cash and bank balances 41,522 37,197
B EHEEIRITER Less: pledged bank deposits (32,631) (27,095)
ReMIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,891 10,102

1 58 Annual Report 2017 £F 3R




A RS HR R MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23.

24,

25.

HE-_ZT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

EEFRITER BEEL£KRE 23. Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

EEW (&)
ReRBIRBEERTRFARSUR
REMAE=@EARA THERRTE
K o RITR LR EE BIRITFRFIERT
BFE L - RATHERFABRITLR
35 F R BRERF] 8. -

RZBE—tFR_F—"F+_A=1+—
HREEBRITFRIEAEER SRS AE
EE TRITRE RRITER(ME26) —
MR R B AR Z BT ER(MIEE33(d) im
EIFAERITIER ©

MNZZE—+FE+-A=+—0 ' KEEH
R MIRITHEERB1E41,094,000% T( =
T — N4 134,804,000 70 ) IERT1T 488
ZEBRUAREERTRFBENET -
AREITIEAERALBNEE -

Equivalents (Continued)

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand,
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are placed
with banks and earn interest at market interest rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities and bank borrowings
of the Group (Note 26) and bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary
(Note 33(d)) as of 31 December 2017 and 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, included in cash and bank balances of
the Group was US$41,094,000 (2016: US$34,804,000) of bank
balances denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency.

g A< 24. Share Capital
REE S8
Number of
shares Amount
TEr
Us$'000
ETE Authorised:
RZZ—R"E—H—H " At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016
—Z—RE+-A=t+—-RBk and 31 December 2017
ZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
BETRBE Issued and fully paid:
RZ—ZE—R"F—HF—8 - At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016
T R"E+A=+—-HEK and 31 December 2017
“E—+F+=-A=+—H 415,000,000 4,150

(R
A EE
B ERBAE RERHEENERE -

SINE (e R R B AR B R R R SRR 1
MEHERE o

25. Reserves

Group
The share premium represents the excess over the nominal value
for shares allotted.

The foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences

arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries.

BB A4 B8 %537 {8 A R /A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 59




A ISR R M5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

25. #E(E]E) 25. Reserves (Continued)
AEBE(HE) Group (Continued)
EERERIZRBREEEEFRE &P The statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the
BB ARIRN SN BEETA DIRHFHES PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as
i required by the relevant PRC statute.
PN Company
(REtEE)
R 1E R &R st
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Retained
premium profits Total
TEr FT=r T=Er
Us$'000 us$'000 us$'000
R-ZZB—X"E—HF—H At 1 January 2016 24,302 (3,157) 21,145
BB (B1E13) Dividends (Note 13) (5,357) — (5,357)
FEEE Loss for the year — (2,040) (2,040)
FEAMZEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year — = =
FEEZHEESE Total comprehensive loss for
the year — (2,040) (2,040)
R-B-A"E+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 2016 18,945 (5,197) 13,748
BB (B EE13) Dividends (Note 13) — (12,118) (12,118)
FEEF Profit for the year — 18,460 18,460
FREEMPERS Other comprehensive income
for the year — — —
FEZHENEEE Total comprehensive income for
the year — 18,460 18,460
R-B—+tH&+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 2017 18,945 1,145 20,090
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. B 26. Borrowings
—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FEx FET
US$’000 Us$'000
ERIRITIEK Fixed-rate bank borrowings 45,420 40,887
FBIRITE K Variable-rate bank borrowings 50,960 54,841
BEERME (FMFE21) Asset-backed financing (Note 21) 2,755 9,370
99,135 105,098
B Secured 58,578 71,853
A Unsecured 40,557 33,245
99,135 105,098
—Z2—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FER FET
US$’000 Us$'000
RITIE Bank borrowings 96,380 95,728
R—F AR AN EEEIRBE  Asset-backed financing due within one year 2,755 9,370
99,135 105,098

e i

BT RITRARS RAREE THH
LA BRI
IR PR S R ) (R R
5 o WAREERR  DRROBAR
REREE -

AEETFEHETERRBELCTHETS
A BREREFTNEEFHRER - N

KERRARAEAEBRENEZERE
RITTAAEITEERNSEZRER
R-B—tFER_F-—ARF+t-A=1+—

B TEERERIEBENRREZSE

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain banking facilities
are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain
financial position ratios of the Group, as are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
breaches the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants,
up to date, makes repayments in accordance with the repayment
schedule of the term loans. The Group does not consider it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
repayment for as long as the Group continues to meet these
requirements. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.
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26. R (&) 26. Borrowings (Continued)
SRITERERAEN T EBHE The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

—E—+F T RF
2017 2016
TEx FET
us$'000 Us$'000
AREIERTR ¢ Represented by:
AREERER Borrowings in RMB 46,983 50,257
ETTEK Borrowings in US$ 50,160 53,310
BE(ETHER Borrowings in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$") 1,992 1,531
99,135 105,098
—E—+F —E—RF
2017 2016
FTER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
EREF = Effective interest rate per annum:
RITER Bank borrowings 3.86% 3.56%
AEBEHES S EMIRITF 832,631,000 The Group had pledged bank deposits amounting to
En(ZZF—7"%F :27,095000% ) US$32,631,000 (2016: US$27,095,000), bills receivables
JE U Z 53,497,000 T( —F — /N - amounting to US$3,497,000 (2016: US$4,022,000) and Starry’s
4,022,00037T) M TH{E A13,292,000% 7T listed equity shares with market values of US$13,292,000 (2016:
ZZF—J84F 1 62,145,000 70 ) W) Al AL US$62,145,000) to secure the banking facilities and bank
B ETRMDIEAAEERITRIE RIRTTE borrowings of the Group.
HEVFELR o
48 3 3 68 77 040,557,000 0 ( =T — The unsecured bank borrowings of US$40,557,000 (2016:
7NEE 133,245,000 70 ) BAA A Bl Sk ANE US$33,245,000) were guaranteed by the Company or certain
BETHEBARIER - subsidiaries of the Group.
BEEERBMEETHEBEBE SRR 39 The asset-backed financing represented the amount of financing
TRIX I EERRENRER ZESNRE obtained in factoring transactions which did not meet the de-
A o HESREETTAE S R EHAMERW recognition requirements in I1AS 39. The corresponding financial
FIE(MI5E21) - ZEEFRR—FARIE - assets were included in trade and other receivables (Note 21).
WAAREEEHE - These borrowings mature within one year and are repayable in
RMB.
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27.

MERPDELZABHRAT :

BHE-_Z—+E+-_A=+—RI&EE

26. Borrowings (Continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

FET
Us$'000
—E—+F—H—H At 1 January 2017 105,098
ReEmes Changes from cash flows:
BT Proceeds from borrowings 118,628
VA=t Z Repayment of borrowings (127,683)
(9,055)
M 5, R Exchange adjustments 3,092
N-—EE—+t&E+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 99,135
EEBESE 27. Deferred Tax Liabilities
RO RBFIH
FEBRME EERERE Hitr st
PRC
withholding
tax on Deferred
undistributed development
earnings costs Others Total
TEx TET T T
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
R=ZE—~E—A—H At 1 January 2016 181 1,348 19 1,548
BN AR Exchange adjustment = (103) = (103)
B (FE12) Charge to profit or loss (Note 12) - 429 2 431
RZZE—R"E+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2016 181 1,674 21 1,876
RZE—+tF—-HA—H At 1 January 2017 181 1,674 21 1,876
fE N AR Exchange adjustment — 98 — 98
Rz MR (HTEE12) Charge to profit or loss (Note 12) — (147) 173 26
RZZE—t+F+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2017 181 1,625 194 2,000
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27.

28.

T—+&+-FA=+—HAILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

EEHEEE (&)
BEPBCEMMSHE AT NF—
A—HB & AR B A R T EREUR A M
EIRAME BMNTEINR - e MIEHRE
AT 2R HL A B8 A R1AY61,729,0003 7T
(ZZ—7%F : 62,588,000% ) 2% A
FTEAMERZRERRECHEREE -
JER R E 7R 7 52 (8] AT 428 1) B B 2= R A 8% o] B
M BZSEREEIETeRN A ERE
R o

AAREBERE —BRSEAN—BEEEEN
MEARLIR - A KRR ARREFBERA
TERIMBERT » Bt AR EABHRIEREE
REHTBERRINRBAEEHKEE -
AN B BB A R E AR R B AR E
B 1849 /54,302,000% T( — T — /< &F ¢
2,001,000%7T) - FiIEE B A B E £
FRAESF o

B REAMENKIE

27. Deferred Tax Liabilities

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to US$61,729,000 (2016:
US$62,588,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences, it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not been recognised
in these consolidated financial statements as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and the
unpredictability of future profits. The Group has unused tax losses
of approximately US$4,302,000 (2016: US$2,001,000) incurred
by the subsidiaries in the PRC, which can be carried forward for
5 years from the year in which the losses were incurred.

28. Trade and Other Payables

—Z2—tF AT

2017 2016

FEr FET

US$°000 Us$'000

Z SN FIB Trade payables 4,980 3,267
IAREE Bills payables 2,755 9,370
Bt fE AT I8 K FERTRUIR Other payables and accruals 14,484 10,147
22,219 22,784
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B REMEMSRE(E) 28.
REZHFEEM  NREER  ARENE
PIERERBE AT :

—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade payables
of the Group as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—E—tF It AN

2017 2016

FTER FET

US$'000 Us$'000

90H AT 90 days or below 3,871 1,922
91£180H 91-180 days 274 161
1812365H 181-365 days 75 275
#83A365H Over 365 days 760 909
4,980 3,267

B5R T%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ@@
HER IFTEFE

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables approximate their fair values.

29. Hit e @A E 29. Other Financial Liabilities

—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FEx F=T
US$°000 Us$'000
n—H—H At 1 January 1,226 1,170

REBZENBRA A RERTR Unwinding of discount on contingent

(FF3E9) consideration charged to profit or loss

(Note 9) 59 56
b 5 e Exchange gain 9) =
Rt+t—-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,276 1,226

A FE17(d) PR - R=ZZF—WMEFE=A
Z+N\R - AEEBEBEFEZEKRE 0 N
WHEBEER - ZRXPNBERSRERRE
8,000,000 T E BTN - ZME=LE
¥4/51,500,000E% LR BRI 3 (FZ50E
HSEAREBHBESHEEEEN) -

AN%l*EFttﬂzka;zﬁﬂA%ﬁﬁm
2EARRNAFTHEERBR SN T0E
7&1,500,000%75 °

As discussed in Note 17(d), the Group reached an agreement
with Novartis to acquire a pharmaceutical product on 28 March
2014. The total cash consideration of the transaction comprised
an upfront payment of US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone
payments of a total maximum amount of US$1,500,000, which
would be linked to the sales amount achieved by the Group
subsequently.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that

the Group could be required to make under this contingent
consideration arrangement is between US$0 and US$1,500,000.
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30. R QBB MR K

30. Company Level Statement of Financial Position

—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
B 5E FE FET
Notes us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
NG oL e Interest in a subsidiary 25,020 25,020
REEE Current assets
FEURHT B A B IE Amount due from a subsidiary 49,699 52,192
REMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 99 685
49,798 52,877
HMEE Total assets 74,818 77,897
EERAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
ERRHE Capital and reserves
AABEEAELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
R& 7K Share capital 24 4,150 4,150
It =B Share premium 25 18,945 18,945
1REBY%A],/(ExtER) Retained profits/(Accumulated losses) 25 1,145 (5,197)
R Total equity 24,240 17,898
REEE Current liabilities
e Borrowings 50,160 59,599
JEET TR Accruals 418 400
wmE B Total liabilities 50,578 59,999
HEZRAE Total equity and liabilities 74,818 77,897
REAEERE Net current liabilities (780) (7,122)
BEERARBAER Total assets less current liabilities 24,240 17,898
REgE=S On behalf of the directors
EF o
Director Director
& h (=
CHEN Li HOU Song
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ARBIMBRRRRERARNFEOT

BHE-_Z—+E+-_A=+—RI&EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

31. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
General information of the subsidiaries
Details of the Company's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are set out follows:

HMEL/ BT iz B/ & ARBREERRRLER
£ CEVEH] gXu¥  REHE REENLA IERHK
Country/Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group  Principal activities
Z§-tfF TRF
2017 2016
ERERER
Interests held directly
REREERERAR ARRIHE BE 29491 3605 RE(E 100% 100% REZK
1RTEBR
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited The "BVI" Hong Kong 29,491,360 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
shares of US$1 each
CESE2EL 5
Interests held indirectly
Brilliant Manufacture Limited EBROHE 3 \REEIETAE Bk 100% 100% REER
Brilliant Manufacture Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Flash Universal Limited EBRAHE Bl 1| REEIETAEBR 100% 100% REHRK
Flash Universal Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Horizon Network Limited EBRXHE Bl 1| REEIZTHEBR 100% 100% RERR
Horizon Network Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Magnificent Worldwide Limited EBRIHE &b \REEIETNEBR 100% 100% REBR
Magnificent Worldwide Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited R BF \REEIETNEBR 100% 100% REZR
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EHERAA B &R IREE BTN E BR 100% 100% REHR
Full Keen Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERE(BR)BRAR B &k 100IREE 10075 7CH) 100% 100% REZR
LRk
Lansen Investments (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding
HK$100
REBB(FB)ARAR &t & 1REEI BT BR 100% 100% RERR
Lansen Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HKS$1 100% 100% Investment holding
VEEMRER(ER)BRAT BB & 1REEIETAE BR 100% 100% REHR
Liwah Plant Extract (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HKS1 100% 100% Investment holding
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31. XA FIME A A FE(HE) 31. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
MR N —RER (&) General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
ML/ T £ B/ B AREFRSEARELR
£ B3/ 1% EXuE  RARE SENLA IERHE
Country/Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group  Principal activities
I5-tf  CEE
2017 2016
LESEXEE 5
Interests held indirectly
RTERERAT] &b & 1REEI BT BR 100% 100% REZR
Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HKS$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
kit &k & \REEETAE Bk 100% 100% BEEE
LMHK Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HKS1 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
et 2N &t B \REE BT L Bk 100% 100% RERR
Perfection Link Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK§1 100% 100% Investment holding
ik hE (Ffzta) RE AR¥29,498,0007T 100% 100% BEZH
Shenzhen Lansen The PRC (Note a) The PRC RMB29,498,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
BRUE i (Hfzth) E AR 236,000,000 100% 100% EEXH
Ningbo Liwah The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB236,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
TR I (fzh) I AR %28,000,0007T 100% 100% EEXH
Liwah Plant Extract The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical husiness
ERPLBEERAT i (W) hE AR¥35,000,0007 100% 100% BEZH
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company The PRC (Note ) The PRC RMB35,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Limited
ENRERNEFERAR i (Hta) ke AKH3,500,0007T - 100% BEZHK
Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited The PRC (Note a) The PRC RMB3,500,000 - 100% Pharmaceutical business
ERNERENRERAR i (Hf3th) i AKH1,000,0007 100% 100% BERXHK
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Technology ~ The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Company Limited
MIRFEEHRERAT P (Hiitb) il AR 500,000 100% 100% BEZHK
Shenzhen Dongai Technology Information The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB500,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Co. Ltd.
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. RATRKME A RFE(E) 31. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
MEARN—RER(H) General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
ML/ T £ B/ B AREFRSEARELR
£ B3/ 1% EXuE  RARE SENLA IERHE
Country/Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group  Principal activities
ZB-tF TF
2017 2016
LESEXEE 5
Interests held indirectly
R2EREA(LE)BRAA i (Hfzth) hE AR%10,000,0007T 100% 100% BEXH
Lansen (Shanghai) International Trading The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
Co., Ltd.
REEREH0LR)BRAT il (ffita) hE AR%2,000,0007T 100% 100% EBELH
Lansen (Beijing) International Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC (Note a) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical business
YBERERAT ZERAEE B VREEIETAE BR 100% 100% REBR
Allied Choice International Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
ERRENR(ER)ERAA &k & 1REEIETHEBR 100% 100% RERR
Letai Health Technology (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK§1 100% 100% Investment holding
PABBXAMR(ER)ARAT b Bt REEBTHERR 100% 100% REBR
Lansen Medibeauty Tech (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
ERPEBREANRARAT I (zEh) hE AR1,000,0007T 100% 100% BE£H
Ningbo Lansen Medibeauty Tech Limited The PRC (Note b) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical business
PR L) BELARRAA it (Htd) It 50,000 148 100% — BEE%
Lansen (Swiss) Medicine Consulting Limited ~ Switzerland (Note d) Switzerland ~ Swiss Franc50,000 100% — Inactive
BtsE - Notes:
(a) A= | A=Y =1\ /NG| (a) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC
(b) R B BN EBE % (b) Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC

(@ RPBERZIBFIEELE

d  RIERZRERAE

(c) Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC

(d) Established as a limited liability company in Switzerland
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31. KARKMBARFE(E) 31. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
MELXRHN—RER () General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
FREBTAHE R R RTERNESE None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
7 e of the year.
REE B AR Composition of the Group
FEXK AR AR SL, PR 3L it B 2ENBATHE
Place of incorporation/ Number of wholly-owned
Principal activities establishment subsidiaries
—E—+t5F T —RF
2017 2016
Fxx FET
US$’000 Us$'000
Bamntig =8 9 10
Pharmaceutical business The PRC
BT B8 1 1
Pharmaceutical business Hong Kong
REER & 8 8
Investment holding Hong Kong
REZER RBEUAS 7 7
Investment holding The BVI
TEER It 1 —
Inactive Switzerland
26 26
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—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

BY B AR 32. Financial Commitments

RERNAE Operating lease commitment
—ZT—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FER F=ET
US$’000 Us$'000

RIET A HUEEAEARARIK  Future minimum rental payable under
HIEERNESIT - non-cancellable operating lease are as
follows:

145E 1A Within one year 373 349
F2E5F In the second to fifth year 119 262
492 611

AEBNKEEOERETYE - HOF
HNF—2=%F  AREHBEHIAE
EAMEEETIE T BENRHRESEN
Hl - ZEMROM A BREMNRAEE -

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The
leases terms are between one and three years, with options to
renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or at days as mutually
agreed between the Group and the respective landlords. None

of these leases includes any contingent rentals.

BAREE Capital commitment
—E—+F ZE—XF
2017 2016
FTER FET
US$°000 Us$'000

W RE DAN & TR Commitments for the acquisition of:

mELEE Intangible assets 1,634 447
BERRE Construction and equipment 169 217
1,803 664

BA A B8 4% BE A [R A A) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 171




A ISR R M5
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

33.BERRS 33. Related Party Transactions
FRN - AEBEHEBEEFEIL IR S During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions

with related parties:

—E2—tF —E-REF
2017 2016
FEx FET
US$’000 Us$'000
BEXS - Trading transactions:
ENRRHEBARMIE Processing expenses paid to a fellow
(K3E(@@)) subsidiary (Note (a)) — 143
BB AT IMTE (K@) Processing expenses paid to an associate
(Note (a)) — 1,173
MERMBATEEER Purchase of goods from a fellow
subsidiary 1,221 2,432
MBS AFEBEER(MFE@)  Purchase of goods from an associate
(Note (a)) 130 215
FEfTHE & A AR E (MisE(b))  Entrusted fee payable to an associate
(Note (b)) 606 —
JEUEEE N RN T & (Mizk(c))  Processing fee receivable from an associate
(Note (c)) 3,109 1,989
HEx5 - Other transactions:
ENRREMBARTESRAX Rental expenses paid to a fellow
subsidiary 51 46
FENBERMBARMEEER  Cross guarantee commission fee
<8R (KEEd) payable to a fellow subsidiary (Note (d)) 49 —
FEWRAXWEATNMRERER  Cross guarantee commission income
e WA (KIFEd)) receivable from a fellow subsidiary (Note (d)) 86 25
THESBRBREEREATE The following balances were outstanding at the end of the
reporting period:
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
FER FET
US$°000 Us$'000
Bt N el R R (HtEE(e)) Amounts owed by an associate
(Note (e)) 1,938 1,941
m— AR QAT ER(HFE22) Loan to an associate
(Note 22) 7,519 —
EES I EANCIEAE I O)) Amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries
(Note (e)) 5,994 4,143

1 72 Annual Report 2017 £F 3R




R Bk M RE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. AEL XS (&)
CEX
B G=sSRSiER e

ARREZRR -
ERARGRE—RABERBHE

IBEE

RAEN[BAEBV)] - ARFZEME A
E%?ELBO 0%k - BZ AL - EEKRAK
’AETE’]H‘%%*QT o ZENZ AR ARARNE
)= /N

BT —REND =+ B EEMBA 4BV
%%TE’\J%E%ﬂui%ﬁ%@ﬁ%%(@%ﬂuﬂ@%ﬁ%
FD o BEREAIUERAEBVIRENBAR
UEHE BVI) KB BEEFEZEMITESR °
FRN - MEPKRZERENTEROZIK
gnum%E’MuWﬁZ%%‘Eﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂ%é%

BEZENMITER G  ZERUEZFEHE
(BVD&E BN THEWIRIRE @ o I E AR
MR AEEREY  SEEERNIERD
2 EPRAHN10% Y IAR ©

5/3—7 /\E/\ﬁl +PI|Ei E‘E‘/&TLEE N gﬂ‘
BEENMTIEEMBRAR(EWEE]) - K
’Ailﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?&ﬁ'ﬂi BVI ETI*EE?T*H%WJ
FXA E+E?ﬁﬁ%m%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%mkﬁtﬁﬁ
SR EEMBRAIRMEER - ASERHHS
— T3 PRI E R ) 3% 77 R o

R-_ZT—tE+_HA=+—8  SMWEEFR
REBRE(E 518,741,000 T(HHERARKE
122,460,000t ) (ZZ— /<4 : 14,415,0003%

JT(FHER AR 100,000,0007T) ) HERITIE 3K
ThER RSB AR E BT R {E431,014,0003%
TE(=Z—7<4F : 37,978,000 7T ) #97,000,000
(=% — 754 :5,500,000) % 7] KX 3z B& 5 &
1R(FT3E19) 24,591,000 TT(HERARK
30,000,0007C) (=T —/~F : T)RITEK
i - BZ—pmE —E—+tFE+-_A=+—
B AEETERRBEWEEERZARE
130,000,0007T 2 SRITREE (ZF—/R4F: &) ©

RFEHRGEEE R REMTRE ML T
HERNZRRHEEERMEENE ZRURK
H o RAREER  LEREAREREER -
HE-_Z—tFR=_F—R"F+=-A=1+—H
IEFEA - NEEWERE B ZSERRIEN
RIBREHEMEE - TERBETRHREMH
PEFETRIR o

N ERER R 5 THE
AT

EEABHIEMNEAARESNT

ARRIEFHNER -

HEz=

—tFt+ZA=+—HBILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 24 March 2016, Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“Lansen
(BVI)"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 30.0% equity
interest in Natural Dailyhealth. Since that date, Natural Dailyhealth becomes
an associate of the Company. Natural Dailyhealth was a fellow subsidiary
of the Company before that date.

Pursuant to the entrusted processing framework agreement signed between
Natural Dailyhealth and Lansen (BVI) on 20 September 2016 (the “Entrusted
Processing Framework Agreement”), Natural Dailyhealth may request Lansen
(BVI) and its subsidiaries (the “Lansen (BVI) Group”) to enter into the
processing order contracts with customers. During the year, an entrusted
fee was payable to Natural Dailyhealth for the difference between the
amounts received from customers and the costs incurred in relation to the
processing of the products plus a mark-up rate of 10%.

Pursuant to the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement, Natural
Dailyhealth may entrust Lansen (BVI) Group for the processing of the
plant extract products. The processing fee is charged on a cost-plus basis,
representing all costs incurred in relation to the processing of the products
plus a mark-up rate of 10%.

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology
Company Limited (“Jilin Haizi"), a fellow subsidiary of the Company and
Lansen (BVI) entered into a cross guarantee agreement, pursuant to which
the parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide certain
guarantees to banks in relation to the banking facilities of each other from
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019. Commission fee will be charged to a party
in respect of a loan which is guaranteed by another party.

As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowings with carrying amount of
US$18,741,000 (equivalent to RMB122,460,000) (2016: US$14,415,000
(equivalent to RMB100,000,000)) drawn by Jilin Haizi was guaranteed by
the Group with 7,000,000 (2016: 5,500,000) shares in Starry held by the
Group with market values of US$31,014,000 (2016: US$37,978,000) (Note
19) and bank deposit US$4,591,000 (equivalent to RMB30,000,000) (2016:
Nil) was pledged. On the other hand, banking facilities of RMB130,000,000
was guaranteed by Jilin Haizi but no drawn down was made by the Group
as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil)

The amounts due represented the advances to suppliers on the goods to be
purchased or processing services to be provided and trade receivables arisen
from the sales of goods. The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The Group has not made any allowance for bad or
doubtful debts in respect of these balances nor has any guarantee been
given or received during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
regarding related party transactions.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 11.
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REEREIBRRFER - AKBERESTWNE
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TT(MEZ75419,895,000% 7T ) B fE =% -
—E—+tF+=-A=+—8 ' A5EZA
AENERBEAGLER AT WEEATIR
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SENEHETHRERE -
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AEENEERRIERE B S ERER
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LB EHENEERROFGEREL -

SREEERR  AREEERECLE
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35.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Contingent Liabilities

Financial guarantee issued

As mentioned in Note 33(d), the Group has issued a guarantee
to a bank in respect of the bank borrowings drawn by Jilin Haizi,
a fellow subsidiary of the Group. Under the guarantee, the
Group is liable for a maximum of RMB130,000,000 (equivalent
to US$19,895,000) borrowings drawn by Jilin Haizi from the
bank if Jilin Haizi fails to make payment when due. The maximum
potential liability of the Group at 31 December 2017 under the
guarantee issued represents the amount drawn down by Jilin Haizi
of RMB122,460,000 (equivalent to US$18,741,000) (31 December
2016: RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to US$14,415,000)).
The financial guarantee was not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements because the fair value of the guarantee was
insignificant and the directors did not consider it is probable that a
claim would be made against the Company under the guarantee.

Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing
the Group’s short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience
and their assessment of the current economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts.

There were three external customers contributed 10% or more
of total trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 (2016: one).

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group's exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Risk Management (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The directors of the Company have built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in managing
liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

B-tF
2017
15R BRRFH
RER 1224 225% SENE RemBAH
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
or on one and two and Over five undiscounted
demand  twoyears five years years  cash flows
TER TER TZn TER TER
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000
B Borrowings 100,837 - — — 100,837
EARNTERENER Trade and bills payables 7,735 - — - 7,735
Hit e AR ESHRR Other payables and accruals 13,308 - — - 13,308
Hittemas Other financial liabilities — - 500 1,000 1,500
121,880 — 500 1,000 123,380
ERTHBER Financial guarantee issued
RaERE Maximum amount guaranteed 18,741 — — — 18,741
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35. A EE(E)
FEBE SRR (&)

35. Risk Management (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

—TRF
2016

BRRIH
VERHIREK 1226 2555 SEIE BeRess
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
oron one and two and Over five undiscounted
demand two years five years years  cash flows

TEL TEL TET e TEL
Us§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US$'000

EE Borrowings 106,964 = = = 106,964

BORNFERENRE Trade and bills payables 12,637 = = = 12,637

H B FUA R BT R Other payables and accruals 8,730 — — — 8,730

EtheRAaE Other financial liabilities — - 500 1,000 1,500
128,331 — 500 1,000 129,831

BRITHBER Financial quarantee issued

B ERE Maximum amount guaranteed 14,415 = = = 14,415

B iR B SRAEE (R RTT B SRET A Bt
MDA —FASIRER FREEE -

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “within one year” time band in the above maturity analysis.

fin )% B BB R PO & HIK P EE TE B A X
st - Al EXIETASMBEFEEIA
FIBEEHEExesE o

50 L B
AEBERZERETOHINERBREH -
RAERAEEMBARFENARI
BEERABHUZEMNBARNEG @Y
REEMEHE -

AEE B AL EIMNEEDPBR - AT - B
EESRINERR - UKRNARERZR
EHREAINERR -
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the respective
functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.




SR ISR R T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. BfaE

H(EF)

A = 7@ B

AEBEE NSRS R EZHE L
FEFRGFEMALEFEEETER - &
S B IR TS FUF R B FRIERE K =
2618 FE o A E B Al E AR RSP

s

ﬁi o

THISRE D IIRIBREMRIFINTET
,E:E’M’“'JTH REE o BUFBMEEEM

BB MBRRBEPRROEARER
Eﬁi”ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁfi’ﬂﬁ%‘ﬁﬁfﬁ% o FE
A E 2 EIEA B AR E R E R E A
SOfEEFS EH TEBE - WIS ERERE
BRI R S IR AT e B B RO RTAE o

R TR/ EFS0ERE - MAA i
BUARTE  A%E

e HBEZE—LtHFt-_HA=t—B1It
FENBMNERNR-_Z—tF+A
=t- EIE’M%EE/m%UH‘”“E'i‘jJH/

W8 4255,000F (=& — /N 4F 4
o EA272,000E7T) 0 WIHEE

EEBAKEI/% BERTT 8 S E B A A
ﬁAFﬁﬁ ’ &

. AEBR-_Z—+tF+_A=+—
B #9453 0, 84> 255,0003% T
(ZZ—/RF « #0554 272,000
ETT) °

Hz=-%

35.

—+tF+=-A=+—BLIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
Risk Management (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment
of bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in Note 26. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's:

o Profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and retained
profits as at 31 December 2017 would increase/decrease by
US$255,000 (2016: increase/decrease by US$272,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate bank borrowings; and

o The Group's equity as at 31 December 2017 would increase/
decrease by US$255,000 (2016: increase/decrease by
US$272,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

35. Risk Management (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial

position relate to the following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities.

—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FEx F=ET
USs$'000 Us$'000
SREE Financial assets
B REWFIE Loans and receivables:
5 R H A UGB Trade and other receivables 55,134 58,598
m—EEE R THER Loan to an associate 7,519 —
EHEIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 32,631 27,095
ReERBSFEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,891 10,102
104,175 95,795
BAFEABRNERMEE © Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
PTEEBMTA Derivative financial instrument 1,840 2,280
106,015 98,075
SRIBE Financial liabilities
LA ADIBEM SR A ¢ Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
& Borrowings 99,135 105,098
B 5 REAMER IR Trade and other payables 21,043 21,367
120,178 126,465
BAFEFABRZNEHMERE © Finandial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
HEbhemars Other financial liabilities 1,276 1,226
121,454 127,691
BT B ER Financial guarantee issued 18,741 14,415
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35. BfaE

H(EF)
YHEBAFEFENESRIA
WIHERAFEFENERTABRE
B o hEMBEUTRIE - [ —HEE
AEINER - BEBEITER
S RASEEY  BRIUARESH R
HAbEFTFIE o

(a)

ERNEFHRENME - HEKE
EEQFERSE

BAVEFENESMITA
RAREBEFENERMIABTEEM
ERMABRITEERIE - ARE
EBRNDHTIT -

(b)

At BE R A FEE
TREIR-FE—F+-HA=1+—H
MERAMBEANEKA - RIBAFEER
MIRREEHEEURFHEFEN DR
BfE - AFEBRANUTRS

F1: HREENEERDHHRECK

TR )

ZEERF1RAESHORE A
SNET B (BVR B S & (B
BERBLBERNEARE
54

24

3P HEBEEAFFERABEMHH
BB ASER(TABRER AR

%)

Hz=-%

—tFt+ZA=+—HBILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

35. Risk Management (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value include
trade and other receivables, loan to an associate, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and
trade and other payables.

Due to their short term nature, their carrying values
approximate their fair values.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value include other
financial liabilities and derivative financial instrument.
Analysis on fair value hierarchy is presented as follows.

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities

The following tables present financial liabilities included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017 measured at fair value on a recurring basis according to
the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy has the following

levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).
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35. A EE (&) 35. Risk Management (Continued)
(b) BAFEFENERITA(E) (b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
HttemEEH A FEE(E) Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities

(Continued)
E15% E28R E38% st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E—+tF 31 December 2017 FxEx Fxx FEx FEx
+=-—A=1+—H Us$'000 uUss$‘000 Us$’'000 Us$’000
afE Liabilities
EAFEFABRR Financial liabilities at
NemBE fair value through profit
or loss
— Hihemas — Other financial liabilities — — 1,276 1,276
— — 1,276 1,276
E1H FE2M FE3M% HaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ZE—RF 31 December 2016 FET FET FET FET
+=-—A=+—H Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
afE Liabilities
BEAFEF AR Financial liabilities at
NEemBE fair value through profit
or loss
— HEtheRaE — Other financial liabilities — — 1,226 1,226
— — 1,226 1,226
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HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HAILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

35. EERE(E) 35. Risk Management (Continued)

(b) BAFEFENEMTA(E)
At MEEH A FlEE (&)

ARG R S b SR B R B s iR
mHEE -

FARENRFELERBURRBESRMG
B -RXFEDERETIAEENZ2H
(BREMER HEREEOBMXNHE
BESNHREETE - RFEATABEE
BWABBLZFRABBEERXAKERF
BENBEERBTRET

ERTABE TABEGA
WARE BEHEAFE
KB &

4.7% K 85IR &R BIRERME - A

FEBIE -
HEREZNME - HEEEZNEX
EN100% we o AAFE

HERERNDR - HEFERNHE
B-—Z_TFEk BF BA¥E
—T-=#F Bm e

BRI EIEM1% - AlEmEmaEna
F{E R A 4941,0003%€ 7T » M BEIR KR D
1% @ Al HEMemaE@OaFEEmng
43,0003 7T °

FRRHERITITESZS) o

FREMR 2 EIL BmEFE o

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

No gain or loss relating to this contingent consideration has been
recognised in profit or loss for the current year.

The fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated
by applying the discounted cash flow. The determination of
fair value is based on certain parameters including the discount
rate, the probability of sales achievement and the period of
sales achievement, which are unobservable. The significant
unobservable inputs and relationship of these inputs to fair
value contingent consideration are shown as below:

Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
input(s) inputs to fair value

Discount rate of 4.7% The higher the discount rate,

the lower the fair value.

Probability of sales The higher the probability of
achievement, which is sales achievement, the higher
100% the fair value.

Period of sales achievement,  The earlier the period of sales
which are year 2020 and achievement, the higher the
year 2023 fair value.

Increased discount rate by 1% would decrease the fair value

on other financial liabilities by approximately US$41,000 whilst

decreased discount rate by 1% would increase the fair value on
other financial liabilities by approximately US$43,000.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
35. A EE(&A)

(b) BAFEFENEMTA(E)
At MEEH A FlEE (&)

PERFIRNERABHAERNGER
MIRIBEIFER A BE NS BIBENE RS

35. Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

The financial liabilities classified in level 3 use valuation techniques
based on significant inputs that are not based on observable

ANE o LR EY S B T H HA 945 o4 8L B R 45 market data. The financial instruments within this level are
EREVETARIAT ¢ reconciled from opening to closing balances as follows:
—E—+F —E—RF
2017 2016
TER FE7
US$°000 Us$'000
afg Liabilities
AT EFABZNERERE © Finandal liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
n—H—H At 1 January 1,226 1,170
RERENBREHANRE Unwinding of discount on contingent
i (H47E9) consideration charged to
profit or loss (Note 9) 59 56
b 5 e Exchange gain 9 —
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,276 1,226

BAFEFAENTELSBITA
RZZE—XNFE=ZA=F+MA ' BBEBVI)
B —IHEEHE - WEREEL19.1%K
- REAAREIZOEETHEERD
5,085,000%7T) + HR AR®28.08E T
BRES  ARBSEEAERBIEREAR
AR 2 EEBEITRA -

RERERE BT —A~"F=A=+N
B 151E A AERERE - BAEBVIA 2
BERBERE(MEERTE)ETE MRS
R MBEREERBEITREZEE IR
E%HX( jJDLB/\\—’é /\E H +EE|
REWEE19.1% %K - GHBEETEBBE
f230% K A& E ZEITIRA - B3R HE AP
BN -_ZT—ARFNA=-+=8  RE
HIEEHTT - ERASEHEREEANY
2 FEazAEKAREERNEE QT
GEIE)E
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Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Financial Instrument
On 24 March 2016, Lansen (BVI) signed a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire approximately 19.1% equity interest
in Natural Dailyhealth, at a consideration of RMB33.0 million
(equivalent to approximately US$5,085,000) of which RMB28.0
million is in cash and RMB5 million by way of consideration shares
in entire issued share capital of Natural Dailyhealth Tech Limited.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, and at any time within
15 months from 29 March 2016, Lansen (BVI) shall have the sole
discretion but not the obligation to subscribe for, and Natural
Dailyhealth shall have the obligation to issue and allot, the second
tranche subscription shares, in aggregate with the acquired equity
interest of 19.1% on 24 March 2016, own up to 30% of the
enlarged issued share capital of Natural Dailyhealth, which is the
call option. On 22 August 2016, the call option was executed.
Accordingly, the Group holds 30% equity interest in Natural
Dailyhealth. Having significant influence over Natural Dailyhealth,
Natural Dailyhealth becomes an associate of the Group (Note
19) since that date.
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HE-_ZT—+HF+-_A=+—HAILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

35. BB EE(HE) 35. Risk Management (Continued)

(b) BAFEFENERITA(E) (b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
BAFEGTEBHITELSHITA () Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Financial Instrument
(Continued)

S—HHE BZE-—AR"F=ZAZ-+@WEAH On the other hand, at any time during the period of three months
B —EAS B R e =& F3 HAR (174 commencing immediately after the second anniversary of 24
B ZER=BETERLEENER March 2016 (the “Put Option Period”), Natural Dailyhealth is
TR ARG EEREREEREBV) entitled to exercise the put option to require Natural Dailyhealth
RAENEHBRBRMD(CTEHLHITHE) - & to purchase all (but not part) of the subscription shares then held
fREETEBRANEARN - IREH by Lansen (BVI) at the put option strike price. Natural Dailyhealth
ARARNEBZFEEHEE - BEBV)E shall pay the put option strike price in cash to the Group within
BITERGEENBERIERE - (NERAE six months from the date of the exercise of the put option. The
BVNHZEREEFRE - REH AIEITED exercise of the put option is at the absolute discretion of Lansen
Z BHERIR AR AT TR R G HARE o (BVI). The put option can be exercised at any time prior to the

commencement of the Put Option Period if mutually agreed by
Lansen (BVI) and Natural Dailyhealth.

PTESR I ANER ZBEA AR FES The derivative financial instrument is stated at fair value by
B FTREINV-_Z—+F+=-A=1— using the binomial model, the following table presents derivative
HREESMBMRARA - REBATERER financial instrument included in the consolidated statement of
RREEEEENAFEFENITESR financial position as at 31 December 2017 measuring at fair
TH - RFEERBUATRT value on a recurring basis according to the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

R HRAEBEREBTSHmMECK Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
L) assets;

E2R . ZREERBIRMBEHRMEMN Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
ShAT B (BNIR B 48 ) sk fe 2 (BN 1 that are observable for the asset, either directly (i.e.
EEREH)BENE AZE as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
X

E3R: ZEBEEWFERABERMIHH Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on observable
B A BUE (A B R A2 market data (unobservable inputs).

%) e
F1R F21R F31k et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

T —tF 31 December 2017 FEx FEx FEx FEx

+=-—A=+—H Us$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

BE: Assets:

RO EF ARZED Financial assets at fair value

TREE through profit or loss
— TESRTA — derivative financial
instrument — — 1,840 1,840
— — 1,840 1,840
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HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

35. EERE(E) 35. Risk Management (Continued)

(b) BAFEFENERITA(E) (b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
A FETEBHITELHMTA(E) Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Financial Instrument
(Continued)

ERE F21% F38 st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ZERF 31 December 2016 FTExT TET TR FET
+-A=+—H US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BE - Assets:
BN FHER AR Financial assets at fair value
BREE through profit or loss
— TESBIA — derivative financial
instruments = — 2,280 2,280
— — 2,280 2,280
NEEDBDERE T ER24(BFEE The determination of fair value is based on certain parameters
BAIR D ER + E{Lhi% B zS= & B IE D including underlying share price, annualised dividend yield and
TEHRR IR )T o Z S & ATl B A expected volatility, which are unobservable. The significant
SEZERINT ¢ unobservable inputs are shown as below:
—B—tF A
EATAUEERAZE Significant unobservable input(s) 2017 2016
i i Put option
RO ESARE(T) Underlying share price of RMB (dollars) 49,373,652 63,883,225
F B e X Annualised dividend yield 0% 0%
MR IR D TR HR R 18 Expected volatility of underlying share 23.632% 52.341%
HERHESR FFA5% @ TS T Increased underlying share price by 5% would increase the fair
BENTEEBeR 4317000 7(= value loss on derivative financial instrument by approximately
T—NE ATFEREERA4167,000 US$317,000 (2016: decrease the fair value gain by approximately
E0) MAEABROER Y% @ 847 US$167,000) whilst decreased underlying share price by 5% would
A4S BT EATAEREEE R 4340,000 decrease the fair value loss on derivative financial instrument by
ET(ZE—RE: D EKSERMY approximately US$340,000 (2016: increase the fair value gain
176,000 1) © by approximately US$176,000).
JEEIEUE FF5% @ BIfTA SR T AR Increased expected volatility by 5% would decrease the fair
TEEBEBERmA 452, 000%7@( —E—x value loss on derivative financial instrument by approximately
F DN PERSEBINL211,000ET) US$52,000 (2016: increase the fair value gain by approximately
MBHURIE F%k5% @ BlfTES@mIT AR US$211,000) whilst decreased expected volatility by 5% would
T EEBEEIND33,000ET(ZE—~ increase in fair value loss on derivative financial instrument by
F o NFERESERHA#213,000E7T) © approximately US$33,000 (2016: decrease in fair value gain by
approximately US$213,000).
g{nga W& FF59 E‘J@TE@E&I Increased annualised dividend yield by 5% would decrease the
AT EEBE R 4115 000FE (=5 fair value loss on derivative financial instrument by approximately
_/\—\¢ NFEU S IN4)250, OOO% US$115,000 (2016: increase the fair value gain by approximately

7)o US$250,000).
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35. AR EE (&) 35. Risk Management (Continued)

(b) BAFEFENERITA(E) (b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
BAFEGEBNITELHBTA(E) Fair Value Measurement of Derivative Financial Instrument
(Continued)

FRE 2 EI mERE o There were no transfers between levels during the year.
DERFEIRNERMEEFMERNMGER The financial assets classified in level 3 use valuation techniques
M THRBIEE R AT B R M IS EE M E R based on significant inputs that are not based on observable
ANE o LR Bl T HEH ¥4 er B B R 45 market data. The financial instruments within this level are
BREVESBRAA T - reconciled from opening to closing balances as follows:
—E—+F —E—RF
2017 2016
SFEIoE FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
BE Assets

AT ETABRNEREE © Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:

»—A—8 At 1 January 2,280 —
NE Addition — 3,488
IKETER Derecognise — (2,174)
PTESRTAENAYE Fair value (loss)/gain on derivative

(E518), Wiz financial instrument (564) 1,129
bE H e, (&518) Exchange gain/(loss) 124 (163)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,840 2,280
PTES BT ARAFEEES64,000FT(= Fair value loss on derivative financial instrument of US$564,000
ZT—RF A FEEKE1,129,000%7T)E (2016: Fair value gain of US$1,129,000) has been recognised in
RERNBRPER o profit or loss for the year.
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35. Risk Management (Continued)

HE-_T—tF+-_HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
35. El:@ iﬂ(n‘ﬁ)
EXERE

AEBMEBHER - NERAEENER
AIRHERE - RSEEECERRERT
BRBRREREALR - AEENEER
REEFESHETE -

AEENEARBEEEH(REME26
WENER)  RERBRITHEBKRARF
BEANEBEEZ(BSERTERN - #iB
RARBER) ©

REEZEEEHERBETELRSRE °
ZK?E.JEZ“ B B B AR E E R R R
FE - BEEEAREBIED uﬂ%‘ o BER
RFHEERERE - AEEMREFAERNS T
AR B S5 E@§$YPHX$ BT
Rk EBELURE ©

BEREHROFAEABLEOT

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in Note 26, cash and bank balances
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was
as follows:

—E—+tF —ZT—RXF

2017 2016

FEx FET

US$’000 US$'000

B (HIE26) Borrowings (Note 26) 99,135 105,098
B IS MRS EEY (FIE23) Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) (8,891) (10,102)
B BEARAIRIT R (KIEE23)  Less: Pledged bank deposits (Note 23) (32,631) (27,095)
(EvEE Net debt 57,613 67,901
T Equity 102,019 90,376
FEERERL R Net debt to equity ratio 56.5% 75.1%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Managing Director:

Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 1 March
2018)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Bang Min (resigned on 31 January 2018)
Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
(appointed on 30 March 2017)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
(resigned on 30 March 2017 as Chairman
but remains as a Director)
Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Liu Xuezi

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Jin Yi

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt

Mr. Lee Jin Yi

Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
(appointed on 31 January 2018)
Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Liu Bang Min (resigned on 31 January 2018)
Mr. Chen Li (appointed on 1 March 2018)
Mr. Hou Song
Ms. Liu Xuezi
Ms. Tao Fang Fang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Hou Song
Mr. Leung Tsz Chun
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Tsz Chun

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman
KY1-1108

Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
228 Xinfeng Road

Gaogiao Industrial Park

Haishu District, Ningbo City

Zhejiang Province

PRC

Postal Code: 315174

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suites 1203-4

12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers

189 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR
BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Stephenson Harwood (Hong Kong)
Jincheng Tongda & Neal (China)
Estera Trust (Cayman Islands)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China
Industrial Bank

Bank of China

SPD Bank

Fubon Bank

CTBC Bank




-t

T an
uasuni

& B E b 77 R

Caring For Health Cherishing Life



	封面
	目錄
	五年財務摘要
	財務摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事及高級管理人員履歷
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	企業資料
	封底

